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Letter from editor
In recent years, Sacombank has been on its
“journey to excellence” by innovating to
obtain important achievements. It has enhanced
financial capacity, modernized technology,
developed human resource and expanded
branch network. Especially,1st October 2015
marked an extremely important milestone
in Sacombank’s history: After Southern
Commercial Joint Stock Bank (Southern Bank)
was officially merged into Sacombank, it has
been in the top five largest banks in Vietnam.
“The strength in synergy” is chosen as the
theme of Sacombank Annual Report 2015,
inspired by the “Concentrated Strength”
symbol for “Non-stop Outreach”. Given its
energetic young employees who dare to
innovate and be creative with high responsible
attitude, Sacombank now owns the best key for
success so far. Sacombank still remains its goal
of becoming a “Standard and Unique” bank
by promoting its available strength, focusing
on investment strategy and leveraging on the
technology system to bring the best experience
to customers. It is also flexible and creative
to get along with market swings, in order
to obtain break-through results in business

performance. It encourages the sharing attitude
by motivating its CSR activities to benefit society
and community. More than that, Sacombank
has gradually renovated its awareness and
operation, so as to spread its core values for
years to achieve further success.
The year 2016 is deemed a transitional year
to implement the objective of “becoming the
leading modern and multi-purpose retail
bank in Vietnam and region” by promoting
the internal resource and capturing market
chances. We are determined to gain the
collaborative strength to spur the Bank forward
to success.
To remain sustainable development by
sharing with community, cutting printing
cost and protecting environment, we have
continued to use recycled paper for the
2015 Sacombank Annual Report. We
have also continued an electronic copy at
www.sacombank.com.vn
We look forward to further contribution from
valuable shareholders and readers to improve the
quality of our annual reports in the coming years.
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Message from
Chairman

Given the strong financial capacity, sufficient
and transparent system of procedure and
regulations together with staff determination
and collaboration, we will generate the great
collaborative strength to gain success.

7

Dear Esteemed Shareholders, Customers and
Investors,
In 2015, Vietnamese economy witnessed positive
signals. GDP grew by 6.68% from previous year.
Inflation was well-controlled at the lowest 0.6% for
14 years. Vietnam also completed the negotiations
for free trade agreements which would create
opportunities and facilitate motivation for economic
restructure in 2016.The collaboration and support
from valuable shareholders, customers and investors
together with endless efforts from all employees have
provided Sacombank with strong internal capacity to
implement the innovative strategy consistently and
thoroughly.
In 2015, the successful merger of Southern
Commercial Joint Stock Bank (Southern Bank) into
Sacombank in line with the project of restructuring
financial and banking sector of the Government, The
State Bank of Vietnam (SBV) marked a new milestone
in Sacombank’s history. It is now in the top five largest
banks in Vietnam.
Post merger, total assets of Sacombank reached
VND 292,033 billion, representing a 53.9% increase
from the beginning of the year; equity stood at
VND 22,080 billion (increased by 22.2%); charter
capital achieved VND 18,852 billion (increased
by 51.7%), accounting for 85.4% of equity, which
represented the sterling financial structure.
Sacombank now has an extensive branch network of
563 transaction points covering provinces nationwide
and in Laos, Cambodia. Sacombank has 16,500
employees who are well-trained and experienced in
banking and finance sector.
Certainly the merger also exposed some challenges.
However, given strong financial capacity, sufficient
and transparent system of procedure and regulations
together with staffs determination and collaboration,
we will gather great “strength in synergy” to
success. Hence, valuable shareholders, customers
and investors please trust and accompany us in the
journey of conquering new challenges.

Sacombank sets its 2016 goals of “Improved
Operation - Strengthened Foundation - Sustainable
Development” with key groups of solutions including:
Follow up the agenda and schedule of merger
project; Improve the system post merger, enhance
the application of “Standard Model Unit” for entire
system - Leverage on the information technology to
keep up with latest applications to benefit customers;
Implement IT projects under schedule, especially
the key projects; Grow its business to expand
market shares; Increase stable deposits; Raise loans
regionally, focus on less risky sectors in line with SBV
direction.
We are confident to commit to successfully deliver
business goals in the development strategy to
deserve the trust of shareholders, customers and
investors.
I extend my warmest appreciation and wishing you
the best of health, happiness and success.
Best regards,
On behalf of Board of Directors

Kieu Huu Dung
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VISION, MISSION AND CORE VALUES

VISION
To be a regional leader in modern
retail banking.

MISSION
»» Providing best-in-class multi-purpose financial
solutions for customers;

»» Maximizing added-value to partners, investors
and shareholders;

»» Strengthening the banking industry and protecting
staff wellbeing;

»» Committing to build social communities.

CORE VALUES
»» Overcoming challenges towards success;
»» Providing

innovative approaches
sustainable development;

for

»» Making a difference with breakthrough
innovations in business and operations;

»» Committing to strong partnerships with
integrity;

»» Strengthening

responsibility.

community

and

social
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Concentrated
STRENGTH
In 2015, Southern Bank was officially merged into Sacombank. This
milestone has concentrated strength in all aspects, taking Sacombank
to new heights. Now it’s in the Top 5 largest banks in Vietnam.

Sacombank INTRODUCTION
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SACOMBANK INTRODUCTION

18,852
Chartered capital 2015

VND BILLION

GENERAL INFORMATION
Official name

: Ngân hàng Thương mại Cổ phần Sài Gòn Thương Tín

Common name

: Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank

Trade name

: Sacombank
»» Certificate of Establishment and Operation No. 006/NH-GP issued by
the State Bank of Vietnam on 05 December 1991.
»» Certificate of Business Registration of Joint Stock Enterprises:
• Business Code: 0301103908
• Registered on 03 January 1992, No. 059002 at Business Registration
Office,
• Department of Planning and Investment, HCMC.
• The 37th revision was made on 30 December 2015.
»» Brand Copyright Registration No 238311 pursuant to Decision No. 665/
QĐ-SHTT issued on 07 January 2015.

Established

: 21 December 1991

Chartered capital

: VND18,852,157,160,000 (as at 31 December 2015)

Listed on

: 02 June 2006

SWIFT code

: SGTTVNVX

Head Office

:266-268 Nam Ky Khoi Nghia Street, Ward 8, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

Tel

: +8428 39 320 420

Fax

: +8428 39 320 424

Email

: info@sacombank.com

Website

: www.sacombank.com.vn
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BANKING OPERATIONS
Banking services:

»» Deposit
»» Loans
»» International Payments
»» Export and Import Finance
»» Bank Account Services
»» Card Services
»» eBanking Services

»» Express Money Transfer
»» Remittances
»» Foreign Exchange
»» Safe Deposit Box
»» Factoring and Forfaiting
»» Insurance and Investment
»» Other authorized services by the State Bank of Vietnam
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MILESTONES

2001

1991
1991
Sacombank was a pioneering bank to start in
Ho Chi Minh City, with 100 staff and a chartered
capital of VND 3 billion.

2001
Sacombank was the first Bank to
receive investment capital from foreign
shareholders. The first foreign shareholder
was Dragon Capital (UK), which contributed
10% of the chartered capital. This was followed
by capital contributions from the International
Financial Company (IFC), the private investment
arm of World Bank, and Australia New Zealand
Bank (ANZ), thereby raising the foreign equity
to 30% of the chartered capital in 2003.
2002

1993
Sacombank opened its Hanoi branch and
became the first Bank to provide express
money transfer services between Hanoi and
Ho Chi Minh City, reducing the use of cash
between the two biggest economic hubs.
1996
Sacombank was the first Bank to issue
public shares at a par value of VND 200,000
per share to raise capital.

The
diversification
of
Sacombank’s
financial services and products began
with the incorporation of Sacombank Asset
Management Company (Sacombank-SBA).
This was followed by the incorporation of
other companies specializing in the money
transfer (Sacombank-SBR), financial leasing
(Sacombank-SBL), and the gemstones
and jewelry (Sacombank-SBJ) to meet the
increasing demands of customers.
2005
Sacombank started women banking in
Vietnam to “Nurture modern Vietnamese
women”. This was the first exclusive banking
model for women in Vietnam.
2006

1997
Sacombank was the first Bank to open rural
branches to provide access to financial needs
for rural communities. Sacombank contributed
to improve living conditions of farming
households.

Sacombank was the first commercial joint
stock bank of Vietnam to list on Ho Chi
Minh City Stock Exchange. The listing of
Sacombank’s shares (ticker STB) provided
evidence of the Bank's potential for rapid growth
without compromising safety and security.
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2012
2008
2012
2008
The opening of Sacombank Lao, was
the start of regional expansion, across
Indochina region. It was the first Vietnamese
commercial joint stock bank in Laos. The Laos
branch contributed to promote the Vietnam Laos commercial and investment cooperation.
Following the success of the Laos branch, on
23 June 2009, Sacombank Cambodia was
started marking the completion of its Indochina

Sacombank changed its shareholder
structure and BOD to maintaining its
current foundation while incorporating in new
approaches.
2013
A new version of Internet Banking system
was implemented with upgrade features and
outstanding functions.

strategy.
2009
Sacombank completed its Core Banking
System upgrade from Smartbank to Temenos
T24 R8. This system replacement launched
Sacombank to have the first international-class
modern Data Center among commercial joint
stock banks in Vietnam in 2008.

2014
Sacombank enhanced collaboration with
partners in various sectors such as real
estate, telecommunications, automobile, food
and health... to deploy the potential market in
Vietnam.

2015

2011
Sacombank set up a 100% foreign
invested bank in Cambodia. This
significant event marked Sacombank’s
strategic development backed by operating
capacity of Sacombank in Cambodia and
in Indochina.

After Southern Bank was officially merged
into Sacombank,
it has been in
the

top

5

largest banks in
Vietnam
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KEY MILESTONES
2015

15.05

24.07

LAUNCHED ELECTRONIC TAX
PAYMENT SERVICE

SIGNED A CONTRACT AND MoU
WITH CATHAY UNITED BANK

Sacombank collaborated with Taxation
General Department to launch Electronic
Tax Payment Service nationwide in
conformity with the strategy of the
government and Ministry of Finance to
improve the business environment by
facilitating tax payment of enterprises. This
service is to help enterprises pay taxes
online. The taxes include valued added tax
(VAT), excise duties, land use tax, land and
housing tax, lease of land, registration fees
and other tax penalties and fees through
electronic portal of Taxation General
Department. With this service, enterprises
will save moving expenses, time and now
be able to pay tax from all spots connecting
with internet.

Sacombank signed a contract to receive
a loan of USD 50 million from Cathay
United Bank for its mid- and long-term
credit activities. This loan will support
Sacombank’s customers to expand their
business operation in order to develop the
economy during the recovery pace.
At the same time, Sacombank also
signed a memorandum of understanding
(MoU) on comprehensive and long-term
co-operation with Cathay United Bank
for sustainable development and mutual
interests. The both sides will assist each
other in exchanging customer database
and providing products and services in
Vietnam, Taiwan, Cambodia and Laos.

The MoU signing ceremony between Sacombank
and Cathay United Bank. From the left: Mr. Phan Huy
Khang - Vice Chairman cum CEO of Sacombank,
Mr. Kieu Huu Dung - Sacombank Chairman, Mr Tsu-Pei
Chen - Chairman of Cathay United Bank and Mr. ChangKen Lee - CEO of Cathay United Bank.

31.07

LAUNCHED FIRST VISA SIGNATURE DEBIT CARD IN
VIETNAM

Sacombank collaborated with VISA card to launch the
first Sacombank Visa Imperial Signature international
debit card in Vietnam for the premium customers of
Sacombank Imperial. This is considered the most
advanced debit card in the market with outstanding
advantages.
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03.08

01.10

UPGRADED LAOS BRANCH INTO A 100%
FOREIGN-OWNED BANK

OFFICIALLY MERGING SOUTHERN BANK
INTO SACOMBANK

Being approved by Bank of Lao P.D.R and The State
Bank of Vietnam, Sacombank officially upgraded its
Laos Branch into a 100% foreign-owned bank named
Sacombank Lao. This marked a new development
milestone of Sacombank in Laos market and in
Southeast Asia region.

According to Decision No. 1844/QĐ-NHNN dated
14 September 2015 by the State Bank of Vietnam,
Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank (Southern
Bank) officially merged into Sacombank from 1 October
2015. Sacombank would receive all assets, legal rights,
responsibilities and interests from Southern Bank. It
also committed to retain rights and responsibilities of
customers, partners and shareholders of both banks.
The merger between Southern Bank and Sacombank
complied with the general direction of the Government
and the State Bank of Vietnam in the project of
restructuring banking system. This will provide the
market with the larger, safer and more professional
financial institutions.

Mr. Sonexay Sithphaxay - Deputy Governor of Bank of Lao P.D.R (right)
delivers the Certificate of Establishment to Sacombank’s Representative,
Mr. Nguyen Mien Tuan - Vice Chairman

The merger signing ceremony between Southern Bank and Sacombank.

23.11
INTRODUCED NEW FUNCTIONS OF
SACOMBANK INTERNET BANKING
Sacombank Internet Banking was added new
outstanding functions and advantages which
were first time introduced in Vietnam. The new
functions include money transfer to Visa cards;
money transfer & receive by mobile phones; bill
payment, mobile card top-up...
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OUTSTANDING AWARDS
2015

BEST FOREIGN EXCHANGE PROVIDER
AWARD 2015
Awarded by Global Finance Magazine.

Mr. Ly Hoai Van Sacombank Deputy
CEO receives “Best
Foreign Provider Award
2015”

BEST RETAIL BANK 2015
Awarded by International Finance Magazine.

SILVER AWARD OF ANNUAL REPORT
Awarded by League of American Communications
Professionals (LACP).

TOP

HOSE

30

ANNUAL REPORT

Awarded by Hochiminh City Stock Exchange (HOSE)
and Investment Magazine.

QMIX 100:2015
Awarded by Institute for Economic Research jointly
Global GTA (United Kingdom) and Inter Conformity
Assessment and Certification (Germany).
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TOP

100

CORPORATE TAX PAYERS 2015 (V1000)

Awarded by Vietnam Report and VietnamNet based on the result of data
review and assessment from Taxation General Department, Tax Magazine,
Vietnam Report, VietnamNet and consulted by local and international experts.

Mrs. Ha Quynh Anh - Deputy
CEO receives Top V1000 Award

EXCELLENT BRAND 2015
Awarded by Hochiminh City Intellectual Property Association (IPA) and
AQA International (US) and Saigon Enterprises under sponsor of Ministry of
Science and Technology.

TOP

10

LARGEST VIETNAMESE ENTERPRISES 2015
(VNR500)

Awarded by Vietnam Report and VietnamNet.

Mr. Ha Van Trung - Deputy CEO
receives flowers and Certificate
at the Announcement Ceremony
of Top 500 Largest Vietnamese
Enterprises 2015
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OUTSTANDING AWARDS
2015

COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY AWARD
Awarded by Hochiminh City People’s Committee.

DAT VIET Gold STAR AWARD 2015
Top 100 Vietnam Brand and Top 10 Dat Viet Gold Star
for CSR Awarded by Hochiminh Communist Youth
Union, Youth Union Vietnam and Vietnam Young
Entrepreneur Association

Mr. Nguyen Xuan Vu - Deputy CEO receives the Top 10 Dat Viet Gold Star Award for CSR.
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Certificate of Merit - Excellence in connecting
banks and enterprises 2012 - 2015
Awarded by Prime Minister.

Mr. Tran Tuan Anh - Deputy Minister of Industry and
Trade, Deputy Head of Central Economic Committee
grants Certificate of Merit to Mr. Dao Nguyen Vu Deputy CEO.

Certificate of Merit - Excellence in researching
and implementing Information Technology in
banking sector
Awarded by State Bank of Vietnam (SBV) governor.

TOP

10

Top 10 ASEAN Strong Brand for Sustainable
Development 2015
Awarded by ASEAN Enterprise Network, Vietnam Chamber of Commerce
and Industry (VCCI), Vietnam Federation of UNESCO Associations.

VIETNAM STRONG BRAND 2015
Awarded by Vietnam Economic Times and Vietnam Trade Promotion Agency
(Ministry of Industry and Trade).

Mr. Nguyen Xuan Vu - Deputy
CEO receives the Vietnam Strong
Brand Award 2015.

22
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

OPERATIONS

NOTE
OPERATIONAL NETWORK
MONEY TRANSFER UNITS

Islands

Islands

PHU QUY Island

CON DAO Island
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MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISION

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

THE BOARD
OF SHAREHOLDERS
THE BOARD
OF SUPERVISORS

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Internal Audit
Office of the Board of Directors

BOARD OF FINANCIAL
INVESTMENT
BOARD OF CREDIT

(*)

Investment Department
Board of Productivity and Quality
Financial Institutions Department
Communications and Marketing Department
Cash Department
Relief Director's office
Human Resource Department
Center for Learning & Development

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

HR & TRAINING

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Sacombank Introduction

RETAIL BANKING

Retail Banking Department
eBanking Department
Contact Center
Banking Service Department

CARD

Card center

CORPORATE BANKING

Large & FDI Corporate Banking Department
Small & Medium Corporate Banking Department

TREASURY

Capital Market Department
Forex Department
Northern Region Treasury Center

CREDIT

Credit Management Department
Infrastructure Department
Core Banking Operations Department
Software Development Department
Card Technology Department
Planning Department
Accounting Department
Balance Sheet Management Department

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
FINANCE
OPERATIONS

International Payment Center
Domestic Payment Center

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management Department
Legal and Compliance Department
Debt Management Department

SUPPORTING

Administration Department

REGIONAL OFFICES

Regional
Offices

Internal Audit Sector
Appraisal Sector
Business Development Sector

Branches
Transaction Offices/Saving Funds
Subsidiaries:
(Sacombank-SBL, Sacombank-SBA, Sacombank-SBR, Sacombank-SBJ, Sacombank Cambodia Plc, Sacombank Lao)
(*) Besides the Credit Council, there are other Councils, Boards and Committees which were legally registered and according to market needs at that time.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Kieu Huu Dung
Chairman of BOD
Having 24 years of experience in Economics, Finance,
and Banking.

Mr. Tram Be
Member of BOD

Mr. Phan Huy Khang
Vice Chairman of BOD

Having 12 years of experience in Economics, Finance,
and Banking.

Having 22 years of experience in Economics, Finance,
and Banking.

Mr. Nguyen Mien Tuan
Vice Chairman of BOD

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Le An
Member of BOD

Having 18 years of experience in Economics, Finance,
and Banking.

Having 12 years of experience in Economics, Finance,
and Banking.
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The Board of Directors (BOD) consists of 9 members
including 02 Independent Board Members who are found
qualified and approved by statutory regulations.
The Board of Directors includes 01 Chairman, 02 Vice
ChairmEn and 6 Members.

Mr. Nguyen Gia Dinh
Member of BOD

Mrs. Duong Hoang Quynh Nhu
Member of BOD

Having 36 years of experience in Economics, Finance,
and Banking.

Having 12 years of experience in Economics, Finance,
and Banking.

Mr. Tram Khai Hoa
Member of BOD

Mr. Nguyen Van Cuu
Independent Member of BOD

Having 8 years of experience in Economics, Finance,
and Banking.

Having 11 years of experience in Economics, Finance,
and Banking.
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS (BOS) include 3 members.
They perform their functions and duties according
to the Law of Credit Institutions 2010 and Company
Chartered of Sacombank.

Mr. Nguyen Van Ly
Chief Supervisor
Having 27 years of experience in Economics, Finance, and Banking.

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Thanh Mai
Deputy Chief Supervisor

Mr. Le Van Tong
Member

Having 22 years of experience in Economics, Finance,
and Banking.

Having 27 years of experience in Economics, Finance,
and Banking.
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BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Sacombank Introduction

Mr. Phan Huy Khang
Chief Executive Officer
Having 22 years of experience in Economics, Finance and Banking.
Bachelor of Credit Finance - Advanced Business Administration Certificate.
Responsible for Bank operations.

Mr. Nguyen Van Nhan
Standing Deputy CEO

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Le An
Deputy CEO

Having 15 years of experience in Economics, Finance
and Banking.
Bachelor of Credit Finance
Responsible for Investment

Having 12 years of experience in Economics, Finance
and Banking.
Bachelor of Monetary Finance and Credit.
Responsible for Human Resources & Training.

Mrs. Duong Hoang Quynh Nhu
Deputy CEO

Mr. Ha Van Trung
Deputy CEO cum Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Having 12 years of experience in Economics, Finance,
and Banking.
Master of Business Administration.
Responsible for Cash Management.

Having 19 years of experience in Economics, Finance
and Banking.
Master of Finance - Banking.
Responsible for Finance,
Board of Productivity and Quality and Relief Director's
office
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BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Mr. Nguyen Minh Tam
Deputy CEO

Mr. Ly Hoai Van
Deputy CEO

Having 21 years of experience in Economics, Finance
and Banking.
Master of Economics.
Responsible for Retail Banking and Card Center

Having 15 years of experience in Economics, Finance
and Banking.
Master of Economics, Finance and Banking.
Responsible for Treasury, Corporate Banking,
Sacombank-SBJ, Sacombank-SBR.

Mrs. Quach Thanh Ngoc Thuy
Deputy CEO

Mr. Phan Dinh Tue
Deputy CEO

Having 24 years of experience in Economics, Finance,
and Banking.
Bachelor of Business Administration.
Responsible for Domestic and International Payment.

Having 32 years of experience in Economics, Finance,
and Banking.
Bachelor of Business Administration - Foreign Trade.
Responsible for Credit and Investment, SacombankSBL, Sacombank-SBA.

Mr. Bui Van Dung
Deputy CEO

Mr. Ha Ton Trung Hanh
Deputy CEO

Having 27 years of experience in Economics, Finance
and Banking.
Bachelor of Mathematics and Economic Cybernetics.
Responsible for Information Technology.

Having 32 years of experience in Economics, Finance
and Banking.
Master of Economics.
Responsible for Risk Management, Legal and
Compliance
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Mr. Le Trong Tri
Deputy CEO

Mr. Nguyen Xuan Vu
Deputy CEO

Having 9 years of experience in Economics, Finance
and Banking.
Bachelor of Business Administration.
Responsible for Communications & Marketing, Business
Support.

Having 9 years of experience in Economics, Finance
and Banking.
Bachelor of Finance and Banking.
Responsible for Network Expansion.

Mr. Trinh Van Ty
Deputy CEO

Mr. Dao Nguyen Vu
Deputy CEO

Having 11 years of experience in Economics, Finance
and Banking.
Bachelor of Business Administration.
Responsible for Debt Settlement.

Having 24 years of experience in Economics, Finance
and Banking.
Bachelor of Banking.
Responsible for Business Operations (West HCMC &
Sacombank Lao).

Mr. Nguyen Ba Tri
Deputy CEO

Mrs. Ha Quynh Anh
Deputy CEO

Having 22 years of experience in Economics, Finance
and Banking.
Bachelor of Economics.
Responsible for Business Operations (East HCMC &
Sacombank Cambodia Plc.).

Having 23 years of experience in Economics, Finance and
Banking.
Bachelor of Economics and Law.
Responsible for Business Operations (Hanoi Region)
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BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Mr. Hoang Thanh Hai
Deputy CEO

Mr. Tran Minh Khoa
Deputy CEO

Having 19 years of experience in Economics, Finance
and Banking.
Bachelor of Economics.
Responsible for Business Operations (North Region).

Having 21 years of experience in Economics, Finance
and Banking.
Master of Economics.
Responsible for Business Operations (North Central
Coastal Region)

Mrs. Nguyen Duc Thach Diem
Deputy CEO

Mr. Ho Doan Cuong
Deputy CEO

Having 16 years of experience in Economics, Finance
and Banking.
Master of Business Administration.
Responsible for Business Operations (South Central and
Highlands)

Having 20 years of experience in Economics, Finance
and Banking.
Bachelor of Business Administration.
Responsible for Business Operations (Southeast Region)

Mr. Vo Anh Nhue
Deputy CEO

Mr. Huynh Thanh Giang
Chief Accountant

Having 22 years of experience in Economics, Finance
and Banking.
Master of Finance.
Responsible for Business Operations (Southwestern
Region).

Having 20 years of experience in Economics, Finance
and Banking.
Master of Economics.
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BEST
R ET A IL BANK
2015
Awarded by
International Finance Magazine.
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SACOMBANK
DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

COLLABORATION
FOR SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT
We are aware that successful implementation of Development
Strategy 2020 is attributed to efforts and dedication of all employees
and units of Sacombank. Given the 25-year history under the
flexible and sharp management of Board of Directors and Board
of Management together with efforts, skills and qualification of all
employees, we are confident to overcome challenges to maximize
opportunities and take full advantages to achieve the highest results
in implementing the development strategy 2020.
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2020

Deploy diversified and
multi-functional products
and services. Improve
working productivity of
employees.

Apply Basel II under the
advanced international
practice.

Develop modern
transaction channels.

Promote “Simple Friendly - Unique”
products

Restructure capital to use
capital safely, effectively
and stably.

2016

Synchronize human
resource system and
optimize the local human
resource.
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SACOMBANK DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2020
COLLABORATION FOR SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

Project 254 of the Government on “Restructuring the system of
credit institutions in the 2011 - 2015 period” now comes to its final
stage. As a result, the project helped to bring down 17 credit
organizations, foreign bank branches to set up a new structure
of the banking system.
Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank (Southern Bank) was merged into
Sacombank to comply with the strategy of restructuring system of credit
institutions of the government and the State Bank of Vietnam. The year
2015 marked an important milestone in Sacombank’s history, making
itself in the top five largest banks in Vietnam.
Given the current small scales, it may take years for Vietnamese
commercial banks to become regional banks. At the same time, pressure
from economic integration will force local banks to compete with major
banks from other countries. Merger among credit institutions is crucial to
increase scale and promote competitive edge for Vietnamese banks to
survive and thrive during the integration and globalization.
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Sacombank
is in the

TOP

5

largest banks
in Vietnam

Certainly the merger will expose the primary challenges such
as how to integrate database and technology infrastructure, to
harmonize business culture, to promote workability of mutual
human resource... especially how to take over the pre-merged
financial responsibilities. These challenges are deemed shortterm and not too difficult to overcome. Such short-term challenges
should not be considered as the barriers to restrain the longterm development of banking sector. In the other hand, most of
banking mergers will bring collaborative advantages for banks
in long-term, thus adding value for shareholders, customers and
the economy.
At Sacombank, the branch network was significantly extended
after merger. Now it is in the top five largest banks in Vietnam.
The larger scale will certainly require the proper development
strategy for the next stages.
Sustainable development plays key in Sacombank strategy.
Sacombank will improve human resource, re-arranging
transaction points, handling the remaining problems after merger
thus improving the operational mode to achieve the planned
targets. Development Strategy 2020 of Sacombank will cover:

Financial Strategy
Restructure capital and use capital safely, effectively and
sustainably. Capital sources will be diversified with mid - and
long-term mobilized capital from local and international funds to
maintain stability. Ratio of loans on deposits will be controlled to
ensure banking operation. Sacombank will focus on non-interest
income, mainly service income to reduce dependence on interest
income.
At the same time, the Bank will enhance financial transparency
and drastically settle the remaining financial problems. In this
period, the Bank will balance between efficiency and timeline of
financial settlement to protect interests of shareholders and to
comply with financial practice. Especially, Sacombank has been
applying the international financial practice, particularly Basel II.
As a result, significant financial cost for risk provision with higher
standard is reserved to ensure safety in banking operation.
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SACOMBANK DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2020
COLLABORATION FOR SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT (continued)

Human Resource Strategy
The Bank set target of standardizing human resource via
training and development. Labor force will be re-assigned and
re-allocated to focus on sales forces.
The Bank has conducted comprehensive collaboration with
universities, colleges to utilize local human resource. In parallel,
there are programs to promote the talents, enhancing the
transparency in work quality assessment to facilitate dedication
and motivation of all employees.

Business Strategy
Customer segmentation: Sacombank focused development of
customer groups in order of priority: (1) Retail Banking, (2) Small
and Medium Enterprises (SMEs), (3) (Corporate Banking) and (4)
customer groups of Micro finance.
Products and Services: Develop the “simple, friendly and
unique” products to serve all customer segments and regions.
The products also contain and represent Sacombank core
values. Products and services are developed and adjusted in line
with market trends (convenient, modern and safe) and focus on
retail banking.
Communications and Marketing: Communications activities in
the period 2016 - 2020 will continue promoting corporate culture
and reputation of Sacombank internally, publicly and regionally.

Market Strategy
Extensive branch network requires the strategy focusing on
quality. After merger, Sacombank has to standardize and
restructure its operation, especially re-arrange the transaction
points so as to promote efficiency in all regions. Quality of each
transaction point will play key in market development of
Sacombank.
In parallel, the strategy of enhancing the modern transaction
channels such as ATM, POS, Kios Banking and eBanking will be
the break-through solutions in market expansion of Sacombank.
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Technology Strategy
Sacombank has significantly prepared and invested in modern
technology that has facilitated deployment of diversified and
multi-purpose products and services, at the same time to promote
productivity of employees.
The advanced technology has also fostered competitive
advantages and corporate governance of the Bank. Deployment
of the outstanding functions of Core Banking, Data Warehouse
and MIS will support the implementation of business strategy
in each period to enhance the operational efficiency and risk
management in entire system.

Management Strategy

basel ii

Sacombank has built up the operational mode to meet international
standards. It remains consistency in organizational structure with
centralization in management and decentralization in operation,
especially to sharpen the system with 3 key pillars of Business Support - Supervision.
Risk management is improved to meet the requirements of the State
Bank of Vietnam, aiming at applying Basel II under international
practice.
Especially, Sacombank also improves its management strategy
2020 through the Program of “Sacombank Standard Model Unit”
to apply the consistent standard for entire system, thus achieving
goals “Satisfied Customers - Successful Sacombank”. This is a
meaningful program, especially in the post-merger period to affirm
its position as a standard and unique Sacombank.

Flexible and
CREATIVE
Flexibly and creatively generating the break-through achievements in
business, Sacombank is always dynamic to keep pace with market
trends, thus spurring Sacombank forward success.

2015 PERFORMANCE

2016 PLAN
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PERFORMANCE
RESULTS

2015

(*)

Sacombank has focused on expanding operational scale,
investing in branch network and technology to provide banking
and financial services to customers of all segments. As a result,
it obtained the break-through results to enhance competition
and win market share. This objective was executed with detailed
timeline in line with the strategy of the government and the
State Bank of Vietnam in restructuring the banking system.

In 2015, Sacombank recorded sterling performance and marked key
milestones to lay firm foundation for next development period 2016 - 2020.

(*) According to Separate Statements
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total assets increased by
53.9% from the start of 2015

290,364
VND BILLION

Total assets and Equity
Asset growth (period 2011 - 2015)
(Unit: billion)
Total Assets

% growth

YTD

53.9%
-1.2%

8%

5.9%

17.8%

2012

8,888

101,687
28,508

160,170

151,282
11,145

140,137
-1,662
2011

188,678

290,364

2013

2014

2015

Notes:
»» Figures in 2012 - 2014 period are those before merging.
»» Figures in 2015 are those after merging as per Decision
No.1844/QD-NHNN.

Growth of deposits from business entities and
individuals (2011 - 2015)
(Unit: billion)
Deposits from business
entities and individuals
32.3%

% growth

YTD

20%

23.7%

59.6%

-15%

2014

96,894

162,534

2013

31,106

131,428

2012

21,915

109,513

2011

26,746

(14,638)

82,767

259,428

2015

As at 31 December 2015, total assets reached VND 290,364
billion, representing a 53.9% increase from the start of 2015
(Without merger, total assets grew 18.2% or 133.1% of plan).
Earning assets increased by 39.8% compared to the beginning
(without merger, it grew 12.5%).
Equity stood at VND 21,663 billion or grew 21.7% from beginning
of the year, in which chartered capital reached VND 18,852 billion,
increasing by 51.7% from beginning of the year or equivalent to
VND 6,427 billion. The chartered capital made up 87% of equity
to shape a strong capital structure.

CAPITAL MOBILIZATION
Deposits grew stably. Sacombank mainly focused on individual
customers. The low-cost mobilized capital improved. The ratio of
more than 12-month term deposits was reasonably adjusted by
interest rate tool in alignment with the capital use structure.
As at 31 December 2015, total deposits obtained VND 264,763
billion. It increased by 57.7% since beginning of the year. Without
merger, it grew 19.7%, equivalent to 134.7% of plan. Deposits
from business entities and individuals achieved VND 259,428
billion, representing a 59.6% increase since beginning of the
year. Without merger, it grew 20.3%, equivalent to 126.6% of
plan. It made up 98% of total deposits (from 96.8%). The market
share of deposits increased from 3.67% to 5.12% by the early
year. Deposit structure remained reasonable. VND deposits
accounted for 95.2%. Term deposits made up 87% while retail
deposits made up 87.7% to comply with the retail banking
strategy.
Sacombank received a loan valued at USD 50 million, equivalent
to VND 1,094.5 billion from Cathay United Bank to finance the
mid- and long-term credit activities. This proved the positive
perception of foreign financial institutions about long-term
sustainable development of Sacombank after merger.
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CREDIT ACTIVITIES
Sacombank has applied flexible methods in retail
lending, focusing on the preferential sectors of
the government. This aims at gaining the efficient
loan growth, reducing risks and contributing to the
economic growth.
As at 31 December 2015, total loans reached VND
195,735 billion, representing a 50% increase from
beginning of the year. Without merger, total loans
increased by 17.4%; if beginning balance includes
the merged number, the increase will be 12.5%,
reaching 96.1% of the key target assigned by SBV.
Loans to customers obtained VND 180,593 billion
or an increase of 45% from the early year. Without
merger, loans to customers grew 12.5%. Market
share of loans increased from 3.14% at the beginning
of the year to 3.88% at year-end. This growth was
mainly attributed to mid- and long-term VND loans
to individual customers. Loans denominated in VND

accounted for 95.6%, mid- and long-term loans made
up 63% and individual loans made up 48.9%.
Loans:
Sacombank has constantly strengthened credit quality
control, preventing overdue/non-performing loans
arisen. However, due to the restructuring after the
merger, Sacombank carried out a reassessment of the
entire portfolio of outstanding debts of the merging entity
in order to have mechanisms and solutions to resolve.
As a result, the NPL rate highly increased (5.85%).
In 2015, Sacombank resolved VND 2,209 billion
of non-performing loans and collected VND 1,023
billion debts sold to VAMC (the principal was
VND 915 billion and interest was VND 108 billion),
totaling non-performing loans after selling to VAMC to
VND 1,157 billion.

195

Total loans reached VND
Growth of loans to business entities and individuals (2011 - 2015)
(Unit: billion)
Total Assets

% growth

YTD

,735
billion

45.0%
19.9%

14.6%

15.5%

1.4%

2013

2014

56,017

124,576
16,728

107,848

2012

13,768

94,080
15,631

78,449
1,090
2011

180,593

2015

2.9%

THE NUMBER OF
COMMERCIAL
TRANSACTION
CUSTOMERS

97.1%

Retail banking: 3,015,504 (27.4%)
Corporate banking: 91,037 (10.2%)

was more than

3.1

million
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Services
Sacombank has steadily transformed its business
model to reduce dependence on interest income and
to increase service income. As a result, income from
service accounted for 12.7% in total income or up

2.5% from 2014. In which, service income from retail
banking accounted for 5.4%.

Growth of service income (2011 - 2015)
(Unit: billion)
Income from services

% growth

1.000
786

828

766
623
22.9%

-4.1%

8.1%

20.7%

-20.7%

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

In 2015, reaching up 20.7% on 2014 (excluding merge factor up 19.9%)

Card operations
In 2015, card operations has expanded to garner more
than 690,000 cardholders, bringing the total number of
cardholders to 2.7 millions.
Income from card services reached VND 308 billion, an
increase of 23.6% from the year earlier, accounting for
55.1% in total net income. Profit from card operations
obtained VND 306 billion, representing a 20.8%
increase yoy.
Growth of POS (2011 - 2015)

Growth of ATM (2011 - 2015)

Revenue from card operations in 2015

(Unit: billion)

(Unit: billion)

(Unit: billion)

POS

ATM

% growth

% growth over years

% growth compared to 2014

114,742

5,886

35.6%

56.1%

4,129

4,650
8,406

3,155
30.9%

2,021

12.6%

26.6%
751
14.3%

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2011

780
3.9%

814
4.4%

850
4.4%

935

5,711
2,361

10.0%
35.7%

2012

2013

2014

2015

Credit
card
loans

60.1%

65.2%

Revenue from Revenue
card payment
from
service
POS

34.7%
Revenue
from
ATM
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E-BANKING SERVICES

E-banking services in 2015
% growth compared to 2014
862,718
delegate
payments

116
VND billion

88.2%

176.5%

78.2%

The
number of
IB payment
users

The
number of
delegate
payments

Revenue
from
service

To meet new trend in banking operations on the foundation of
advanced technology, Sacombank has been upgrading the
modern functions of Internet Banking and Mobile Banking. The
Bank has deployed the first applications in Vietnam market such
as card-linked applications and CRM applications (eLC - trade
finance transactions via Internet Banking). Hence, Sacombank
E-banking has achieved new milestones in its operations.

523,433
users

523,433

IB payment
users
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International Payment Operations

International payment operations in 2015
% growth compared to 2014

7.519
million USD

9.8%
Revenue from
international
payment service

Sacombank International Payment Operations has represented
the positive results. Revenue from international payment
increased by 28% mainly thanks to individual money transfer
for overseas study, healthcare treatment, immigration... to affirm
the advantages of Sacombank in retail banking. Productivity of
international payment was significantly improved with the number
of processed documents increasing by 16%.

321
VND billion

11.6%
Revenue
from service

Revenue from
international
payment service

7,519
MILLION USD

Domestic Payment Operations
IT applications were steadily improved in 2015 (automatic
scorecard, tracer import, adjustment from Citad to Core T24,
E-learning to forecast the risks relating to tellers and controllers...).
As a result, Sacombank minimized risks and increased
productivity in domestic payment operations.

REVENUE FROM
DOMESTIC
PAYMENT SERVICE

6,398,120
VND BILLION

Domestic payment operations in 2015
% growth compared to 2014

6,398,120
VND billion

Revenue from
domestic payment
service

14.6%

367
VND billion

19.9%

Revenue
from service
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31,063

VND BILLION

Total investment value

Investment
In 2015, Vietnam’s economy witnessed the positive signals
including GDP growth of 6.5%, marking the highest in recent
5 years and inflation decreasing 0.6% yoy. Stock market was
significantly influenced by global oil price, Chinese stock market
crash and exchange rate fluctuations... The effective Circular
No.36/2014/TTNHNN by the State Bank of Vietnam on capital
adequacy and liquidity of credit institution and foreign bank
branches has exposed the negative effects on stock investment
lending.

0.4%
12.3%

Structure
of securities
investment

87.3%

Trading securities
Investment securities
Capital contribution, long-term investment

In addition, Vietnam completed negotiations and signed in Free
Trade Agreements such as Trans-Pacific Partnership (TPP).
The government also issued regulations to support the market.
As end 2015, VN-Index reached 579 points or rose 6.1% while
HNX-Index gained 82.98 points or a decline of 3.64% from a year
earlier.
Sacombank has complied with the law and internal regulations
to ensure safe and efficient investment. At the same time, the
Bank released the prompt decisions of boosting investment of
debt securities, especially government bonds and the State
Bank of Vietnam (SBV) bills to ensure flexibility and liquidity. The
Bank continued compensating the ineffective investments and
taking back investments after deliberate evaluation of investment
portfolio.
As at 31 December 2015, the total investment value of Sacombank
reached over VND 31,063 billion, including trading securities of
nearly VND 125 billion, investment securities of over VND 27,114
billion and capital contribution, long-term investment of VND
3,824 billion. The investment activities in 2015 contributed to the
total income of the Bank nearly VND 71 billion.
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2,937

VND BILLION

Profit before risk provision

Profit before tax
Profit before tax (2011-2015)

Profit before risk provision was VND 2,937 billion. Profit before tax
arrived at VND 698 billion (Without merger, it was over VND 1,800
billion), decreasing by 75.5% from a year earlier, equivalent to
VND 69.7% of plan (According to the extraordinary meeting
Resolution, it was VND 1,002 billion)

(Unit: billion)
Profit before tax

% growth
2,838

2,740

13.0%

1,315

2,851

115.9%
0.5%

-52.0%
2011

2012

698
-75.5%

2013

2014

2015

Note:
»» Figures in 2011 - 2014 period are those before merging.
»» Figures in 2015 period are those after merging as per Decision
No.1844/QD-NHNN.

Profit before tax declined in 2015.This is explained that in the first
period after merger, Sacombank had to stabilize its operations,
restructuring the assets - liabilities, dealing with non-performing
loans and increasing loan provision and increased loan loss
provision during the implementation of restructuring project after
merging to ensure safe and sustainable development.

Operational safety
Capital Adequacy
Indicators

Regulated

31/12/2015

>=9%

9.51%

Mid and long-term loans/short-term capital

<=60%

31.29%

3

Capital contribution ratio and Share Purchase

<=40%

19.94%

4

Fixed-asset investment ratio

<=50%

39.23%

5

Credit on total deposit

<=80%

70%

6

Government bond investment on short-term capital

<=35%

10.03%

1

Capital Adequacy Ratio (Separated)

2

Sacombank has always met the capital adequacy ratios and
surpassed the regulations of the State Bank of Vietnam. Capital
Adequacy Ratio (CAR) was maintained at 9.51% to ensure optimal
operations. The 30-day liquidity provision ratios and coverage
ratios were retained above the minimum ratios stipulated by the
State Bank of Vietnam.
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KEY INDICATORS

Capital

290,364

(Unit: billion)

290,364
TOTAL ASSETS

18,852

VND BILLION

Chartered
capital

Total assets

Business result
(Unit: billion)

259,428

264,763

Deposit from
business
entities and
individuals

Total
deposits

195,735
180,593

Overdue loan: 6.41%
Non-performing loan: 5.85%
ROE: 2.72%
roa: 0.22%
698

1,000

Profit
before tax

Revenue
from
service

7,869
Total
income

Customer
loan

Total loans
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Safety

TOP

10

“ASEAN STRONG
BRAND FOR
SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT 2015”

EFFICIENCY

SUSTAINABILITY
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Operational management

Sacombank has enhanced management to implement business
plan in 2015 to ensure the growth target. It has improved
operational
network,
strengthened
and
leveraged
on technology infrastructure to meet the diversified
management requirements. The results included:

1

Sustainable deposit growth

Deposits grew stably in conformity with business requirements of Sacombank through
the preferential policies, promotion programs, bonus programs and internal emulation.
It also fostered relationships with financial institutions to remain trust funds to meet loan
demand for each period.

2

Selective credit growth

Sacombank enhanced diversified and retail lending to Small and Medium Enterprises
(SMEs) and launched programs to connect banks with enterprises. The Bank continued
providing loans to major distributors such as distributors of Coca Cola, Carlsberg and
other partners for loans of automobile purchase and real estate... In addition, Sacombank
regularly adjusted policies, products and fees flexibly and properly in line with market
swings and facilitate loan growth.

3

Solving structured loans and non-performing loans
(including loans sold to VAMC)

Sacombank regularly alerted risks and prevented risks by supervising and reviewing
its activities. It focused on settling overdue debts, non-performing loans. The Bank also
followed up and listed out the overdue loans and doubtful debts to analyze the reasons,
thus proposing proper solutions to push the debt collection process. Sacombank
collaborated with the Bidding Center to sign the contract of bidding assets to refund...
As a result, non-performing loans (excluding merger factor) were retained at 0.74%.
However, Sacombank conducted a reassessment of the outstanding debt portfolio of the
merging unit right after the merger in order to have a thorough solution in accordance
with the restructuring plan, resulting in a NPL ratio of 5,85%. Total collection of debts sold
to VAMC attained 267% of target.
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4

	Facilitating service supply

Sacombank built and improved the key projects
(Internet Banking). It also enhanced collaboration with
the Groups/Corporations (electricity, water and tax) to
deploy appropriate promotions to source diversified
customers. It increased non-cash payments to
save over-the-counter transaction fees (Online
tax payment, XOOM overseas money transfer). In
addition, customer service was conducted for each
segment to re-connect with ex-customers so as to
enhance cross selling.

5

	Diversifying products and 		
	services
The Bank utilized the extensive network, customer
database and modern technology to research and
develop the packaged products and services in
line with market trend and appetite of customers
(Combo of products and services, government bond
retail buying/selling...). Primarily, these products
and services have added value and advantages for
customers to create new investment channels for
customers having idling money.

6

	Promoting network efficiency

Sacombank has periodically reviewed and evaluated
the operational performance to release solutions
to support and improve the transaction offices. As
a result, business scale of transaction offices was
enlarged to increase their contribution portion to entire
system. Deposit proportion increased by 1.8%, loan
proportion grew 5.7% and profit before tax increased
by 3.8% from a year earlier.

7

	Enhancing organizational 		
restructure

Sacombank continued restructuring its organizational
chart to promote sales force with risk management.
Sacombank also released the Operational Regulations
of transaction offices and implemented the Onedoor Transaction Model, Potential Transaction
Office Model, Standard Transaction Office Model to
promote its productivity and increase the contribution
of transaction offices in all indicators.

8

	Efficient COST MANAGEMENT

Management cost plan was regularly reviewed,
evaluated and reported, so as to cut the wasteful
expenses. Management cost was tightly scheduled
at units, enhancing the solutions to gain income and
utilize the premises.

9

	Information technology 		
investment

Given the modern information technology, Sacombank
has kept up with the advanced applications, core
systems to foster efficiency and readiness in resource
allocation... Additionally, Sacombank has actively
allocated IT resource and human resource to ensure
timely project deployment, thus applying information
technology in products and services, improving
processes, enhancing the working productivity of all
employees and banking modernization. Key projects
such as E-Banking Phase 3, Trust Fund Management
Phase 2, Debt Management Phase 2, Debt Securities
Portfolio
Management,
Corporate
Customer
Management Phase 1 and Online Tax Payment...
were golive. T24 deployment for mergered units was
commenced.

10

	Fostering communications 		
activities

Sacombank enhanced both internal and external
communications. In 2015, Sacombank received
4 international awards and 16 domestic awards,
remarkably Top 5 Bank of Best Communications
Activities 2015. Sacombank Standard Model was
applied in the entire system to ensure “Satisfied
Customers - Successful Sacombank” and received
positive feedback from customers.
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Reporting the merger at Sacombank

Southern Bank was merged into Sacombank to
achieve long-term and sustainable development
after deliberate research of market opportunities
and adequate understanding of internal capacities
of both banks. In the other hand, the voluntary
merger between Sacombank and Southern Bank
complied with strategy of the government and the
State Bank of Vietnam.

The economy has contained mix of advantages
and disadvantages. Integration gets extensive and
intensive. Competition becomes fierce. Given these
factors, it becomes prudential that credit organizations
should restructure and collaborate each other to
utilize business network and competitive advantages.
At the same time, banking restructure is one of the
strategies stipulated by the government and the
State Bank of Vietnam with an aim of restructuring
and stabilizing the economy and banking system to
enhance safety and sustainability. As a result, the
number of banks is brought down, yet the scale and
quality is improved.
Taking chances and challenges of the economy,
especially understanding the internal capacities of

both banks, Sacombank and Southern Bank decided
to cooperate through merger to develop long-term
and sustainably. The voluntary merger of Southern
Bank into Sacombank also complied with the strategy
of the government and the State Bank of Vietnam.
After the successful merger, the operational
network was expanded. As at 31 December 2015,
Sacombank had 563 transactions points, in which,
552 transaction points locating in Vietnam (109
branches, 432 transaction offices and 11 savings
funds), 3 transactions points in Laos (one 100% stateowned bank and 2 transaction counters). In addition,
Sacombank has 4 different subsidiaries in various
sectors to provide diversified products and services
to market.
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Branch network post merger:

VIETNAM

552

563
TRANSACTION
POINTS

TRANSACTION POINTS (109 branches, 432
transaction offices and 11 savings funds)

61

Hanoi city:
transaction points (12 branches, 45 transaction offices and 4
savings funds)

38 transaction points (10 branches, 28 transaction offices)
Northern Central: 47 transaction points (9 branches, 38 transaction offices)
South Central & Highlands: 52 transaction points (11 branches, 39 transaction

Northern:

offices and 2 savings funds)

95 transaction points (14 branches, 81 transaction offices)
East HCM City: 87 transaction points (16 branches, 68 transaction offices and

West HCM City:

2 savings funds)

59 transaction points (11 branches, 47 transaction offices and

East Southern:
1 savings funds)

113 transaction points (26 branches, 85 transaction offices

West Southern:
and 2 savings funds)

3

Laos

TRANSACTION POINTS

(one 100% state-owned bank
and 2 transaction counters)

CAMBODIA

8

TRANSACTION POINTS

(one 100% state-owned bank and
7 transaction counters)
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Directions for units
before and after merger

After merger, all activities of Sacombank remained
stable. Number of customers increased. Products
and services were deployed consistently and
abundantly. Branches and transaction offices were
operated with 3 key pillars of Business - Support
- Risk Control. Business Line and Support Line
were improved. Risk Control Line was enhanced
and supplemented. Primarily, human resource was
prepared and risk control tools were supplied at risk
management units.
In 2016, Sacombank will continue improving the
organizational structure and human resource at the
merged units, retaining the united model, focusing
on training to provide skillful employees to meet the

operational demand after integrating Core for the
entire system.
As for information technology, data transfer and
operation after merger remained stable and safe. It
is expected to complete the transfer and integration
of Core within the 1st quarter of 2016.
The internal process and regulations in corporate
governance, risk management, reward emulation
and business plan were implemented to all
post-merged units. However, these regulations will
be continuously reviewed, evaluated, amended and
supplemented in line with strategy in all stages.
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After merger, all activities of Sacombank
remained stable. Number of customers
increased. Products and services were deployed
consistently and abundantly. Branches and
transaction offices were operated with 3 key
pillars of Business - Support - Risk Control.
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43,000

55,000

VND BILLION
deposit from
promotion
programs

individual customers
registered Online
tax payment

11,238

processed credit
documents

Retail banking
In 2015, retail banking recorded the sterling performance:
Corporate banking

12.3%

Retail banking

51.1%

42.4%

»» Deposit, loans and net income from services (without merger)
grew respectively 21%, 29% and 30%.

»» Promotion programs to mobilize capital attracted approximately
VND 43,000 billion with 43% of new deposits.

»» Deployed 10 packages of preferential loans to retail customers
87.7%

48.9%

Deposits

Loans

57.6%
Revenue from service

Proportion of deposits, loans and revenue from services in 2015
of 2 segments of Retail banking and Corporate banking.

Adding

25

for business, consumption, house purchase/renovation with
total limit of VND 35,100 billion.

»» Successfully built the XOOM overseas money payment

application with online and automatic money payment system.
Sacombank became the first and the only bank integrating
system to transfer money from foreign accounts to domestic
accounts within 5 minutes.

»» Improved the current products and services, developed
functions on
Internet Banking
and Mobile Banking

new products including Lucky Savings, Overseas Study
Financial Package, and Flexible Financial Solution Package...
Sacombank became one of the first banks to develop the
Phone Register Service to reduce the pressure of over-thecounter transaction as well as to diversify the customer service
channels.
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Corporate Banking
Corporate banking

Deposits

Loans

Revenue from service

Retail banking

14.5%

10.8%

16.6%

Growth of deposits, loans and corporate banking service income
grew respectively +14%, +11% and +4% (without merger). The
growth was attributed to the flexible and wise business strategy
to ensure safe and sound performance.

21.4%

29.0%

29.7%

Growth of deposits, loans and revenue from services in 2015
of 2 segments of Retail banking and Corporate banking
(excluding the merger factor, debts sale to VAMC).

In 2015, Sacombank launched 10 preferential loan packages
with total fund of VND 25,700 billions and USD 130 millions to
support the enterprises to overcome difficulties, thus enhancing
loans and reputation of Sacombank.
Sacombank cooperated with the General Department of Taxation
to deploy the Online Tax Payment service to comply with the
direction of the Government in enhancing the management and
administrative process improvement in tax compliance.
Sacombank is also the first bank to deploy this service from
May 2015. The Bank became Top 2 Bank in terms of number
of transactions and registered customers. Tax payment amount
reached VND 3,500 billion and approximately 55,000 businesses
registered.
Sacombank deployed UPAS product effectively to meet customer
demand to stop the decline of USD balance and earned VND 22
billion of service income.

Credit operations
Credit activities at Sacombank have
been attaching with risk management
to ensure stable credit growth to
comply with the State Bank of Vietnam
regulations. Sacombank controlled the
ratio of overdue loans on non-performing
loans within the limit. It also enhanced
the diversified loans and shaped the loan
portfolio based on risk separation in terms
of loan structure (by sector, industries
and customer groups).

»» In 2015, the number of processed credit documents arrived at
11,238 documents or an increase of 754 documents.

»» All credit documents were reviewed and monitored based on

approval compliance. Sacombank regularly alerted and fixed
the shortcomings to reduce risk and increase safety in credit
activities.

»» Enhance direct review and evaluation of customers to support

and consult the credit approval safely, promptly and timely.
Sacombank regularly holds the conferences with government
agencies (Ministry of Justice) to update changes or related
regulations in credit approval.

»» Sacombank deployed the model of “Credit Documentation
Management” at Head Quarter to monitor all steps from loan
apply, loan appraisal and loan approval. This model will be
adapted to the entire system with flexible scale and process.
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ASSET STRUCTURE ANALYSIS

Sacombank retained its reasonable Assets - Liabilities structure. It also forecasted the
interest rate fluctuations to prevent risks of interest rate and interest term.
Asset Structure represented good move as the deposit from corporate entities and
individuals increased its proportion in total assets of 89.3% in 2015 from 86.1% in 2014.
Given the uncertainty of financial market, interbank activities and investment in stock
market became less dynamic. The contribution of interbank activities and stock investment
made up 1.6% and 9.7% respectively in total assets. Loans to customers accounted for
more than 62.2% of total assets and played key in earning assets. Sacombank focused on
diversified and retail mid- and long-term loans. These loans are stable and highly efficient
to obtain the major income (accounting for 8.7% of total assets). These loans required
regular monitoring and evaluation of debt recovery thus releasing optimal solutions.
Sacombank has restructured its Assets - Liabilities portfolio. In coming time, Sacombank
will restructure loan portfolio and handling bad receivables, the backlog loans to increase
the earning assets, improving the asset portfolio healthy, safe and sound.
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2015 performance
2016 plan

Sacombank subsidiaries actively forecasted the market trend to smoothly
collaborate with parent bank. They paid attention to the key business activities
such as cross-selling the products and managing risks to remain stable in
business performance thus contributing to business results of parent bank.

878

vnd billion

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Total employees

16,485

292,033

employees

vnd
billion

total assets

stable in business performance thus contributing to
business results of parent bank.

In 2015, the regional and domestic economy reported
positive signals. USD price jumped compared to other
currencies. Gold price fluctuated. Interest margin
was under expected. These factors have influenced
the business performance. However, Sacombank
subsidiaries actively forecasted the market trend to
smoothly collaborate with parent bank. They paid
attention to the key business activities such as crossselling the products and managing risks to remain

According to accumulated financial reports, as at 31
December 2015, total assets of Sacombank reached
VND 292,033 billion, representing a 53.9% increase
from the beginning of the year (after merger). Profit
before tax achieved VND 878 billion. Total employees
of Sacombank and other subsidiaries stood at 16,485.

Human resource growth over years (2011-2015)

Total asset growth over years (2011-2015)

Profit before tax growth over years (2011-2015)

CONSOLIDATED DATA (unit: employees)

CONSOLIDATED DATA (unit: VND billion)

CONSOLIDATED DATA (unit: VND billion)

30.8%

2011

2012

2013

53.9%

2014

2011

2012

2013

-4.5%

17.6%

2014

-50.6%

-68.9%

2015

2011

2012

878

1,368

189,803

161,378

152,119

141,469

16,485
2015

116.4%
8.2%

292,033

-7.2%

8.1%

6.1%

% growth

2,826

7.5%

12,608

2.9%

11,662

11,334

9,596

12.8%

18.1%

Profit before tax

% growth

2,961

Total assets

% growth

2,771

Number of employees

2013

2014

2015
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Business performance in 2015
Charter capital
(VND billion)

Subsidiaries

Profit before tax in 2015
(VND billion)

% Plan

Sacombank Asset Management (Sacombank-SBA)

800

87.2

101.9%

Sacombank Leasing (Sacombank-SBL)

300

76

100.4%

Sacombank Jewelry (Sacombank-SBJ)

250

-10.1

-

15

3.6

35%

783.3

40.81

107.9%

819

39.56

94.2%

Sacombank Remittance (Sacombank-SBR)
Sacombank Cambodia Plc. (Cambodia)
Sacombank Lao Branch

Performance of Subsidiaries
and Foreign Associates

Profit before tax of Sacombank-SBA (2011-2015)
(Unit: billion)
Profit before tax

% growth
415%
9.6%

2011

14.9%

2012

2013

2014

87.2

75.9

69.2

-87.8%

13.4

110.6

15.2%

2015

Sacombank Asset Management
(Sacombank-SBA)
The core business of Sacombank-SBA is warehouse leasing, with
total capacity of nearly 100%. In 2015, revenue from warehouse
leasing accounted for more than 75% of total revenue. Other
services such as collateral asset management, asset valuation,
and document verification... were offered mainly to the parent
bank. Despite that, revenue from these services has significantly
contributed to the profit of the Company. In 2015, SacombankSBA turned in a profit before tax of VND 87.2 billion or 101.9%
of target and an increase of VND 11.3 billion from previous year.

Sacombank Leasing (Sacombank-SBL)
Financial leasing loans of Sacombank-SBL (2011-2015)
(Unit: billion)
Financial leasing loans

% growth

16.6%

25%

2011

2012

2013

2014

1,426

1,236

2.6%

989

964

966

-0.2%

15.4%

2015

The business of financial leasing faced with many challenges in
2015 due to the economic slowdown. The falling consumption
loan interest rate, added to other challenges have adversely
impacted financial performance of SBL. Sacombank took steps
to re-direct its business direction, in restructuring the leasing
portfolio with flexible and suitable services for different markets.
Flexible interest rate in alignment with market fluctuations was
extended to existing customers. As a result, financial leasing
loans grew, thereby maintaining the income and facilitated
the implementation of business plan for next year. In addition,
appropriate risk management principles were applied to limit the
overdue loans.

61
2015 performance
2016 plan

Profit before tax of Sacombank-SBL (2011-2015)
(Unit: billion)
Profit before tax

% growth

42.9%

73.7

78.1

81.6
75
2011

2012

2013

2014

-2.7%

In 2015, Sacombank-SBL achieved the profit before tax of VND
76 billion or 100.4% of plan. Financial leasing loans obtained
VND 1,426 billion, up 15.4% from the beginning of the year.
Overdue loans were strictly controlled. Non-performing loans was
1.1% of total loans. SBL is recognized as a leader in controlling
non-performing loans in financial leasing sector.

76

6.0%
-9.8%

8.8%

2015

Sacombank Remittance (Sacombank-SBR)
Due to the fierce competition in the money
transfer space, forex tightening policy, anti
money-laundering
and
internal
restructure,
Sacombank-SBR grew slowly compared to the year
earlier. Remittance revenue at Sacombank-SBR

stood at USD 715.4 million, down USD 335.6 million
yoy. Profit before tax reached VND 3.6 billion. This
result was attributed to the declining revenue and
its cost to settle the remaining problems and to
invest in new equipment for next years.

Remittance revenue at Sacombank-SBR (2011-2015)

Profit before tax of Sacombank-SBR (2011-2015)

(Unit: USD million)

(Unit: VND billion)

2012

2013

23.1%

34.7%

24.1%

2014

2015

2011

2012

-80.6%

18.7

3.6

11.2

715

15

-31.9%
1,051

-2.6%

930

955

894

6.8%

% growth

67.6%

13%

9.1

46.2%

2011

Profit before tax

% growth

Remittance revenue

2013

2014

2015

Sacombank Jewelry (Sacombank-SBJ)
Sacombank-SBJ has focused on organizational
restructure and liquidating the overdue assets,
cutting investment, narrowing its operations and
terminating operation of its subsidiary of SBJC
in Cambodia... Only until the last 6 months,
Sacombank-SBJ launched new products at jewelry
stores in alignment with market trend. Despite
late deployment, Sacombank-SBJ stores obtained
significant revenue to cover loss for SacombankSBJ in 2015. Even that, Sacombank-SBJ reported a
loss of VND 10.1 billion at end 2015.

In 2016, Sacombank-SBJ will enhance its
business performance by launching new products,
diversifying jewelry products, establishing new
retail stores and applying various promotions to
push sales... At the same time, Sacombank will
increase the frequency of re-examine and supervise
the business operations, enhancing security to
protect assets. It will allocate business targets for
branches and offices to promote work productivity
and to ensure an income to cover operating costs.
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Sacombank Cambodia PLC.
In 2015, Cambodian economy and
politics were getting stable. Economic
growth was estimated at 7% due to the
explosion of construction in general
and real estate in particular. As a result,
credit growth jumped to 28%, total
deposits grew approximately 18.9%.
Profit before tax of Sacombank Cambodia Plc (2011-2015)
(Unit: USD thousand)
Profit before tax

% growth
149.1%

131.6%

8.7%

2011

2012

2013

2014

1,865

1,715

688

1,508

3,108

-51.5%

-54.3%

2015

Sacombank Lao
On 3rd August 2015, Laos Branch
was updated into Sacombank 100%
wholy-owned subsidiary. In 2015, Laos
government applied the policy to tighten
the economy to resolve the budget and
commercial deficit. In parallel, Bank of
the Lao P.D.R implemented solutions to
strictly supervise the banking sector,
resulting in difficulties for banking
sector and Sacombank Lao. Apart from
objective factors, the preparedness to
convert Sacombank Lao into wholyProfit before tax of Sacombank Lao (2011-2015)
(Unit: USD thousand)
Profit before tax

% growth

209.8%

2012

2013

2014

-13.1%

1,751

2,607

2,070

1,484
2011

-22.7%

2,014

26.0%
39.5%

2015

Business performance of residents and enterprises
gained positive signals to support banking
performance. Thanks to that, Sacombank Cambodia
Plc. developed in scale and efficiency. Total assets
reached USD 160.6 million, representing a 5.8%
increase or USD 8.8 million from a year earlier. Total
deposits reached approximately USD 118 million, in
which deposits from business entities and individuals
reached USD 53.2 million, equivalent to an increase
of 14.6% or up USD 6.8 million from the beginning
of the year. Loans to customers reached USD 110.4
million or increase of USD 5.2 million (or up 5%). As for
operational efficiency, service income of Sacombank
Cambodia Plc. grew 69.1% yoy. Profit before tax
obtained USD 1.86 million, increasing by USD 0.1
million or up 8.7% and accomplished 107.9% of plan.
In 2015, Sacombank Cambodia Plc. did not open
new transaction points and focused on improving
and strengthening the current 7 branches. As a
result, scale and efficiency of branches improved and
contributed to the general operation of Sacombank
Cambodia Plc.

owned subsidiary and other primary investment cost
for conversion resulted in under-expected business
results of Sacombank Lao in 2015.
At year end, total assets of Sacombank Lao reached
USD 118.9 million, increasing by USD 12 million (or up
11.2%) from the beginning of the year. Total deposits
obtained USD 72.8 million, in which deposits from
business entities and individuals reached USD 41.1
million, decreasing by USD 3 million (down 6.7%)
from the early year. Loans to customers stood at USD
66.2 million, decreasing by USD 2.8 million (down
4%). The credit fees improved, yet income from
interest was low, resulting in profit before tax of USD
1.75 million, decreasing by USD 0.3 million (down
13.1%) from a year earlier and fulfilled 94.2% of plan.
This result represented the effort of Sacombank Lao
in strengthening and developing market share stably
after conversion.
Sacombank Lao network consists of 1 Head Office
and 2 transaction counters. In 2016, Sacombank Lao
will study the market to open new transaction points
to capture market share.
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In general, given the uncertainty of domestic and global economy,
subsidiaries and foreign associates have actively researched and
forecasted market swings to apply reasonable business solutions,
thus affirming Sacombank’s position. At the same time, some
units focused on restructuring and settling the backlog short
comings, resulting in below expected business results. In 2016, the
subsidiaries and associates will strive and put effort to improve all
business performance and increase efficiency to contribute to the
success of the parent bank.
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ACHIEVEMENTS

In 2015, despite difficulties and challenges,
Sacombank strived to obtain important
achievements that mark its development
milestones to lay the foundation for
further success.

04

AWARDS FROM FOREIGN
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

16

DOMESTIC
AWARDS
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1

Successful merger brought Sacombank to new heights and the Bank is in top five largest
banks in Vietnam. The merger also helped increase the number of transaction points and
promoted Sacombank potential. The branch expansion became more advantageous
as the State Bank of Vietnam tend to limit the number of new branches and transaction
offices.

2

The conversion of Sacombank Lao Branch into wholly-owned bank has strongly affirmed
Sacombank’s position in regional market;

3

Business performance was enhanced. Mobilized capital jumped. Deposit structure
improved by diversifying deposit terms to utilize pricing advantages, facilitate liquidity
and capital adequacy indicators. Sacombank also enhanced its collaboration with
foreign financial institutions. Credit grew relatively with reasonable margin. Income from
service increased, in which, the modern banking services such as ATM and eBanking
targeted new customers and contributed to the income structure. The branch network
improved with more scaled transaction offices;

4

Non-performing loan management and risk management were strictly monitored.
Self-control and self-review at units were improved. The application of standard model
has upgraded awareness in complying regulations at units thus limiting risks;

5

Sacombank deducted provision swiftly and adequately to support operational analysis
and evaluation on the basis of deliberation to facilitate stable business development;

6

Modern banking transactions (card, eBanking) were fundamentally invested to win
reputation on the market;

7

Sacombank pioneered in successfully deploying the modern services such as
Sacombank Eshop, MobilePos, eLC Service (commercial finance transactions via
Internet Banking). The Bank also set up a new platform for government bond investors;

8

Sacombank has been in the top Vietnamese bank in term of card operations. Besides,
Sacombank was the first bank to officially implement the Online Tax Payment service
in May 2015 and became the Top 2 bank in term of the number of transactions and
registered customers;

9

Sacombank received 4 outstanding international awards and 16 domestic awards.
Especially, some credit ratings remained the outlook on long-term rating of Sacombank
“stable” after deliberated appraisal.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AT SACOMBANK

2015
witnessed
serial
improvements
in
risk
management of Sacombank.
Sacombank became one of the
first 10 financial institutions
chosen by the State Bank
of Vietnam (SBV) to deploy
the Basel II. This is the risk
management standard which
has been applied by most of
advanced financial institutions
worldwide. Sacombank also
deployed series of activities
to upgrade risk management
system.
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GAP evaluation between current situation at Sacombank and Basel II standards
was conducted. Sacombank also set up the internal schedule to apply Basel II.
“How is risk management at Sacombank compared
to international best standard” was the question that
Sacombank sought answer to position itself. As a
result, Sacombank established the project team to
evaluate the gap between its current risk management
in comparison with Basel II. This was considered the
key project to approach Basel II application.
Basel II Project Team was set up with 36 excellent
members from departments and directed by the
Board of Directors and Board of Management.
The Project Team collaborated with experienced
experts to work non-stop for 3 months to appraise
and evaluate all operational activities, management
models, products and services... at Sacombank.
The evaluation was conducted comprehensively and
objectively under the support of partners to provide
accurate overview of Sacombank in all elements:
Credit risk, market risk, operational risk, management
risk. The results revealed that Sacombank partially
met the standards stipulated by Basel II. Admittedly
the Bank still remains some disadvantages to be
improved. More so, the evaluation helped define the
process and solutions to improve the disadvantages
and shortcomings.
It is advised that it may take average 6 to 7 years for
banks to successfully apply Basel II, even 10 years
with some banks. Under the schedule stipulated by
the State Bank of Vietnam, at end 2018, or 4 years

from now, all financial institutions must complete
the application of Basel II. This is deemed a huge
challenge for the State Bank of Vietnam and
commercial banks. With Sacombank, from now to
end 2018, it must successfully deploy 33 projects
covering management projects to credit supervision,
transactions, capital management and human
resource... The most important part of these projects
is to prepare the database adequately, accurately
and readily.
In 2015, Sacombank kicked off 10 of 33 small
projects to meet requirement from Basel II. All
departments were ready for planning and execution
to ensure the project timeline in line with current
operation at Sacombank. These projects also comply
with the State Bank of Vietnam regulations. Apart
from implementing Basel II internally, Sacombank
jointly other peers contribute opinions to draft the
Circular of Calculating Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)
under Basel II. Accordingly, Sacombank has been
contributing opinions, discussing and defensing the
content in the draft, aiming at building proper risk
management policy for banking sector. Sacombank
also self-reviewed its internal financial capacities
whether it met the best international standard and
comply with the guidance of the State Bank of
Vietnam. The results revealed that Sacombank met all
strict requirements even from international practice. It
will also put effort to affirm its capacity and position in
new period.
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Organizational structure improved to enhance risk
supervision
At end 2014, Sacombank researched to improve organizational structure to enhance
direct risk management at branches. Accordingly, all branches set up Risk Management
Department to execute 3 key functions:
Credit management: Ensure credit approval at Sacombank comply with regulations of
the State Bank of Vietnam and other internal regulations.
Operational risk management: Supervise and warn risks in all activities of branches
and transaction offices. Risk management was implemented with the rule of preventing
risks to minimize loss.
Debt settlement: Sacombank is aware that settling overdue loans and non-performing
loans is an important feature in 2015 and beyond to correct lending activities, reducing
risks and improving operational efficiency.

Risk management is applied for each
product and service, operational
step aligning with risk management
regulations and process.

By establishing Risk Management Department
at branches, Sacombank has properly
implemented risk management stipulations in
Basel II and other international practice, which
is the Rule “3 Protection Layers”, including:

»» First protection layer: Business units are
Business

responsible for controlling risks from the first
step to stop the customers who contain risks
higher than risk appetite at Sacombank.

»» Second protection layer: Risk management
departments are responsible for setting up
the risk appetite to early warn and supervise
risks.

»» Third protection layer: Internal Audit is
Independent
Evaluation

Risk management was
conducted by Internal Audit to
independently review the setting
up, implementation and operation
of risk management. Internal Audit
also released the requirements for
risk management.

Risk
Management

Establish, maintain and
develop Risk Management
regularly

responsible for auditing the efficiency of
Risk Management at Sacombank to promote
the highest efficiency of Risk Management
System.

These 3 layers certainly do not work
separately. They work consistently and closely
in Risk Management System to collaborate and
support each other to facilitate safe and sound
growth at Sacombank. That also means 3
protection layers are applied consistently and
thoroughly from Head Office to branches.
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Remote supervision
Given the wide network of 563 transaction
points covering Vietnam, Laos and Cambodia,
risk management became a huge challenge for
Sacombank. Risk management must appraise all
transactions happened at the units without impacting
business operations. To overcome the challenge,

Sacombank has implemented the Remote Risk
Management to analyze the transaction, evaluate
information to detect risks. As a result, it could warn
the transacted units, or leaders to swiftly stop and
limit the negative impact to the banking performance.

Improve other activities
Apart from the above mentioned key activities,
Sacombank has implemented series of solutions to
facilitate efficiency of Risk Management, including:

Continuing the above achievements, in 2016,
Sacombank will continue implementing key tasks and
projects in risk management:

»» Educate the awareness of Risk Management:

1.

Concentrate credit approval system: This is the
system to help Sacombank manage, monitor and
approve loans automatically. This system will
help to improve the process and supervise loans
more effectively.

2.

Improve internal credit rating: Sacombank will
continue improving and upgrading its internal
credit rating to ensure more accurate risk
evaluation for each loan.

3.

Deploy Market Risk Management Project: The
project assisted Sacombank standardize the
market risk management under the guidance of
Basel II.

4.

Improve database of risks: All models and
projects need the database for analysis and
operations. Data must be sufficient and correct.

5.

Enhance remote supervision system: Remote
supervision system will continue its development
to help Sacombank detect and stop risks.

6.

Conduct tasks under the process of applying
Basel II to report to the State Bank of Vietnam.

Risk awareness was considered responsibility of
each employee. Sacombank has commenced
training courses to educate knowledge and skills in
managing risks for each position, thus supporting
employees aware their roles in Risk Management.

»» Improve Risk Management System such as
managing operational risk, rating internal credits
and managing transaction limit with partners...

»» Implement seriously and consistently all regulations

of the State Bank of Vietnam such as Circular 02,
Circular 03, draft Circular of Risk Management...

»» Improve products and services, transaction
process and documentation...

By applying consistent risk management solutions for
each transaction, Risk Management of Sacombank
in 2015 has promoted its highest efficiency from
years earlier. Frequency of risk events was cut from
the years earlier. Loss from fraud risks was stopped.
The year 2015 has laid a fundamental foundation for
Basel II application in Sacombank. This was also a
transitional year that Risk Management developed
in right track to contribute for safe operations at
Sacombank.

Given the firm and effective foundation, Sacombank
will continue to improve its Risk Management System
in 2016 and beyond to ensure Sacombank develop
and grow safe and sound.
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DEVELOPMENT PLAN IN 2016

KEY OPERATIONS AND
MISSION
In compliance with general
direction of the government
and the State Bank of
Vietnam together with
implementation of Merger
Project and Development
Strategy 2020, Sacombank
set its goals of “Improved
Operation - Enhanced
Foundation - Sustainable
Development”

2016

To ensure the social and economic development in 2016, the
State Bank of Vietnam will continue managing the monetary
policy flexibly, actively in alignment with financial policy and
other macro economic policies to:

»» Control inflation of below 5%, stabilize macro economy and

support economic growth at 6.7% to boost export growth of 10%.

»» Total expenditure surges 16%-18% and credit rises 18-20%;
Focus on credit quality.

»» Actively apply market solutions to manage forex market, gold
market to restrain dollarization.

»» Enhance non-cash payment; Continue solutions in the

process of restructuring financial institutions and settling
non-performing loans
in compliance with the Projects
approved by the government; enhance settlement
non-performing loan in line with market mechanism; Research
and improve the VAMC model...
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In compliance with general direction of the government and the State Bank of Vietnam together with
implementation of Merger Project and Development Strategy to 2020, Sacombank set its goals of:

IMPROVED OPERATION

ENHANCED FOUNDATION

1.

Strictly follow up the agenda and timeline of
Merger Project; Improve the system postmerger to ensure stable performance; Enhance
implementation and evaluation of Standard Model
application in all units.

2.

Dramatically implement IT projects under
schedule; Focus on key projects. Enhance
reviewing and supervising the integration of Core
system under standard Core to facilitate the
smooth operation and develop consistent
products.

3.

Enhance business operations to expand
market share, especially in the industries
benefiting from TPP (textile, leather shoes, seafood
and wood...).

4.

Grow deposits stably to aim at diversifying
deposits, focusing on the low-interest deposits
and medium-and long-term deposits to ensure
liquidity and enlarge the interest margin.

5.

Diversifying loans and focus on the less risky
sectors and industries in line with the direction
of the State Bank of Vietnam.

6.

Regularly monitor to timely report credit
outstanding
balance
and
forecast
non-performing loans. Collect overdue debts, bad
debt restrain non-performing loans of below 3%.
Focus on collecting debts sales to VAMC and
settling the collateral assets.

SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

7.

Steadily increase income from services; focus
on the retail banking by applying advanced
technology: ATM, online banking service, Mobile
Banking and Premium banking.

8.

Research to appraise and evaluate the
situation of transaction points; Offer
dramatically solutions to handle the ineffective
offices; Restructure the organizational network
and open new transaction offices in 2016.

9.

Deal with receivables; Cut non-profiting items;
Increase income and restrain risk provision
cost.

10.

Enhance collecting overdue debt and
non-performing loans, settling collateral
assets. Improve credit quality to ensure capital
using efficiency.

11.

Manage and control operating cost. Issue
cost menu in line with actual requirement
and market price.

12.

Push comprehensive training for merged
units; Educate awareness of legal
compliance
and
risk
management
for
employees,
associating
interests
to
responsibilities.
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DEVELOPMENT PLAN IN 2016
(continued)

Key financial indicators

Total assets

Equity

323,800

23,000

Total deposits

Total loans

VND billion
Grew 11% yoy

295,200

VND billion,
Grew 12%

VND billion
Grew 3% yoy

225,100

VND billion,
Grew 15%

Deposits from business entities and individuals
of VND 291,500 billion or up 12%

Loans to business entities and individuals of
VND 209,200 billion or up 16%

Net income

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

VND billion
In which service income achieved
VND 1,250 billion, income from forex
business of VND 255 billion

VND billion
According to the post-merger
restructuring plan approved by the SBV.

5,256

275
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DEVELOPMENT PLAN IN 2016
(continued)

Key solutions
Corporate governance solutions
»» Ensure schedule and efficiency of Merger Project:

Optimize resources to accomplish schedule of
Core Merger prior to first quarter of 2016; Complete
the Rating Standard Set applied for transaction
points of merged units, aiming at improving and
applying the Standard Set for the entire system to
ensure consistent and smooth management and
enhance efficiency.

»» Focus on restructuring Assets - Liabilities: Steadily

reducing non-profiting items, dramatically settling
non-performing loans and foreclosed assets.
Restructure the balance sheet of the Bank with a
reasonable ratio of earning assets thus ensuring
business growth and safe operations.

»» Stabilize and develop human resource: Building

a friendly working environment to facilitate
development of employees to attain talents,
increasing engagement and dedication at work;
Pay attention to training and re-training to ensure
qualification and morality; Re-allocate employees
and improve the organizational structures with 3
key pillars: Business - Support - Supervision

Operational improvement solutions
»» Develop stable funds and enhance capital using

efficiency: Promote deposits stably by developing
deposits from residents; Maintain mid- and longterm deposit growth to ensure safety in term risks.
Expand demand deposits to utilize the low-cost
fund; Enhance lending to increase key income;
Diversify loans to reduce risks and broaden interest
margin.

»» Enhance operational efficiency: Site-checking

locations of branches/transaction offices to
promote advantages of operational network post
merger; Invest in fixed assets reasonably. Prioritize
renovating premises of merged units to standardize
the brand identity; Control costs below net income.

»» Enhance

service operation: Prioritize the
development of modern banking such as internet
banking, card operations; Enhance international
payment, domestic payment... Steadily standardize
the product and service under ISO standard;
Improve product and service to cut transaction
time, increase product quality to meet market
demand. Products are designed to meet customer
needs and source new customers. Increase
transaction revenue from export-import customers,
FDI and enterprises with preferential advantages
after joining in TPP.

Solutions to ensure operational
safety:
»» Strictly monitor business performance at units

to provide adequate support; Enhance credit
quality supervision; Focus on the post-review in
credit approval. Ensure the approval compliance.
Manage the mortgaged assets and provide
appropriate solutions to solve structured loans and
non-performing loans; Focus on self-review and
self-amendment to reduce risks.

Other solutions
»» Restructure the operational network to enhance

efficiency and obtain growth; Review and
evaluate transaction offices. Offer solutions to
settle ineffective transaction offices.

»» Strengthen and promote Sacombank brand name
on the market: Promote brand identity, especially
at the merged units; Enhance reputation via the
appraisal programs and global and domestic
international recognizations.

»» Continue reforming administrative procedure

from Head Office to branches/transaction offices;
Cut complicated administrative procedures;
Exchange the documents timely; Advise promptly
and correctly thus cutting time for operation and
saving cost.
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2015 performance
2016 plan

Conclusion
2015 closed with advantages and disadvantages externally and internally.
Sacombank has put efforts to maintain its sterling growth. It focused on
strengthening organizational structure post merger to ensure stable
operations. Business performance of Sacombank was below expectation.
However, Sacombank was on its journey of implementing restructure of the
State Bank of Vietnam, thus laying foundation for sustainable development
incoming years.
2016 started with advantages in business scale, network and operational
regions together with new challenges. Sacombank set appropriate business
plan and practical solutions to accomplish the targets. It also focused on
risk management to ensure the smooth, safe and efficient operations.

STB

Leverage on
TECHNOLOGY
After merger, Sacombank has standardized to leverage on technology
to offer multi-function products and facilities to fit all customers.
Sacombank always aims at digitalization in global technology era to
save human resource on the basis of promptness, convenience and
security.

CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE
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DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (BOD)
AND INDEPENDENT BOD MEMBER
The Board of Directors consists of 9 members, including 2 independent members who are
found qualified and approved by statutory regulations. The Board of Directors includes 1
Chairman, 2 Vice Chairman and 6 Members.
Sacombank BOD has a five-year term. It implements the Bank’s vision with four key
goals:1) Plan direction for growth and set the goals; build legal management framework;
2) Set up organization structure, human resource management and development plan;
3) Manage process and operations system for implementing direction for growth and
setting targets; 4) Supervise compliance with statutory and regulations and implement
resolutions and plans of the BOD.
In 2015, the BOD held 80 meetings including monthly and quarterly meetings. In the
meetings, the Board of Management reported business performance on a monthly and
quarterly - comparing the planned and actual results. The BOD meetings approved the
regulations, policies and made decisions on credit approval, debt management and
other corporate governance initiatives under the responsibilities of the BOD.
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ACHIEVEMENT OF RESOLUTIONS DECIDED AT 2015 AGM

In the first phase of merger, Sacombank also focused on resolving the
outstanding issues in addition to utilizing and promoting the benefits of
resonance. However, business results still maintain the growth rate of
key indicators; the growth of deposits and loans is quite high. Moreover,
the safety index, the rate of overdue debt, non-performing loans, assets
- liabilities are gradually restructured in the direction of safe and
sustainable.

ACHIEVEMENT OF RESOLUTIONS DECIDED
AT 2015 AGM
Increasing charter capital: In 2015, the Board of
Directors paid bonus share of 10% by treasury share
and partially share premium; newly issuing 8% to pay
dividend by share to shareholders from remaining
profit in 2013, newly issuing 12% to pay dividend by
share for shareholders by profit in 2014 and share
swap for merger. Charter capital increased from
VND 12,425 billion to VND 18,852 billion under
plan. The capital increase was supplemented into
investment capital to make profit.
Equity using as at 31 December 2015: As at
31 December 2015, equity obtained VND 21,663
billion. Equity without merger was VND 19,196 billion.
The equity was used as follows: (i) Fixed asset
investment of VND 5,990 billion (or 133% of forecast as
per AGM resolution), an increase of VND 447 billion,
(ii) business operation of VND 13,206 billion (or 115%
of forecast as per AGM resolutions) or increase of
VND 945 billion.
Merger: Sacombank merged with Southern Bank
on 1st October 2015. All activities were operated
smoothly, safely and effectively with 563 transaction
points nationwide and in Laos and Cambodia.
Retail banking operations: At present, retail market
in Vietnam was potential for expansion; however, the

fierce competition requires Sacombank to innovate
technology, expanding branch network, training
dynamic and professional staff to keep pace with
market fluctuations. Sacombank has successfully
implemented the retail banking. Retail deposits and
loans were diversified. Number of products and
services increased to add value for customers. As a
result, customer database was broadened, especially
individual customers.
Enhance corporate governance and operations of
subsidiaries and foreign associates: Converting
Laos branch into 100% wholly-owned bank, promptly
improving organizational structure, expanding
network and operational scale to win market share
and foster business efficiency in long-term for
Sacombank Lao.
Enhance risk management and non-performing
loan settlement: Sacombank set objectives of
focusing on quality rather than quantity and enhancing
risk management. The Board of Directors often
directed the Risk Management Board to enhance
supervision of banking operation to ensure capital
adequacy indicators under government regulations,
dramatically settling non-performing loans, pushing
non-performing loan collection. As a result, the Bank
has recovered VND 2,209 billion of non-performing
loans and VND 1,023 billion of debts sold to VAMC.
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Improving restructure: Organizational chart and
management structure of Sacombank have been
improved with 3 key pillars of Business - Support
- Supervision. The Board of Directors has been
supervising activities to timely support the Board of
Management. Some BOD members took positions
in the Board of Management to deeply manage
and timely support. In 2015, to deliver the objective
of “Satisfied Customers - Successful Sacombank”,
the Board of Directors has built the Sacombank
Standard Model and requested all units
comply with “Safe Operations - Efficient Business
and Sustainable Development”. The application of
this model has fostered awareness of complying
regulations at each unit thus restraining risks.
Invest in effective information technology:
Sacombank considered Information Technology
as the key factor to enhance service quality and
corporate governance. Sacombank has non-stop
innovated to keep up with the advanced applications.
Core system of Sacombank has fostered is efficiency
and readiness on all operations... Apart from that,
Sacombank has focused on Information Technology
and human resource to ensure accomplishment of
smooth Core integration.

Enhance communications: In 2015, especially post
merger, internal and external communications were
enhanced by crucial and effective channels. The
application of Sacombank Standard Model received
lots of positive feedback from customers thus
positioning Sacombank as a trustworthy, standard
and unique bank in mind of customers, investors and
public. Besides, Sacombank received awards from
prestigious local and international organizations.
Regarding selecting strategic foreign shareholders;
and establishing subsidiaries: Due to focusing on
merger and stabilizing activities after merger and
other factors, these missions were not accomplished
under plan. Sacombank plans to complete these
tasks at the soonest to benefit the Bank.
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AN EVALUATION OF OVERALL BANKING OPERATIONS
BUSINESS RESULTS IN
2015 HAVE CONTRIBUTED
TO IMPLEMETATION OF
THE RESTRUCTURE PLAN
OF THE STATE BANK OF
VIETNAM AND FACILITATE
SACOMBANK DEVELOP
SUSTAINABLY IN COMING
YEARS.

Despite external and internal uncertainties, Sacombank has strived
to remain its growth and overcome difficulties to merge successfully
Southern Bank into. Post merger, Sacombank focused on strengthening
the organizational structure. Business performance in 2015 turned
out below expectation, however, such results have contributed to
implementation of restructure plan of the State Bank of Vietnam and
facilitated Sacombank develop sustainably in coming years.
Given outstanding efforts of the Boards and employees, Sacombank
has overcome challenges in 2015, thereby laying a foundation and
generating advantages of business scale, network and operational
regions and admittedly, bringing new challenges. Sacombank continued
planning judicious business goals and practical solutions to accomplish
the targets and focus on risk management to ensure the system operate
consistently, safely and effectively.

AN EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
In 2015, Sacombank reached key achievements including its successful
merger with Southern Bank under the plan of banking restructure of the
State Bank of Vietnam. Admittedly, Sacombank had to deal with tons of
work pre-and post-merger. The Board of Directors highly appreciated
the Board of Management for accomplishing the tasks assigned by AGM
and the Board of Directors.
Under the direction of the Board of Directors, the Board of Management
successfully applied “Sacombank Standard Model” in 2015, thereby
laying a firm foundation to standardize and enhance service quality of
Sacombank and continue generating new milestones in coming years.

COUNCILS, COMMITTEES AND BOARDS
The Board of Directors restructured Committee and Councils including
17 Committees/Councils/Boards in specific sectors under the law. The
Committees and Councils has continued their positive activities in 2015
and accomplished their mission of consulting the Board of Directors
in providing policies to support the Board of Management in business
operations and risk management.
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Some key activities of Councils, Committees and Boards
COMMITTEE FOR STRATEGIC PLANNING,
DEVELOPMENT POLICIES AND BANK
RESTRUCTURING (CSPDPBR)
CSPDPBR advises the BOD on planning, strategy,
policies and bank restructuring that are appropriate
for each phase of growth. At the same time, the
Committee also supervises and supports the Board of
Management in building action plans, implementing
and accomplishing tasks under schedule.

Members of the Committee

THE COMMITTEE OF HUMAN RESOURCES (CHR)
CHR supports all aspects of human resource
management and organizational restructuring. In
2015, the CHR prepared policy recommendations
to the BOD on appointments and transfer of senior
positions at Sacombank and its subsidiaries. It
prepared a list of candidates for the BOD, Board
of Supervisors (BOS) and the BOM. It guided the
Human Resource Department in clarify process
for staff appointments, transfers, mobilization and
performance assessment throughout the regions.
Members of the Committee

Mr. Kieu Huu Dung

Chairman

Mr. Tram Be

Chairman

Mr. Phan Huy Khang

Vice Chairman

Mr. Phan Huy Khang

Vice Chairman

Mr. Nguyen Mien Tuan

Vice Chairman

Mr. Nguyen Mien Tuan

Vice Chairman

Mr. Nguyen Van Cuu

Vice Chairman

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Le An

Member

Mr. Nguyen Gia Dinh

Member

Human Resource Director

Secretary

Mr. Tram Khai Hoa

Member

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Le An

Member

Deputy Director cum CFO

Member

Planning Manager

Member/Secretary

COMMITTEE FOR REWARD &
COMPENSATION (CRC)
CRC is responsible to provide advisory services on
policies associated with rewards, compensations and
benefits.

Members of the Committee

Mr. Kieu Huu Dung

Chairman

Mr. Phan Huy Khang

Vice Chairman

Mr. Nguyen Mien Tuan

Member

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Le An

Member

Mrs. Duong Hoang Quynh Nhu

Member

Human Resource Director

Secretary
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Committee for risk management (CRM)

BOARD FOR BANK MODERNIZATION (BBM)

CRM is responsible for providing advisory services
to BOD on risk management. Quarterly meetings
and extraordinary meetings was recommended
upon request. In 2015, the CRM, BOS, Internal Audit,
and Risk Management provided recommendations
on management of credit risk, operational risk, and
non-performing loans.

BBM is responsible for providing advisory services to
the BOD on bank technology. It also assists the BOM
in setting up modernization projects. In 2015, the
BBM held meetings to review, evaluate and approve
suggestions of the IT Division to upgrade technology,
developing and installing modern and user-friendly
technology and system maintenance to ensure
system stability to support the Bank supervision and
risk management.

Members of the Committee

Members of the Committee

Mr. Nguyen Van Cuu

Chairman

Mr. Kieu Huu Dung

Deputy Head

Mr. Tram Khai Hoa

Vice Chairman

Mr. Phan Huy Khang

Deputy Head

Deputy CEO
in charge of Risk Management

Member

Mr. Tram Khai Hoa

Deputy Head

Head of Internal Audit

Member

Mr. Nguyen Mien Tuan

Member

Legal & Compliance Manager

Member

Mr. Nguyen Van Cuu

Member

Risk Management Manager

Member/Secretary

Mr. Le Trong Tri

Member

Deputy CEO, in charge of
Information Technology

Member

Infrastructure Department
Manager

Secretary

COUNCIL OF INVESTMENT AND ASSET
LIQUIDATION (CIAL)
CIAL provides management support for restructuring
the fixed assets of Sacombank. The Committee also
represents Sacombank to procure assets and make
decisions on issues relating to basic property and
office maintenance. In 2015, the CIAL exercised its
duties meticulously to ensure that the maintenance
projects and construction was completed on time,
within budget, and in compliance with the statutes
and Sacombank regulations.

Members of the Committee

Mr. Tram Be

Chairman

Mrs. Duong Hoang Quynh Nhu

Vice Chairman

Mr. Nguyen Mien Tuan

Member

Mr. Tram Khai Hoa

Member

Deputy CEO cum CFO

Member

Accounting Manager
cum Chief Accountant

Member

Administration Manager

Member
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BOARD FOR NON- PERFORMING LOAN
PREVENTION AND LIQUIDATION (BNPLPL)
BNPLPL provides advisory support on debt definition
and debt management, debts trading, debt transfers,
capital contribution, customer assets and debt
settlement approaches under the law. In 2015, the
BNPLPL directed and managed NPLs and bad debts
and sold debt to VAMC to ensure Bank security and
capital adequacy.

Members of the Committee

Mr. Kieu Huu Dung

Head

Mr. Phan Huy Khang

Deputy Head

Mr. Nguyen Mien Tuan

Deputy Head

Mr. Nguyen Van Cuu

Deputy Head

Mr. Le Van Tong

Member

Deputy CEO, in charge of Credit

Member

Deputy CEO,
in charge of Risk Management

Member

Head of Internal Audit

Member

Risk Management Manager

Member

Debt Management Manager

Member/ Secretary

COUNCIL OF RISK AND LOSS HANDLING (CRL)
CRL is responsible for debt provision, debt management, and debt settlement to ensure capital adequacy and
Bank efficiency.
Members of the Committee

Mr. Kieu Huu Dung

Chairman

Mr. Phan Huy Khang

Vice Chairman

Mr.Nguyen Van Cuu

Vice Chairman

Mr. Tram Khai Hoa

Member

Mr. Nguyen Van Ly

Member

Deputy CEO cum CFO

Member

Deputy CEO, in charge of Risk Management

Member

Deputy CEO, in charge of Credit

Member

Head of Internal Audit

Member

Accounting Manager cum Chief Accountant

Member

Credit Management Manager

Member

Debt Management Manager

Member

Risk Management Manager

Secretary
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BOARD OF ANTI- CORRUPTION AND CRIME PREVENTION (BACCP)
BACCP
is
responsible
for
implementing and coordinating
with relevant authorities over anticorruption and crime under the
scope of activities of Sacombank.
In 2015, the Board instructed
the BOM to adhere to legal
regulations, to report immediately
and to update information to
the state authority whenever
malfeasance is found or identified.

Members of the Committee

Mr. Kieu Huu Dung

Head

Mr. Phan Huy Khang

Deputy Head

Mr. Nguyen Van Cuu

Deputy Head

Mr. Nguyen Van Ly

Deputy Head

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Le An

Member

Mr. Tram Khai Hoa

Member

Mr. Phan Dinh Tue

Member

Head of Internal Audit

Member

Accounting Manager cum Chief Accountant

Member

Legal and Compliance Manager

Member/ Secretary

BOARD OF PREVENTION OF MONEY LAUNDERING (BPML)
BPML was set up to apply the
Law on Prevention of Money
Laundering
No.07/2012/QH13
dated 18 June 2012 and document
the periodical amendments and
internal regulations of Sacombank.

Members of the Committee

Chief Supervisor

Head

Deputy CEO, in charge of Operations

Standing Deputy Head

Deputy CEO, in charge of Risk Management

Deputy Head

Head of Internal Audit

Member

International Payment Center Director

Member

Domestic Payment Center and Treasury Director

Member

Core Banking Manager

Member

Sacombank-SBR Representative

Member

Sacombank-SBL Representative

Member

Sacombank-SBJ Representative

Member

Legal and Compliance Manager

Member/ Secretary

There are also other Boards such as Board of Training, Board of Reward and Discipline, Board of Financial
Investment, Steering Board for Crisis Management, Audit Council, Committee of Credit and State Credit Board
to approve a multi-bank credit transaction limit and the Board of Editors for the Sacombank Annual Report.
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GOALS AND STRATEGY OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR 2016 AND BEYOND

Post merger with Southern Bank, Sacombank set its strategic goals as shown below:

»» Strengthen and improve Sacombank operations post merger. Improve organizational
structure and standardize all merged units. Implement the Merger Project approved
by AGM and the State Bank of Vietnam.

»» Continue enhancing corporate governance and management to aim at transparency,

professionalism and effectiveness to maximize benefit for shareholders, employees
and customers.

»» Increase service quality and customer care. Apply Sacombank Standard Model on
the entire system. Enhance competitive advantages. Build brand name and business
culture as a standard and unique bank.

»» Diversify solutions to enhance financial capacity to ensure and enhance the capital
adequacy indicators stipulated by Sacombank and the State Bank of Vietnam.

»» Enhance the corporate governance and risk management. Apply the early warning
system to timely detect, stop and deploy the solutions to settle risks completely.

»» Supervise and control non-performing loans, dramatically settle non-performing loans
and structured loans to quickly collect debts. Increase earning assets to contribute to
the business results of Sacombank.

»» Save cost. Manage operational costs.
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»» Apply Basel II standards under direction of the State Bank of Vietnam. Leverage on
operational standard of Sacombank to get close to the best international practice.

»» Enhance comprehensive operations of Sacombank. Promote retail banking. At the

same time, foster efficiency of corporate banking. Focus on designing products and
services to serve medium and small enterprises, major corporate businesses and FDI
enterprises.

»» Expand and develop market. Widen transaction points on the basis of promoting

advantages of network, brand name and reputation as the top commercial joint stock
bank in Vietnam.

»» Enhance the efficiency of subsidiaries and foreign associates to contribute income into
the parent bank. Rapidly expand network and operations to foster business efficiency
in long-term for Sacombank Lao.

»» Research, build and implement the project of establishing subsidiaries and jointventures such as Sacombank Financial Company, Life Insurance Company and
Casualty Insurance.
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Internal Audit performed the periodic audits and
surprise checks at 72 branches and 345 transaction
offices, 6 departments and 3 professional units at the
Head Office, 4 subsidiaries and 2 foreign branches...”.
It also audited the financial statement in 2014 and
financial statement first 6 month in 2015 of Sacombank.
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OPERATIONS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
According to the Law of Credit Institutions 2010 and Company Chartered of Sacombank,
the Board of Supervisors (BOS) is responsible for: supervising and assuring that
Sacombank complies with regulations under the Law and Company Charter in managing
its operations, internal audit; direct, manage and supervise according to the internal
audit regulations; review and evaluate activities of internal audit independently and
transparently; review and evaluate first-half and annual financial reports.

The detailed list duties conducted by the BOS during 2015 were:
Having met 15 times to evaluate and direct the internal audit operations, assessed the
audit report and remote supervision results; conducted a self-assessment on operations
of units in entire system, approved the internal audit plan in 2016.
The BOS representatives participated in meetings with the Board of Directors and
Committees/Boards/Departments, such as Board of Anti-Money Laundering, Auditing
Board, Board of Anti-Corruption and Crime, Committee of Reward and Discipline, Council
of Risk and Loss Handling (CRL),Steering Board for Crisis Management, and Board for
Non-performing Loan Prevention and Liquidation (BNPLPL).
The BOS supervised and managed the Internal Audit system in evaluating the regulatory
controls and operations of branches. In 2015, Internal Audit performed the periodic audits
and surprise checks at 72 branches and 345 transaction offices, 6 departments and 3
professional units at the Head Office, 4 subsidiaries and 2 foreign branches. The BOS
supervised the preparation of the 2014 financial statements and the first-half financial
report for 2015. After each audit, the Internal Audit Committee gathered to evaluate and
approve the reports. Based on the correspondence between the Audit Team and the
auditees, the BOS analyzed the business performance and risk management of the
auditees. They reviewed areas of non-compliance, advised the auditees on compliance
and ensured commitment to comply.
Along with the audits, the BOS also oversaw the remote reporting of audits in accordance
to the remote audit regulations approved by the BOS.
Based on the results of audit supervision, the BOS issued guidelines for units to comply
with operational regulations. The BOS issued guidelines on the risks of non-compliance
and proposed ways to improve the process and programs.
Besides, the Board of Supervisors also directed Internal Audit to review operations at
all merged units (37 branches, 88 transactions offices and 10 savings funds) including:
warehouse safety, internal capital transfer, seal management, stamp management, ATM
acceptance process. Based on that, Sacombank guided the merged units to adjust their
business activities and corporate governance under the current internal regulations of
Sacombank.
Improved the legal documentation by: (i) Issuing the anti-money laundering regulations;
(ii) Stipulations of auditing the payability and liquidity.

90
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
(continued)

EVALUATION OF THE BANK’S OPERATIONS
Based on the supervision results in 2014, the Board of Supervisors evaluated the activities of the Board of
Directors with the following items:

Role of the Board of Directors (BOD)
The BOD held periodic meetings with the BOS
and Board of Management (BOM) to evaluate
the operations during the reporting period. At
the meetings they discussed and recommended
approaches to improve Bank operations. The BOD
has increased its capacity to support BOM on
managing the Bank operations, especially the historic
merger with Southern Bank. It also partnered with
BOS to oversee and supervise the operations of the
Bank and subsidiaries.
In 2015, the Board of Directors set up a Steering
Board and Execution Team in implementing the
Basel II Project and Action Team to merge Southern
Bank into Sacombank. They also issued the direction
of self-evaluations, enhance risk supervision and
management, announcement of deploying the
emulation of Sacombank Standard Model and
released standards of service quality, management
guidebook...

Role of the Board of Management (BOM)
Despite the turbulence in Vietnam economy in 2015,
the Board of Management strived to keep up with
market fluctuations and dramatically implemented
the direction of the Board of Directors. It also strictly
follow up the assigned plan to achieve business
targets. The Board of Management put efforts in
merging Southern Bank into Sacombank, to ensure
stable operation of post-merged bank, thereby laying
a foundation for further development.
The BOM closely coordinated with BOS on operational
reviews and assessments. They provided relevant
data and information to ensure that the BOS was
able to effectively supervise and inspect. The BOM

implemented the system of assigning a Relief Director
and a relief Head of Transactions so accommodate
incumbent staff taking leave of absence.
In 2015, the Board of Management implemented
key programs to improve the operations quality of
the Bank. This is to ensure that the Bank complies
with the statues and regulations. The initiatives and
projects were as follows: Upgrading card Core;
Building quality management system under ISO
9001:2015; Modernizing loan approval process,
improving the partner transaction limit; Deploying
Online Tax Payment via portal of General Department
of Taxation; Developing cash for export and import
system; Integrating non-Core softwares under one
platform; eBanking.

Highlights in Corporate Governance
In 2016, Vietnam economy will continue its recovery.
However, non-performing loans will still be a challenge
to the banking system.
Hence, Sacombank should pay attention to the market
fluctuations and risky issues to implement planning
and management to enhance the asset quality, capital
using efficiency and safety in banking operations.
Sacombank should focus on internal audit to comply
with strategy approved by the Board of Directors
in offering diversified loans and developing retail
banking services. It also complies with regulations of
safety in banking operations, restructuring loans and
classifying loans, deducting risk provision, controlling
non-performing loans, fostering credit quality,
growing credit safe and effective; Enhance training
on anti-money laundering and customer approach;
Ensure safety in maintenance, logistics, cash and
previous paper transportation and ATM operations.
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DIRECTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS (BOS) IN 2016
Given the performance of supervisory and inspection in 2015, the BOS shall:

»» Monitor and detect potential risks in banking operations to support the Board of
Directors, Board of Management to promptly release risk management solutions;

»» Improve support to auditees, including Branches, Regional Offices, Head Office and
Subsidiaries by providing timely instructions and assistance to help them understand
and work within current market situation and operational and risk management
guidelines;

»» Continue promoting and raising effectiveness of remote supervision;
»» Increase supervision and self-assessment of departments throughout the Bank;
»» Cooperate with BOD and BOM to comply with internal audit requirements.
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APPOINTMENTS AND RETIREMENTS IN BOARD
OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

CHANGES IN BOARD MEMBERSHIPS
On 11 November 2015, the Board of Directors approved voluntary retirement of
Mr. Tram Be, Permanent Vice Chairman. He was also assigned as BOD member. At
present, the BOD consists of 9 members in which 02 independent BOD members,
including 01 Chairman, 02 Vice Chairman and 6 members.
On 9 September 2015, Mrs. Nguyen Thi Thanh Mai was assigned as the Deputy Chief
Supervisor in charge of Northern Region, Hanoi and North Central Region.
In 2015, the BOD appointed two Deputy CEOs - Mr. Nguyen Van Nhan and Mr. Trinh
Van Ty. Accordingly, the BOM of Sacombank now has 22 members including 01 CEO,
01 Standing Deputy CEO and 20 Deputy CEOs managing the distinct functions and
operations of the Bank.

COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES
2015 brought tons of tasks to Sacombank after Southern Bank was merged into. The
Board of Directors has accompanied with the Board of Management to accomplish
merging under the strategy and direction of the State Bank of Vietnam.
Given the turbulence of Vietnam economy and challenges in banking - finance,
Sacombank came in with a remarkable business performance. This result represented
the effective role of the BOD in directing, managing and supporting the BOM and the
whole Bank.
In 2015, BOD members actively participated in Committees/ Councils/ Boards belonging
to the Board of Directors. They also took more responsibilities to enhance working
efficiency. Despite increasing tasks, income and compensation of BOD and BOS declined
by VND 13.5 billion from a year earlier. This amount was within the compensation and
expense for BOD and BOS of VND 40 billion approved by the Shareholders.
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SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE - CHANGES IN OWNER CAPITAL
Data as at 31 December 2015:
Shareholder structure

Number of shareholders

Individual shareholders (domestic)

Share ownership %/ charter capital

64,015

64.8%

Organizational shareholders (domestic)

233

24.11%

Individual shareholders (foreign)

691

0.37%

62

10.72%

65,001

100%

Organizational shareholders (foreign)
Total

Major shareholders (ownership > 5% of chartered capital)
No.

Major shareholders

1

Vietnam Export and Import
Commercial Joint Stock
Bank (Eximbank)

ownership > 5%

10.72%
0.37%

24.11%

Share ownership
%/ charter capital

64.8%

8.76%

Treasury shares: 81,562,287 treasury shares, making up
4.32% of chartered capital.
Changes of shareholder capital
Change of shareholder capital:

Individual shareholders (domestic)
Organizational shareholders (domestic)
Individual shareholders (foreign)

»» Equity as at 6 July 2015: VND 18,686 billion
»» Equity as at 7 January 2016: VND 22,143 billion

Organizational shareholders (foreign)

Treasury share transaction:

»» According to the extraordinary AGM resolution in 2015,
Sacombank distributed 100,000,000 treasury shares to
shareholders.

»» After merging Southern Bank into Sacombank, the number of

Sacombank shares held by Southern Bank were transformed
into treasury shares (81,562,287 shares).

Other securities: None
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Number of STB stocks
1,885,215,716

Equity capital of STB over years

1,000,000,000
800,000,000
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208,941,281

670,035,300
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444,881,417
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511,583,084

1,600,000,000

1,242,511,590

1,242,511,590

917,923,013

1,800,000,000

1,073,967,664

2,000,000,000

1,073,967,664

(Unit: Dong)
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Profit distribution in 2015
No.

Items

Unit: million VND
Rate

Description

Amount

1

Profit before tax

698,113

2

In which, non-taxable income

195,777

3

Non-deductible expenses upon corporate income tax

354,913

4

Taxable income

5

Corporate income tax 2015

(1)-(2)+(3)

857,249

- Current corporate income tax

195,653

- Deferred corporate income tax

(33,981)

A

Retained earnings

536,441

B

Reserve fund for charter capital supplement

5%

(A) * Rate

26,822

C

Financial reserve fund

10%

(A - B) * Rate

50,962

D

Profit after tax and extraction for mandatory funds

E

Business investment and development fund

458,657
-

0%

Bonus and welfare funds
F

Bonus fund

10%

(D) * Rate

45,866

G

Welfare fund

10%

(D) * Rate

45,866

H

Dividend shared (Chartered capital x Dividend sharing rate)

I

Profit after tax, extraction for funds and dividend

J

Profit of post-merger bank in 9 months

K

Beginning retained earning

L

Accumulated retained earnings

(A)-(B)-(C)-(F)-(G)

366,925
61,297
533,224

(I)+(J)+(K)

961,446
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(continued)

SHAREHOLDERS WHO ARE MEMBERS OF BOD, BOS, BOM & CHIEF ACCOUNTANT
AS AT 31 December 2015
No.

Name

Position

Common share
ownership (%)

Note

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1

Mr. KIEU HUU DUNG

Chairman

0

2

Mr. TRAM BE

BOD member

1.46

3

Mr. PHAN HUY KHANG

Vice Chairman, CEO

1.19

4

Mr. NGUYEN MIEN TUAN

Vice Chairman

5

Mr. NGUYEN GIA DINH

BOD Member

6

Mrs. DUONG HOANG QUYNH NHU

BOD member, Deputy CEO

0.51

7

Mr. TRAM KHAI HOA

BOD Member

1.76

8

Mrs. NGUYEN THI LE AN

BOD member, Deputy CEO

0.00
(18,247 shares)

9

Mr. NGUYEN VAN CUU

Independent BOD member

0

0
(139,826 shares)
0

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
10

Mr. NGUYEN VAN LY

Chief Supervisor

0.01

11

Mrs. NGUYEN THI THANH MAI

Deputy Chief Supervisor

0.01

12

Mr. LE VAN TONG

BOS member

0.05
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No.

Name

Position

Common share
ownership (%)

Note

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
13

Mr. NGUYEN VAN NHAN

Standing Deputy CEO

0.03

14

Mr. PHAN DINH TUE

Deputy CEO

0
(142,895 shares)

15

Mr. NGUYEN MINH TAM

Deputy CEO

0
(14,739 shares)

16

Mr. TRINH VAN TY

Deputy CEO

0

17

Mrs. QUACH THANH NGOC THUY

Deputy CEO

0
(101 shares)

18

Mr. DAO NGUYEN VU

Deputy CEO

0

19

Mr. LY HOAI VAN

Deputy CEO

0.02

20

Mrs. HA QUYNH ANH

Deputy CEO

0
(5,828 shares)

21

Mr. BUI VAN DUNG

Deputy CEO

0
(138,752 shares)

22

Mr. NGUYEN BA TRI

Deputy CEO

0
(7 shares)

23

Mr. HA VAN TRUNG

Deputy CEO

0.01

24

Mr. VO ANH NHUE

Deputy CEO

0
(3 shares)

25

Mr. HO DOAN CUONG

Deputy CEO

0
(7.216 shares)

26

Mr. HA TON TRUNG HANH

Deputy CEO

0

27

Mr. NGUYEN XUAN VU

Deputy CEO

0
(833 shares)

28

Mr. TRAN MINH KHOA

Deputy CEO

0
(6,937 shares)

29

Mrs. NGUYEN DUC THACH DIEM

Deputy CEO

0
(76,320 shares)

30

Mr. HOANG THANH HAI

Deputy CEO

0

31

Mr. LE TRONG TRI

Deputy CEO

0.11

32

Mr. HUYNH THANH GIANG

Chief Accountant

0
(48,562 shares)

Information on STB stock transactions of the members of BOD, BOS, BOM and other persons of interest as at
31 December 2015 included: nil buying order, 1 selling orders of 100,000 stocks (for further information please
refer to the Bank’s management report in 2015).
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23,628

VND billion

Capitalization (as at 31 December 2015)

Share information

Price gap

10,800 - 20,400 EPS

Outstanding number of
shares

444 P/B

1.14 Beta

1,803,653,429 BV

11,491 ROA

VND 23,628
P/E
billion

45.9 ROE

Capitalization
(as at 31 December 2015)

0.22%

1.05

Dividend yield
2014

12%

Average number

2.72% of transaction for

1,921,765

12 months

PRICE MOVEMENT AND TRADING VOLUME FROM 01/1/2015 TO 31/12/2015
VN-Index

STB

KLGD

STB

5

5

/1

/1
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5
/1

/1
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/1
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/
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/

/1

/1
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/1

/1
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/1
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/

/1
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/1
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/1
08

/1
07

/1
06

/1

05

04
/

/1
03

/1

/1
02

01

5

10.000

5

_

15

10.000

5

420

15

13.000

5

16.000

5.000.000

5

10.000.000

13.000

5

16.000

460

5

500

5

19.000

5

15.000.000

15

19.000

5

540

5

22.000

5

20.000.000

5

25.000

22.000

5

25.000.000

580

15

28.000

25.000

5

30.000.000

620

5

28.000

5

660

Source: HSX, Sacombank

Vietnam stock market witnessed the turbulence
and did not represent investors’ perception and
sentiment. There were moments when the market
grew significantly thanks to positive response from
optimistic economy and supported by the Free Trade
Agreements (FTA with EU, TPP...). However, after
the short-term upturn, the downtrend was set due
to the profit-take pressure of investors or negative
information from global economy (CNY devaluation,
declining oil price, USD interest rate increase,
instability in Middle-East...). Therefore, VN-Index
peaked at 634 points at mid-July in 2015. However,
then quickly fell to 526.9 points at 24 August. As
end 2015, VN-Index closed at 579 points, equivalent
to an increase of 34.5 points, or up 6.3% from the
beginning of the year. HNX moved on a smaller scale

and lacked leading blue chips. Closing session dated
31 December 2015, HNX-Index reached 79.96 points,
decreasing by 2.8 points equivalent to 3.4% from the
beginning of the year. The average liquidity stood at
41.7 million of shares per session - much lower than
the number of 65 million shares per session in 2014
and equal to 41% of liquidity at HSX. The average
transaction volume of the whole market reached VND
5,000 billion per session. Capitalization made up
more than 33% of GDP. This represented the role of
mobilizing capital for economy of the stock market.
STB price as at 31 December 2014 was VND 13,100
per share, decreasing by VND 4,400 per share
(or down 25.1%) from the beginning of the year. The
price downtrend was attributed to price adjustment
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after dividend distribution on 16th October (The price
decreased by VND 2,800 or down 16%). STB price
in the first 10 months generated the increase and
decrease in alignment with the market fluctuations.
However, dividend distribution for2013 and 2014
together with concerns of shareholders in short-term
after merger brought down STB price at end October.
At the same time, the market entered adjustment
period in the 2 last months and the defensive sentiment
of investors prevailed. As a result, STB share has not
hit a new price and closed at VND 13,100 per share.
In 2015, STB investors witnessed the important
milestone in Sacombank history as Southern Bank
officially merged into Sacombank so Sacombank
becomes in the top five largest banks in Vietnam.
Business performance post merger remained stable.
Branch network and human resource of Southern
Bank were smoothly merged into Sacombank. The
transactions and interests of both bank customers
were ensured. At present, Sacombank continued to
improving its operations, strengthen the foundation
for further sustainable development.

Sacombank also achieved prestigious domestic
and international awards. Apart from growing scale,
Sacombank was also recognized safe and effective
as Credit Rating institutions decided to remain its
“stable” outlook toward Sacombank. This was also
the key factor to urge Cathay United Bank to provide
Sacombank with the loans of USD 50 million. The
long-term mutual collaboration between Sacombank
and Cathay United Bank was also set up last July.
In summary, the international financial institutions
remained their positive appreciation of Sacombank
perspective after merger.
In addition, strong financial capacity and potential
growth of Sacombank convinced stock investors,
especially foreign investors to invest in STB stock. After
2 reviews, 2 biggest ETFs including FTSE Vietnam ETF
and Market Vector Vietnam ETF decided to keep STB
in the investment portfolio, with investment portion of
respectively 5.83% and 6.47%. One more remarkable
information was STB was ranked the 5th in term of net
purchase on HSX in 2015 with total transaction value
of VND 660 billion.

Apart from the achievements in business, Sacombank
continued affirming its reputation with customers,
partners and investors. Through enhancing the retail
banking with diversified products and services and
suitable preferential programs, Sacombank won trust
and favor from customers.

Despite the turbulence of the economy and finance banking sector, Sacombank achieved a successful year.
In short-term, Sacombank has to deal with remaining
problems post merger. However, given its operational
scale and advantages in retail banking, Sacombank
will soon come back with its growth pace with good
asset quality and high profitability. As a result, the
investors should continue watching Sacombank
during its restructure after merger thereby making
investment decisions.

Duplicate
SHARING
Sacombank believes that sustainable development will add value for
society. It always strives to collaborate with local organizations to
develop the next generations. Leaders and employees of Sacombank
put efforts to build Sacombank as friendly and social responsible
brand name.

SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT REPORT
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT 2015

SUBMITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

G4 SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
REPORTING GUIDELINES
GLOBAL REPORTING INITIATIVES (GRI)
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PREFACE
At present, the combination of environmental and social change factors
such as climate change, loss of biodiversity, population growth, the
deficiency of water and other natural resources has negatively influenced
the efforts for sustainable development of all nations. Vietnam is a
developing country which has achieved an impressive economic growth.
However, Vietnam is also one of the countries significantly impacted
by climate change and is facing with the risks of rapid exhaustion of
natural resources, food insecurity and environmental pollution. These
factors have negatively impacted the economy. Sacombank, one of the
leading Vietnamese banks defined that “Sustainable development is the
key for human development, planet protection and profit achievement”.

PEOPLE

PROFIT

THE EARTH

SUSTAINABILITY
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Overall description of Sacombank
Sustainable Development

REPORT CONTENT
The report is also in accordance with information announcement regulation of Sustainable
Development applied for listed enterprises approved by the State Securities Commission
(SSC), as well as G4 Sustainable Reporting Guidelines - Global Reporting Initiatives
(GRI) - version for Financial Sector. The Sustainable Development consists of 3 key parts:
»»

Overall of Sustainable Development Report 2015

»»

Key content in Report 2015

»»

Evaluation of indicators stipulated in GRI standard, Version G4

REPORT SCALE
This annual report provides performance results and key milestones of Sacombank
parent bank and its subsidiaries in 2015 (from 01 January 2015 to 31 December 2015).
SITUATION AND APPROACH
The report is prepared in the context that Vietnamese economy and banking sector
witness positive changes thanks to innovative policies of the State Bank of Vietnam
(SBV). Sacombank also completes its merger with Southern Bank to generate “Strength
in Synergy” for sustainable growth.
The Sustainable Development Report 2015 proves the interests of Sacombank leaders and
the objective evaluation of relevant parties toward Sacombank sustainable development.
Based on the consultancy from these relevant parties and combined with the sustainable
development vision, Sacombank defined the key sectors which significantly expose the
economic, environmental and social impact to its business performance.
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CONTACT
Sacombank welcomes ideas and contributions.
Please direct comments and queries on sustainable
development to:

»»

Risk Management Department

»»

Tel: (+84) 283.8469.516

»»

Email: qlrr@sacombank.com

»»

Address: 266 - 268 Nam Ky Khoi Nghia Street,
Ward 8, District 3, Hochiminh City
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MESSAGE OF CEO ON SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT
SINCE INCEPTION, SACOMBANK HAS FOCUSED ON SAFE OPERATION AND
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT. ACCORDINGLY, SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
HAS AIMED AT OBTAINING BOTH LONG-TERM GROWTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL
AND SOCIAL OBJECTIVES.

Despite the turbulence in Banking and Finance in
2015, Sacombank has obtained key achievements
thus benefiting millions of customers, thousands
of shareholders and providing a secure life to
thousands of employees. The achievements are
attributed to the collaborative effort of the entire
bank.
In 2015, Sacombank improves its business
performance by sharpening its organizational
structure, professionalizing sales force, saving
operating cost, enhancing risk management at all
levels, launching creative products and approaching
new banking channels... Apart from stipulating
new policies and process, Sacombank has
continued training its employees by site-checking
to build awareness and implement management of
environmental and social impact in credit activities.
Besides, Sacombank continues maintaining and
applying the Environmental and Social Management
System (ESMS) in loan approval to avoid negative
environmental and social influence.
Sacombank has deployed activities in sport - culture
and charity to improve life quality of residents in the
remote areas such as supporting victims of natural
disasters, offering scholarship to young people,
organizing marathon contests... Accordingly, more
than 2,000 employees participated in community
activities, typically the blood donation named
“Sacombank - Sharing from heart”.
Moreover, Sacombank has applied methods to
save electricity, water and paper and to reduce
emissions from office equipment by recycling office
supplies and stationary or using recycled products
which are friendly with environment and expose

low carbonate. At the same time, Sacombank builds
awareness of sustainable development for employees
by associating this content into daily activities.
Given the above solutions together with efforts from
employees and support from customers, shareholders
and investors, Sacombank is confident to achieve
business growth and sustainable development to
generate positive change for community, ambient
environment and lay the firm foundation for next
generations.
ESMS PROCESS AT SACOMBANK:
Besides, sustainable development will be the key in
all business activities at Sacombank, thus the Bank
accomplishes the business plan 2016 and steadily
implements the vision to 2020. Sacombank will gather
its resources to improve the organization, facilitate

ESMS expansion:
Apply ESMS for other related
activities at Sacombank.

Current ESMS policy:
ESMS leveraged its
application to loan approval
at Sacombank.

Strategic objective:
Improve key activities (loan
approval, investment...) of
Sacombank to the green
economy.
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internal resources, innovates its products and services portfolio to maximize interests for
customers, shareholders and employees as well as adding value for community. Hence,
Sacombank built its sustainable development in association with business strategy that
focus on the following targets:
ENSURE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT: Diversifying business to prevent concentrated
risks; Restructuring the capital and using capital safe, effectively and sustainably;
Enhancing income from service to prevent dependence on interest income; Improving the
Risk Management system to comply with the best international practice Basel II.
ENSURE ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL OBJECTIVES: Sacombank has strived to fulfill
its highest responsibility toward society by enhancing activities to improve environment,
fostering awareness for employees and community so also build its reputation.
ENSURE THE INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS AND RELEVANT PARTIES: Sacombank
shall achieve its sustainable development with new challenges if its shareholders and
relevant parties fully offer their trust and support. To win trust, Sacombank has enhanced
its financial transparency and corporate governance to foster competitive advantages.
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WHO ARE WE?
Sacombank is the leading
commercial bank in term of
operational network consisting
of 563 transaction points. All
Sacombank offices are well
equipped to demonstrate its
long-term commitment with the
local development. At present, its
network covers Northern Central,
South East, South Central and
Highlands. Especially, Sacombank
also pioneers in expanding its
network overseas with the whollyowned banks in Laos and Cambodia.

KEY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
Sacombank provides diversified portfolio of banking
and financial products and services to serve corporate
and individual customers in rural and urban area,
from children to adults, from common to premium
customers. The products and services include:
Deposits
Including term deposit, demand deposit, over-thecounter deposit, e-Banking deposit. Sacombank
is well-known for its outstanding and pioneering
deposits such as Phu Dong Savings for children,
Accumulated Savings, Lucky Savings...
Loans, Export and Import Finance, Guarantee
Sacombank designs diversified loans to fit in various
regions, customer segments and market demand to
finance business projects to improve life quality and
facilitate development in the community. Sacombank
always reviews and evaluates the environmental
and social impacts from customers and loans
before approving loans. Hence, Sacombank only
provides loans for cases without negative impacts to
environment and society.
Forex and monetary service
Sacombank provides forex service to meet the
demand for buying/selling gold and foreign
currencies. Sacombank also offers monetary solutions
to fit payment ability of customers or to prevent market
risks (risks of exchange rate, interest rate, commodity
price) and maximize profit on monetary transactions
of customers.
International Payment
International payment at Sacombank consists of
various payment methods with plentiful advantages,
diversified foreign currencies, prompt and accurate
process to enhance customers’ reputation with their
partners and to save cost and time.
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eBanking services
Sacombank offers e-Banking services via Internet
Banking and Mobile Banking to facilitate financial
transactions such as account transfer, bill payment,
credit card payment, information reference
everywhere to ensure security and quickness.
Other services
The other services include Bond Retail Purchase,
Safebox For Rent, Water and Electricity Bill Payment;
Online Tax Payment...
OPERATIONAL NETWORK AND CUSTOMERS
Sacombank is the leading commercial bank in term
of operational network consisting of 563 transaction
points. All Sacombank offices are well equipped to
demonstrate its long-term commitment with the local
development. At present, its network covers Northern
Central, Southeast, South Central and Highlands.
Especially, Sacombank also pioneers in expanding
its network overseas with the wholly-owned banks in
Laos and Cambodia.
Sacombank aims at becoming the multi-functional,
modern retail bank; as a result, it targets at customers
of both business entities and residents. Sacombank
also sets up specific banking channels for particular
customers such as children, retailers, farmers,
students and high income customers...

OWNERSHIP AND LEGAL FORM
Sacombank was one of the first commercial banks
in Hochiminh City. Incepted with charter capital of
VND 3 billion, total assets of VND 100 billion and 100
employees, Sacombank is now in the Top 5 largest
banks in Vietnam in terms of capital volume, branch
network and human resource and has affirmed
its position in the banking and financial sector.
Sacombank participates in banking and finance
associations such as:
Vietnam Banking Association (VNBA):
The members collaborate and support in business
performance to ensure safety, effectiveness and
security of Vietnamese financial institutions. At the
same time, the Association contributes to implement
the monetary policies to foster economic and social
development. Sacombank is also the member of the
2 entities belonging to VNBA: Association of Banking
Cards and Club of Banking Legal Compliance.
Vietnam Bond Market Association (VBMA):
Its mission is to foster safe and effective development
of Vietnamese bond market.
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ORGANIZATIONAL SCALE
On 1st October 2015, Southern Bank was officially merged into Sacombank. This merger
complies with the direction of the government and SBV to set up grand, safe and more
professional financial institutions. After merger, Sacombank is in the Top 5 largest banks
in Vietnam in term of operational scale.

OUTSTANDING SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT VALUES AT SACOMBANK
Sacombank sustainable development values are represented by the
outstanding indicators in business and in community contribution in 2015:

2,603.47

8.7
shareholders are
ensured interests

VND billion
Total budget
contribution in
recent 3 years

VND billion
Investment for
social security
activities

65,001
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Financial & non-financial key performance indicators

Total budget contribution in recent 3 years

2,603.47 VND Billion

Total budget contribution in recent 3 years

15,505 employees

Increased number of employees in 2015

3,800 employees

Total transaction points

563

Total products and services

180 products and services

Total employees participating in community programs

2,000 employees

Total suppliers in basic construction and equipment
Total profit before tax in 2015

50
698 VND Billion

Total non-performing loans (as at 31 December 2015)

5.85%

Capital Adequacy Ratio

9.51%

ROA

0.22%

ROE

2.72%

EPS

444 dong/share

2,000

loans for business
were assessed
environmental
and social risks
under law

Employees
participating
in community
activities

2,559

VND billion
Salary payments
for employees

100%
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ENGAGEMENT WITH RELEVANT PARTIES
Sacombank defines relevant parties from their role and influence to Sacombank business
performance. The relations between Sacombank and relevant parties were set up based
on trust, transparency and standard of ethics and long-term interests of both sides.
Relevant parties include customers, employees, shareholders, investors, sponsors,
contractors, associations, government agencies and community.

COMMUNITY
Working with local authorities
Dialogue with Associations/
Organizations

CUSTOMERS
Conduct surveys to understand
customer needs and satisfaction
Interviewing customers directly
Indirect interviews conducted
through hot lines

GOVERNMEN TAGENCIES

EMPLOYEES

Having regular discussion
Exchanging ideas at forums
Contributing policy drafting
and discussion papers

Satisfaction surveys
Opinions via hot lines
Discussion with the local labor unions
Building an environment of
connectivity, training and sharing

SUPPLIERS

INVESTORS

Encouraging competition
Transparency in bidding
Service quality, truthful about origins of goods

Annual Shareholders Meeting
Group meetings with investors
Information update via website, phone and email

Sacombank listens to opinions from relevant parties and actively collaborates with them
to implement strategy, direction and business solutions in line commitment. The Bank
also collects and reviews opinions from relevant parties to understand their interest and
expectations. Sacombank applies different information approaches for different parties.
Responses from relevant parties are deliberately appraised and researched; as a result,
Sacombank strives to integrate these responses into its regulations and operations.
Sacombank often seeks for consultancy from relevant parties about business strategy,
functions of products and services, human resource development, human right, training,
community activities, natural environment protection...
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ANNOUNCEMENT OF KEY ISSUES
Based on market trends, development strategy of Sacombank, interests of community..., Sacombank defines
its key issues to balance the interest of shareholders, customers and employees. Sacombank also ensures its
corporate responsibility toward community and society, thus supporting residents thrives in finance and stable
in society.
Sacombank focuses on analyzing 6 key sectors in its Sustainable Development Report 2015 to achieve its
strategic targets in 2016. The 6 key sectors is defined based on the analysis of level and scale of impact toward
Sacombank, as details:

Key sector

The degree of impact

Scope of impact

Sustainable Business Strategies
Impact on profit of Sacombank.

Internal to Sacombank.

Impact on relationships with shareholders
and investors.

External to Sacombank.

Impact on profit and brand image of
Sacombank.

Internal to Sacombank.

Impact of the customer relationship.

External to Sacombank.

Impact on Sacombank when employees
are valuable assets of the business and
contributed earnings.

Internal to Sacombank.

Customers will be experiencing the good
service as Sacombank employees are well
trained.

External to Sacombank.

Direct impact to Sacombank employees.

External to Sacombank.

Strengthening risk management
apparatus to meet the requirements
business of Sacombank.

Impact on profit and interest of
shareholders and investors.

Internal and external to
Sacombank.

Applying Basel II rules on risk
management systems to strengthen risk
control to Sacombank.

Impact on profit and brand image of
Sacombank.

Internal and external to
Sacombank.

Maintaining sustainable development
goals over the years is the key task of
Sacombank.
Modern financial services
Sacombank aims to become the leading
retail bank in Vietnam with the provision
of modern finance services in Vietnam.
Human resource development

Building the professional and creative
staff as well as the solidarity between all
levels in the system with nearly 16,000
employees.
Gender equality.
Welfare and Social Insurance.
Professional opportunities.
Risk management
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ANNOUNCEMENT OF KEY ISSUES

Key sector

The degree of impact

Scope of impact

Contributing to Sustainable Community Development
Responsibility towards the community.

Impact to demand for using products of
customers (External to Sacombank).

External to Sacombank.

Promoting the innovation and enhancing
community awareness on social issues.

Impact on Sacombank employees and
community.

External to Sacombank.

Improving the environment and society.

Impact to the environment.

External to Sacombank.

Promoting the innovation and
community awareness on protecting
environment.

Impact to the environment and society.

External to Sacombank.

Contributing to improve the environment
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SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS STRATEGY
CORPORATE CULTURE AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT VISION
During its history, Sacombank has built its corporate culture which is characteristic, standard, creative and
unique. This culture was conveyed to public by its ambassadors - Sacombank employees and leaders. The
culture promotes roles and responsibilities of all individuals in forming an associated strength to overcome
challenges, conquering objectives and missions set by Sacombank.
Sacombank has improved its corporate governance model to integrate sustainable development into its daily
operations thus steadily reducing risks impacting environment and society and ensuring implementation of
Sacombank business plan. Accordingly, corporate governance of the Board of Directors and management of
the Board of Management are strictly supervised and conducted under the specific Implementation Process to
ensure:
»»

All decisions made in the meetings of the Board of Directors and the Board of Management are allocated,
supervised, executed and reported consistently.

»»

Process of implementation and report is conducted via key contact and approved by relevant levels to
ensure the direct or indirect response and direction promptly and correctly.

»»

The assigned units are responsible for reporting their implementation under the schedule.

»»

Implementation results are approved by the Board of Management and communicated to relevant
individuals and units.

ETHICS AND TRUTH
Sacombank has formed its culture in the Code of Ethics consisting 10 ethical rules:

Complying with national
internal regulations.

laws

and

Encouraging a culture of honor and
respect and maintaining fair working
conditions.

CODE OF
ETHICS
SACOMBANK

Using working time and assets properly
and effectively.
Anti-bribery and anti-corruption.
Collaborating, cooperating,
and supporting each other.

assisting

Preventing and managing conflicts of
interest.
Be responsible to your customers.
Corporate social responsibility and the
green environment.
Transparency and security.
Accurate reporting.

116
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT 2015 (continued)
SUSTAINABE BUSINESS STRATEGY

SACOMBANK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Sacombank management structure consists of the Board of Shareholders, the Board of
Directors, the Board of Supervisors and Chief Executive Officer (CEO).
Accordingly, the Board of Shareholders is the highest authority at Sacombank. The
Board of Directors represents Sacombank to release decisions and conduct rights and
responsibilities of Sacombank, except the issues under the authority of the Board of
Shareholders.
The Board of Directors establishes the Committees, Councils and Boards to support the
Board of Directors implement their rights and responsibilities. The Board of Directors
defines the rights and responsibilities of the Committees, Councils and Boards in
accordance with Sacombank charter and regulations of the State Bank of Vietnam.
The Board of Supervisors is the supervision authority to accurately review the business
operations and financial situation at Sacombank. The Board of Supervisors implements
internal audit, reviewing and evaluating the compliance of laws, internal regulations,
charter, resolutions and decisions stipulated by the Board of Shareholders and the Board
of Directors.
CEO takes responsibility for daily operations at Sacombank. CEO is the highest manager
at Sacombank and supervised by the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors.
CEO is responsible with the Board of Directors and law in implementing his rights and
responsibilities.
STABLE BUSINESS GROWTH
Sacombank has improved its business performance, expanding its network to achieve the
sustainable development. Stable business growth plays key in achieving environmental
and social targets. As a result, Sacombank reaches the comprehensive business growth
through the following indicators:

Chart: Growth of indicators in 2013, 2014, 2015
2013

Average growth in
recent 3 years

60%

Total assets

25.9%

Total deposits

34.4%
25%

59.6%

53.9%

45.0%
40%

Total loans

Average growth in recent 3 years

2015

80%

Average growth in recent 3 years

Indicators

2014

25.9%

34.4%

25%

20%

0%
Total assets

Total deposits

Total loans
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»»

Total number of FDI customers grew 22.2% from the beginning of the year. Deposits
increased by VND 137.9 billion (up 7.9%), loans increased by VND 459.3 billion (or
growth of 488.8%).

»»

Service income grew 20.7% higher than growth of net income thus ensuring
sustainable income structure. Accordingly, modern banking services such as ATM,
e-Banking have promoted its advantages in attracting customers and contributing to
income.

»»

Non-office transactions were fundamentally invested to gain efficiency and win
reputation.

»»

The successful merger with Southern Bank brings Sacombank to a higher level and
makes Sacombank in the Top 5 largest banks in Vietnam in terms of total assets,
charter capital and operational network.

»»

Sacombank is also the first bank to officially introduce the Online Tax Payment in May
2015. Sacombank is in the Top 2 banks having the highest transaction revenue and
registered customers.

CONTRIBUTION TO STATE BUDGET AND DIVIDEND PAYMENT REMAINED STABLE
Dividend yield remained stable
In 2015, Sacombank completed its
dividend payment by share to shareholders
with ratio of 20%par value from remaining
profit after tax in 2013 and 2014 to comply
with AGM resolution 2015. At the same
time, Sacombank finished payment of
bonus share with ratio of 10% par value
from dividend premium.
State budget contribution
(Unit: billion)
2013

2014

880,24

2015

959,15

764,08

Sacombank is ranked the 22nd in
Top
1,000
Vietnamese
Corporate
Taxpayers (V1000) announced by
Vietnam
Report
and
VietnamNet
newspapers based on the data review
and assessment result from General
Department of Taxation, Tax Magazine,
Vietnam Report, VietnamNet newspaper
and
local/international
independent
experts.
With objective of becoming the leading
modern and retail bank in region,
Sacombank has been improving and
promoting its advantages, non-stop
innovating to aim at comprehensive
and sustainable development target. Its
ranking in Top V1000 2015 proves the
efforts and achievements of Sacombank
during last years in contributing to state
budget and society.
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ENSURE EFFICIENT BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND SUSTAINABLE SOCIAL
DVELOPMENT
Aware that the efficient business performance is the key factor to achieve sustainable
development objectives, Sacombank has actively contributed to the community by
practical actions:
»»

Create jobs for local labor: Given its large scale, operational stability, professional
working environment and appropriate human resource policy, Sacombank has
created jobs and ensured wellbeing for 16,000 employees nationwide.

»»

Bring benefit for customers: Through research, development and continuous
improvement, Sacombank has provided more than 3 millions of individual and
corporate customers with profiting and safe products and services to facilitate
business, thus contributing to the economic growth.

»»

Develop and enhance awareness for community: Sacombank has conducted the
practical activities for sustainable development of community by spending a part
of profits for charity activities, scholarship sponsor for young talents, sharing with
elders, orphans, building public toilets to clean environment...
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MODERN FINANCIAL SERVICES

NUMBER OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS IN 2015

19

INTERNATIONAL
PAYMENT

35
LOANS

3%

39
CARDS

32

MONETARY

32

4

DEPOSITS

25

INTERNET
BANKING

97%

MONETARY
Corporate customers

Description
Number of customers

Individual customers

Individual customers

Corporate customers

3,021,665

91,271

In which, number of customers using monetary products and services at the Regions:
Region

Number of individual customers

Number of corporate customers

Northern Central Region

12,264

284

Southeast Region

20,911

782

East Hochiminh City

34,583

1,658

8,907

353

South Central Region and Highlands

11,216

190

Southwest Region

25,550

287

West Hochiminh City

24,360

1,808

Hanoi Region

20,337

1,216

158,128

6,578

Northern region

Total

Besides, to maximize interests for customers and differentiate products and services, Sacombank has developed
its Premium Banking named Sacombank Imperial. As at 31 December 2015, the number of premium customers
reached 2,154 customers with total deposits of VND 21,823 billion at 134 potential branches/transaction offices.
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SUPPLY PROCESS OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
Method of selecting suppliers
Sacombank now has 50 suppliers and sets service
quality as top priority in choosing suppliers.
Accordingly, Sacombank has improved its internal
resource and deliberately obeyed with relevant
process and regulations in choosing suppliers.
The criteria to evaluate suppliers include (i) Legal
Capacity; (ii) Financial Capacity; (iii) Experience;
(iv) Meeting technical requirement.
Besides, by implementing the Environmental and
Social Impact Assessment System in loan approval,
Sacombank will set the process to integrate the
environmental and social risk assessment factors
into the criteria to evaluate suppliers. The criteria
includes the environmental and social commitment of
suppliers such as commitment of using input material
and treating waste in their business operations,
commitment of being responsible for employees and
not using children labor or compulsory labor.
Policy of using material and choosing local
suppliers
»»

Sacombank is cautious in choosing environmental
protection material under the environmental and
social standard ISO14001 and ISO 9706.

»»

Sacombank prioritizes choosing the local
suppliers to save cost and support local economic
growth.

CUSTOMER-ORIENTED FINANCIAL SERVICES
Sacombank always aims at “Satisfaction for
Customers” while providing financial services.
Therefore, Sacombank welcomes all feedback
about products and services. The Bank considers
the opinions and complaints from customers as
opportunities to improve its service quality, so as
to enhance relationship with customers. Through
Customer Service Center, Sacombank recorded and
settled 908,395 ideas of customers sent via emails,
chat, phone and fanpage. As a result, Sacombank
evaluated the idea quality of customers in 2015
compared to 2014 via following indicators:
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Quality of call response:
Indicators

2015

Feedback within 10 seconds (service level)
Abandonment call rate
Average speed of answer (ASA)

2014

85%

85%

6%

2.3%

4 seconds

4 seconds

Content classification of responded calls:
Content of calls

2015

2014

Queries

90.1%

99%

Complaints

0.03%

0.01%

Compliments and other purposes

9.8%

1%

Selling opportunity from consultancy calls

30%

10%

100%

100%

Feedback rate

Besides, Sacombank applied some improvement such as:
Service improvement
Online International payment (eLC): Customers
can actively conduct the international payment
transactions via Internet Banking such as:
»»

Allow customers to open At-sight import LC or
Deferred Payment LC;

»»

Query the import/export LC informed/opened by
Sacombank;

»»

Query the import/export LC bills transferred/
received by Sacombank;

»»

Application for Export Bills for Collection;

»»

Application for Return/Investigation of Export Bills
for Collection;

»»

Query the Export/Import Bills for Collection
transferred/received by Sacombank;

»»

Query the guarantee informed by Sacombank.

Efax Service: Enterprises now can enjoy the quick,
safe and thrift transaction by using Efax - technology
application in Document Transaction Service of
Domestic Payment, International Payment and
Guarantee. Efax provides trendy, convenient and
diversified transaction channels for corporate
enterprises.
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Safe and Secure Card Service
3D Secure Service (Online Payment Confirmation
Service): This is the highest secure method in
online payment to protect rights of card owners and
e-commerce enterprises, protecting them from fake
transactions or card information thieves.
Chip Card: This card requires higher security in
encoding/decoding information than magnetic
cards. Chip Card has not been hacked in the world.
Sacombank alert: Sacombank will monitor the
transactions of customers. As there are abnormal
transactions, Sacombank staffs will actively contact
customers to confirm the transactions.
SMS: If cardholders make any transactions,
Sacombank will send an SMS to support customers
to monitor transactions.
Inform and alert cardholders to use card safely: Send
email/post on website information that cardholders
should consider in their card transactions.

Internet Banking and Mobile Banking: Customers now
can enjoy 24/7 Banking Service via their computer
and internet-connected phone.
Solutions for online payment security:
»» Confirm the multi-factor transactions -OTP is a
must.
»» Regularly collaborates with the global prestigious
audit companies such as KPMG, E&Y to test the
security periodically or right before providing
services to customers.
Sacombank has deployed the pioneering services in
Vietnam via Internet Banking/Mobile Banking such as:
»» Money transfer to Visa Card.
»» Money receive by Mobile (Money receive at ATM,
without card).
»» Bill payment by Credit Card.
»» Electronic pre-paid card purchase.
Building professional business environment:
At present, given advanced technology, product
and service advantages are nearly same. It is
most important to add values for direct financial
products and services to customers, who support
with Sacombank prosperity. In which, the service
quality from staff also plays key to enhance banking
competition.
Understanding that, Sacombank has deployed 2
programs of 5S (Productivity Improvement) and MS
(Secret Customers) in entire system to train employees
about dedicated customer service, professionalism
and service consistency.

Modern and Safe Internet Banking Service
The Automatic Bill Payment Authority Service:
Customers register service once and then
Sacombank will make the automatic payment for
periodical bills (electricity, water, fixed telephone,
mobile telephone, internet, cable television...).
The payment is made from both debit and credit
account.

In parallel, Sacombank has applied the One-door
transaction to renovate the reception area, removing
barriers in counters to offer a spacious and friendly
environment for customers, yet to ensure safe
transaction and simple procedure, thus saving labor
power and enhancing productivity. At the same time,
the One-Door Transaction has ensured simple and
orderly document transportation process to facilitate
professional and dedicated working manner to meet
the higher requirements from customers
Sacombank has researched and applied the Quality
Management System under ISO 9001:2008. The
system will enhance quality of products and services,
working efficiency, competitive advantages and
reputation in quality...
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Besides, Sacombank has researched the Service
Level Agreement (SLA). It is considered the
agreement/commitment between service providers
and users in terms of time, service quality... via the
specific measurement criteria to support customers

»»

Review, arrange and install ATM/POS/Kios at
convenient and reasonable locations such as
supermarkets, commercial centers, airports,
tourist spots, grand hotels, universities, college
villages and new urban residents...

»»

Invest in electronic banking (Internet Banking and
Mobile Banking), automatic transaction counters
and enhance other online transactions... to serve
customers fulltime.

»»

Upgrade the Customer Service Center to Profit
Center with direct Telesales

»»

Develop the channels to support customers
update information relating to Sacombank
products and services such as Sacombank
fanpage
and
website
(www.sacombank.
com), Sacombank promotion microsite (http://
khuyenmai.sacombank.com)

Sacombank has expanded its card distribution
network to offer products to customers via:
»»

Full-time staff channel: Sacombank employees
consult customers about card products/services
and procedure.

»»

Freelancer channel: Sacombank freelancers also
consult customers about Sacombank card.

Creative in business

use services and response to the violations. At the
same time, via this commitment, the units will control
time and quality to periodically review, appraise and
improve service quality.
Expand and diversify service channels
Sacombank network now covers 48/63 provinces
nationwide and in Indochine region. After network
expansion, Sacombank now focuses on quality of
transaction points to ensure network efficiency.
Besides, the strategy of approaching the modern
transaction channel is deemed the outstanding
solution in market expansion, as details:

The contest named “Creating product and service
packages” was held from 12 October 2015 to
12 November 2015 to seek for precious ideas in
products and services. The contest received 412
ideas from contestants. The idea contribution has
demonstrated the creativeness of employees in crossselling products and services, and their eagerness in
participating in internal contests.
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OVERVIEW OF HUMAN RESOURCE STRUCTURE IN 2015
Number of employees

Average income

Employees

Million Dong

25,000

18.8

19
18
17

20,000
15.45

16.23

15,505

15,000

16
15

11,753

14

10,710

13

10,000

12
5,000

11
10

0

9
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2015
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Kinh
95%

Male
50.49%

Employees
by gender

Employees by
ethnic groups

Female
49.51%

Other
5%

Hanoi Region 8

8%

15%

Head Office 13

13%
Male
40%

15%

Employees with
labor contract
of more than
1 year

New employees
by gender
Female
60%

11%

Southeast Region 11
7%

East Hochiminh City Region 13
Northern Region 7

11%

South Central Region and Highlands 11
Southeast Region 15

13%

7%

Northern Central Region 7

West Hochiminh City Region

Employee by regions

Hanoi Region

45.23%

54.77%

West Hochiminh City Region

48.67%

51.33%

Southwest Region

52.78%

47.22%

South Central Region and Highlands

55.84%

44.16%

Northern Region

51.02%

48.98%

East Hochiminh City Region

45.94%

54.06%

Southeast Region

51.88%

48.12%

Northern Central Region

50.96%

49.04%

Male

Postgraduate 1%

Female

0.2%
2.8%

Below high
school
7%

18%

13.7%

High school
16%
Vocational
school
7%
Colleges
8%

Board of Management
Employees
by
education

Employees
by
positions
Graduate
61%

High-class managers
Mid-class managers
Employees/Specialists
Security guards/Drivers/Cleaners

65.3%
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EFFECTIVE COMPENSATION AND BENEFIT POLICY
Policy and process to decide the compensation and benefits for the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors
2015 brought bunches of work for Sacombank due to its merger with Southern Bank.
Conducting its full-time management role, the Board of Directors accompanied the
Board of Management to accomplish the merger in accordance with policy and direction
of the State Bank of Vietnam. Despite the turbulence of the economy and banking finance sector, Sacombank obtained encouraging business results. The results proved
BOD role of steering, directing and supporting the Board of Management consistently
and thoroughly.
In 2015, BOD members actively participated in the Committees/Councils/Boards set up
by the Board of Directors and took more positions in various sectors. The work of BOD
soared in both quantity and quality. Despite that, compensation and benefits for the
Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors remained at VND 40 billion approved by
the Board of Shareholders.
The Board of Shareholders decides the compensation, bonus, other interests and
especially the operating cost for the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors.
Before holding the Annual Shareholder Meeting (or Extraordinary Meetings), the Board of
Directors gathered the meetings to agree on the compensation for the Board of Directors,
the Board of Directors to submit to the Board of Shareholders.

127
Sustainable Development Report

Compensation and benefit policy for the BOM
Compensation and benefit for the BOM and
Employees are paid monthly based on positions and
titles; performance indicators, average income of
labor market and talent retain policy of Sacombank.
Salary and bonus policy based on performance
efficiency
Sacombank pays salary for employees based on
their capacity and qualification without differentiation
of race, skin color, religion, gender, age or ethnic
origin... Salary is calculated on Coefficient of Salary
applied for positions and titles and based on their
KPIs.
Annual salary adjustment is conducted based on
performance of each employee, business efficiency
of Sacombank and in reference with average income
of labor market. Sacombank strives to build the
competitive payroll and allowance policy to retain
talents and attract new employees.
Bonus policy
Annual bonus:
»»

Bonus for individual title is based on the year-end
employee evaluation result.

»»

Bonus for departments/units is based on the
year-end department evaluation result.

»»

Bonus 13th month salary.

»»

Other bonuses such as: Bonus for accomplishing
or exceeding business targets (if any).

Unscheduled bonus:
Apart from the above mentioned bonus, Sacombank
also applies the unscheduled bonus to encourage and
celebrate the individuals/groups who achieve one of
the following results: Making remarkable contribution,
obtaining the outstanding results in performance/
exceeding business results; Making creative ideas
and solutions; Participating in and winning awards in
contests/competitions held by Sacombank.

The starting salary by gender compared with the
local salary
Under Vietnam law, the minimum salary nationwide
is stipulated at VND 1,150,000. The regional highest
minimum salary applied in Hochiminh City and Hanoi
is VND 3,320,000. The lowest salary of Sacombank
employees in Hochiminh City and Hanoi is
VND 3,936,000 (excluding lunch allowance); in other
provincial regions is VND 3,570,000 (excluding lunch
allowance). These numbers mean that Sacombank
minimum salaries are now 7% higher than the highest
minimum salary in Vietnam.
Business Trip Expense Policy
The business trip expenses for employees are
applied for various titles, including: Transportation,
accommodation, allowance, transaction limit, calling
using limit.
Risk Provision Policy
Employees working in treasury departments (cashiers,
assistants, treasury tellers, tellers, employees taking
care of retailer customers in markets...) and ATM
fund receivers/ fund controllers are offered with risk
allowance due to their works relating to cash, precious
assets, valuable notes...
Preferential loan policy
Sacombank provides employees with the preferential
loan policies in interest rate, payment methods and
term borrowing...
“Sacombank talents” recognition
During its history, Sacombank has always
appreciated and respected the contribution of
employees. Typically, Sacombank has recorded and
celebrated the individuals devoting themselves for the
development of Sacombank by recognizing “Typical
Sacombank talents”. Sacombank talents will enjoy
the preferential policies and retirement pension paid
by Sacombank. The retirement pension is effective
from their retirement/resignation from Sacombank.
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DEMOCRACY AND GENDER EQUALITY
Democracy
Sacombank always shares operational information to its employees, especially
information directly concerning employees such as salary policy, bonus, allowance,
working places... Employees are informed of the result of implementing Collective Labor
Agreement. The employees are encouraged to speak publicly their expectations and
earnestly to contribute to Sacombank. Such rights are written in documents signed by the
Board of Directors and the Board of Management.
Sacombank encourages its employees to contribute their ideas, opinions to Sacombank
activities. Moreover, desires and expectations of employees will be submitted to the
leaders via Labor Union Conferences held at Head Office or units. Hence, all concerns
of employees are fairly and timely listened and settled.
Gender equality
Sacombank understands that fair treatment with employees will create the fair and
transparent working environment, so as to facilitate working capacity and creativity to
contribute to the long-term development of Sacombank and enhance their personal
values. Sacombank has developed the human resource policy without discrimination in
gender, ethnics, skin color, social positions, religion... Sacombank sets gender equality
as priority in human resource policy. This is proved by male/female balance in human
resource structure.

Human resource by gender
Number of female

Number of male

Managers

32.26%

67.74%

49.63%

Other positions

0%

20%

50.37%

40%

60%

80%

100%
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»»

For female employees, the Bank provides them with
pregnancy period under law and gift granting on
Women’s Day 8 March, 20 October... Within 6 months
after childbirth, they are allowed to work 7 hours per
day (instead of 8 hours). Sacombank is willing to pay
higher expenses for female periodic health check
after supplementing more female checking/testing
content.
HUMAN RIGHT
Sacombank has concerned about human rights
during its operations, in details:
»»

Compulsory labor is forbidden at Sacombank.
Employees are protected their legal rights and
benefits.

»»

Sacombank understands that child labor using
may discontinue child education or endanger
their physical and spiritual health, brain capacity,
ethics or social kills of children. As a result, child
labor is strictly forbidden under any manner at
Sacombank.

Ethnic minorities: Sacombank committees not to
directly/indirectly violate rights of ethnic minorities
negatively. At the same time, Sacombank
develops specific products and services to
support the local ethnic minorities such as
household business development products/
services, coffee industry finance...

Sacombank associates these issues into its
Environmental and Social Management System
(ESMS) applied for loan approval at Sacombank.
Accordingly, Sacombank employees must consider
and record all the issues relating to compulsory labor,
child labor using or bad influence to ethnic minorities
while appraising customers before approving loans.
At the same time, Sacombank focuses on training
of human rights such as Code of Conduct, Code of
Service Quality. 100% employees are trained the
above documents after signing in the labor contract.
In 2015, Sacombank trained new recruitment for
19,686 hours.
CARE ABOUT EMPLOYEE HEALTH
Periodic health check
Sacombank provides employees with annual health
check and health assurance.
Risk allowance for employees working in high
risky departments
Sacombank offers the career allowance for highdanger positions. The number of employees working
under risky situation is 5,783 employees in total 15,504
employees, equivalent to 37% of total employees.
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The positions are offered career allowance

Employees

Teller

2,066

Security guards

1,874

Treasury Teller

946

Cashier

569

Specialist of Retailer Customers

126

Team Leader of Security

72

Customer Care Officer/Specialist

68

Treasury Assistant

46

Team Leader of Customer Care

6

Treasury Receiver

4

ATM Audit Specialist

3

Deputy Team Leader of Security

2

Team Leader of Treasury Receiver

1

Remaining employees

Employees with career allowance

37%

63%
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157,928
participants joined and accomplished
the professional courses via E-learning

TRAINING
Human resource training and development is one
of key objectives to prepare the next generations.
In recent years, Sacombank has developed the
managing teams and sharp sales teams to meet
the market demand. The training programs are
customized for each position with diversified
content.
Sacombank has digitalized its human resource
management and training, by (i) Investing in human
resource management software; (ii) Developing
online survey of expectation and desire from
employees, thus improving policy and working
environment; (iii) Building the programs to manage
revenue of sales teams and working quality of
back-office teams, (iv) Online evaluation program
to assess correctly the performance efficiency of
employees in entire system with the quantitative
indicators to enhance the efficiency of salary and
bonus policy at Sacombank; (v) Applying Online
Manager Evaluation program to plan and train
managers; (vi) Growing Online Training Website
and E-learning...

In 2015, Sacombank held 384 training courses
to enhance skills and qualification for 17,673
participants. Besides, 157,928 participants joined
and accomplished the professional courses via
E-learning...
Most of Sacombank managers are trained and
promoted internally. Hence, Sacombank prepares
and trains potential employees from units via
the manager recruitment programs, Talent
Contest. These activities are to recruit potential
employees for advanced training to enhance their
management knowledge and skill, thus facilitating
their motivation and promotion. The training
courses provide candidates for positions of Branch
Director, Transaction Office Manager, Department
Manager... In 2015, Sacombank recruited 1,634
employees in 8 regions for the Potential Manager
Program. Accordingly, 62.02% employees passed
the test and entered the interview with Regional
Office.

Number of employees to be trained by courses and by positions:
Training course

Skill training course

Skill training course

Total

Number of employees

Number of managers

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000
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PREPARE NEXT GENERATION
As at 31 December 2015, Sacombank recruited 2,134
employees in total employees 15,505 (net increase
of 1,054 employees, mainly the Customer Senior
Officers, Consultants and Tellers) to meet the business
demand, expand market and maximize values for
customers.
Sacombank holds annual tests of professionalism
and knowledge of employees by their positions,
performance results, compliance, capacity and

potential to define their career path. The excellent
employees will be planned, trained and allocated to
potential managers.
Employee qualification meets the work demand
Sacombank has high-educated employees to meet its
banking operations. The ratio of university employees
accounts for 63% of total employees.

Education of
employees

Postgraduate

Number of
employees

Ratio

219

1%

University

9,517

61%

Colleges

1,229

8%

Vocational school

1,076

7%

High school

2,434

16%

Below high school

1,030

7%

15,505

100%

Total

Promotion principles for employees
Sacombank defined the career path for employees via
the Promotion Scheme applied for various positions.
Besides, Sacombank built the Capacity Dictionary
for each position to stipulate detailed requirements
of knowledge, experience, skill, characteristic and
personality... to help employees define their career
path, thus striving and self-training to achieve their
career goals.
Sacombank decides that all employees are offered
fair promotion opportunities. Employees are
encouraged to discuss with their managers about

their work, concerns, ideas and opinions. Employees
will be quarterly and annually evaluated. The
employees with the “excellent” evaluation results will
be considered for training, planning and allocating to
potential managers.
Employees are encouraged to apply for manager
positions at internal website
http://nhansu.sacombank.com.
The
application
information will be secured. Every year Sacombank
updates the list of potential managers for the
Training Programs to serve the development goals at
Sacombank.
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Promotion scheme sample:
B Department

...Department

...Department

Team Leader

Employee

A Department

2 years

2 years

2 years

2 years

2 years

2 years

Team Leader

Head Unit Chief

Supervisor

2 years

1 year

Team Leader

1 year

Programs to connect employees
Annual Sacombank Talent Festival: To
create
opportunities for Sacombank employees to prove
their knowledge and qualification. This is also an
occasion that Sacombank can detect and select their
potential next generations.
Extensive Sacombank Football League: To foster the
sport spirit at Sacombank.

Teambuilding S-One Program: Aware of the power
of group collaboration, Sacombank organizes
training programs combined with teambuilding and
entertainment to build awareness of collective spirit
and power, thus removing the barriers between
teams/units for mutual understanding and better
cooperation.

134
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT 2015 (continued)
HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

Next generation policy
Next generation preparation:
Sacombank issued Capacity Standard Set to stipulate KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS and
PERSONALITY of managers to deliver the best working results. Sacombank has built the
software to evaluate capacity of employees with 3 tools as follows:

»» Knowledge Evaluation Tool (Exam Question Bank): To manage exam question bank in

entire system by qualification and by positions; provide the automatic exam questions
by positions, automatic marking, exporting and reporting the results by positions and
departments...

»» Skill and Personality Evaluation Tool (360o Evaluation Software): Including the questions
to define the skill levels and personality of evaluated people by 360o Evaluation model
(evaluated by subordinates, same levels and superiors). This model will provide the
multi-dimensional information about evaluated person to ensure objective evaluation
results.
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»» Via the programs such as Annual Knowledge

Branch. As a result, 80% interns were approved to
sign the Probation Contract, 5% interns met the
requirement of the Apprentice Program in 2017.

Back-up workforce development

Besides, Sacombank deploys other programs such as
Developing the recruitment sources for entire system;
Upgrading recruitment website; Association program
with Universities/ Colleges to grant scholarship
named “Sacombank - Nurturing dreams”; Potential
Manager program.

Contest, Next Generation Plan, Potential Branch
Director and Transaction Office Manager.

In 2015, Sacombank deployed new back-up
workforce policy to protect the units from human
resource shortage. The back-up human resource is
also recruited as official employees.
In 2015, The Apprentice Program was deployed
nationwide and attracted more than 13,000 senior
students from 153 universities and colleges. After 3
rounds of testing and interviewing (similar to official
recruitment), Sacombank recruited 719 apprentices
for transaction offices, significantly contributing jobs
for graduates and promoting efficiency in preparing
high quality candidates for Sacombank. As a result,
359 apprentices passed the requirements and are
retained to work at Sacombank, accounting for 50%
of total apprentices in 2015.
After meeting input requirements, the apprentices
are fundamentally trained the banking competence
and knowledge of products and services combined
with direct operation, especially practicing on Core
Banking Program T24 at counters of simulated bank
model. The training supports apprentices to adapt
with working environment if they are recruited officially
after graduating.
Sacombank pioneers to hold the Program
“Sacombank Semester in 2015” to enhance the
quality of new recruitment and provide the junior
students with better understanding and knowledge
preparation for future jobs. The programs are first
applied for junior students of The University of
Economics and Law Hochiminh City. There were
approximately 300 applicants. After the short-list and
interview, Sacombank recruited 22 junior students as
interns to send to Thu Duc Branch and Binh Thanh

Ratio of employees coming back after pregnancy
leave
100% of female employees came back to work after
6-month pregnancy leave, except others leaving
for personal reasons. 20% of female employees
personally desired to come back to work just after 4
months of pregnancy leave. All these cases submitted
their application for early return after preparing the
confirmation papers from authorized hospitals/clinics
to prove their sufficient health for work.
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RISK MANAGEMENT
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Sacombank wishes to achieve the environmental and social risk management capacity
by improving the Environmental and Social Management System (ESMS) and applying
for loan approval. The Bank chose the approach method that combines all these factors:

Strategy
Corporate Governance
Model consists of: The
Board of Directors, Board of
Management, ESMS Group,
Legal Compliance Department,
3 lines of defenses of ESMS

Process of assessing the integrated
environmental and social impact and Loan
Approval Process

The Excel tool includes questions about environmental and
social impact toward customers

Set up ESMS team at Head Office and training employees (Customer Relation Senior Officer,
Loan Assessment Senior Officer) at branches/relevant departments.

Define risk management strategy and risk appetite
To minimize the environmental and social risk in loan portfolio, Sacombank encourages
application of high standard in sustainable development. Sacombank only provides
financial services for customers delivering the objectives in environmental and social
management or customers having a clear progress in meeting these objectives.
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Define the effective Environmental and Social Management System (ESMS)
To ensure the effective ESMS, Sacombank applies the following model:

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Build up the long-term sustainable development vision for Sacombank, defining the
risk appetite for ESMS, approving the environmental and social policy
THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
Approving the process of assessing the economic, environmental and social impact in the Bank
ESMS Group

The Legal Compliance Department

Drafting and supervising the implementation
of economic, environmental and social
policies and process; Proposing ideas for the
economic, environmental and social protection.

Enhancing customer commitment whose
business operations may have economic,
environmental and social impact and
informing the Board of Credit.

1st line of defense

2nd line of defense

3rd line of defense

Customer Care Executive,
Loan Assessment Executive.

The levels that approve loans.

Internal Audit.

»» The Board of Directors: Be highest responsible for Environmental and Social Risk
Management at Sacombank.

»» The Board of Management: Be responsible for steering implementation of policy and
regulations in environmental and social risk management.

»» The dedicated ESMS team: Be responsible for implementing the environmental and
social policy.

Sacombank applies the approach of “3 lines of defenses” to implement the Environmental
and Social Management System, with detailed responsibilities:

»» The first line of defense: Be responsible for assessing the environmental and social
impact from customers and transactions;

»» The second line of defense: Consists of the authorized levels approving loans based
on the environmental and social impact assessment results.

»» The third line of defense, or Internal Audit: Includes the regional audit teams
responsible for periodically reviewing the compliance with environmental and social
impact assessment policy and regulations of Sacombank.
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Build the environmental and social risk management policy and process
The advanced ESMS includes: (i) Environmental and Social Policy; (ii) Guidelines of
Environmental and Social Impact Assessment. Accordingly, the environmental and
social policy is set up to encourage the application of international standard. At the same
time, the guide of environmental and social impact assessment with specific process
is to evaluate and classify arising environmental and social risks during transactions
with customers. Hence, Sacombank can detect the environmental and social risk and its
impact to itself, then provides the appropriate financial support.

Build the environmental and social risk assessment tool
Environmental and social risk assessment tool is built to evaluate the various environmental
and social risk levels with different customers.

Train the specialized human resource
Training program is integrated to Sacombank annual training program to enhance
capacity of new recruitment and existing employees.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (ESMS) IN LOAN APPROVAL
The advanced ESMS of Sacombank was deployed
in August 2012. Accordingly, the environmental and
social policy was set up on the basis of applying
international standards, such as:

»» United Nations (UN) Global Compact;
»» United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP)
Financial Initiative;

»» Compact Announcement on Principle Concerning

Multinational Enterprises and Social Policies drafted
by the International Labor Organization (ILO);

»» Equator Principles and Best Practice Guide
stipulated by the International Financial Corporation
(IFC) toward project loan approval.

At the same time, guidance on the assessment
of environmental and social impacts with specific
evaluation procedures helps Sacombank to evaluate
and classify risks arising from business activities of
customers and transactions that Sacombank intends
to finance for customers. Since then, Sacombank has
been able to identify the potential environmental and
social risks and risks of Sacombank's operations in
order to make appropriate financing decisions.

Result matrix

Result
classification

E&S Risk Management of customers
Above the sector
average

Average of sector

Below the sector
average

Weak

Type A

HIGH

HIGH

HIGH

HIGH

Type B

AVERAGE

AVERAGE

AVERAGE

HIGH

Type C

LOW

LOW

AVERAGE

LOW

DEVELOP RISK MANAGEMENT IN LINE WITH BASEL II
Sacombank is one of 10 commercial banks selected
by the State Bank of Vietnam to deploy Basel II.
The international standards are steadily applied to
stipulate capital adequacy ratio for banks to deal with
unexpected fluctuations of financial market and macro
economy. The year 2015 initiated series of projects
under the journey of applying Basel II. Sacombank had
prepared for Basel II with the typical projects including:

»» Improving the organizational chart with 3 lines:

Business - Support - Supervision thoroughly from
Head Quarter to Branches.

»» Risk Management training for positions in Business

and Support such as Customer Care Senior Officer,
Consultants, Tellers, Cashiers, etc.

»» Checking the automatic credit rating model.
»» Operating online debt management program.
»» Deploying the centralized loan approval program.
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INTERNAL AUDIT
In 2015, Internal Audit has continued its role as the third line of defense in risk management
model of Sacombank.

ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING (AML) POLICY
Sacombank has focused and invested in policy, information technology, training to prepare
human resource and collaborate with the State Bank of Vietnam to stop the money laundering
and terrorist financing. Sacombank has built the anti-money laundering program with
sufficient factors to effectively implement the anti-money laundering, as details:
Organizational structure of anti-money laundering system
Sacombank has built the anti-money laundering system from Head Quarter to Branches to:

»» Build, control and supervise the implementation of legal documents relating to anti-money
laundering.

»» Operate the Anti-Money Laundering Program (AML Express).
»» Set up relationship with correspondence banks.
»» Consult the compliance of anti-money laundering and other trade embargo.
»» Report.
»» Train.
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Internal regulations
Sacombank built and issued sufficient internal
documents to implement the anti-money laundering
to ensure anti-money laundering directed from the
highest level (the Board of Directors and the Board of
Management).
Information technology system
Sacombank collaborated with GTONE Company
from Korea to build the anti-money laundering
system including customer recognization, customer
classification by risk levels, advanced assessment of
customers, filtering transactions/customers compared
with the black list, to detect suspicious transactions in
alignment with anti-money laundering regulations.
Simultaneously,
Sacombank
applies
different
programs provided by Accuity to review all
commercial finance transactions with embargo list of
individuals/ organizations, commodities, transportation
ports to ensure the compliance with Vietnam Law
and international recommendations in anti-money

laundering. Apart from the copyright AML Express
supplied by foreign partner, Sacombank has built and
successfully operated high-value cash transactions
reporting system and online money transfer transaction
in compliance with Law of Anti-Money Laundering and
other guidance documents, to ensure all transactions
be reported sufficiently and timely to Anti-Money
Laundering Administration - the State Bank of Vietnam.
Internal Audit
Sacombank builds the internal audit process to facilitate
independent review and evaluation of Internal Audit
and ensure the compliance with internal regulations
and suggestions, hence proposing the solutions to
enhance efficiency and effectiveness of anti-money
laundering.
Training
All Sacombank employees (except for security guards,
cleaners, drivers and administrative staff) are trained
to enhance their awareness of anti-money laundering.
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CONTRIBUTE AND DEVELOP
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY/
NEXT GENERATION

Enhance Vietnam brand value

Support finance for community development

Community development activities
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Training next generation to promote creativity

Local recruitment
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SUPPORT FINANCE FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Apart from traditional products, Sacombank deploys specific products to develop
community such as financing projects of coffee, cashew, aquatic products, rice and
Phu Quoc fish sauce.
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25,700

VND Billion

130

USD million

deployed 10 packages
of preferential loans valued to support enterprises in 2015

ENHANCE VIETNAM BRAND VALUE
To promote Vietnamese
»» Bank - Enterprise Connection Program: On 24 July 2015, at the
3-year Preliminary Summing-up host by Hochiminh City People’s
goods’ reputation, Sacombank
Committee, Sacombank was honored to receive the Certificate
announces various programs
of Merit from Prime Minister for its excellent achievements in
that are well recognized by
connecting banks and enterprises period 2012 - 2015. Since
the government agencies
2015, Sacombank deployed 10 packages of preferential loans
and customers, in details:
valued at VND 25,700 billion and USD 130 million to support the
enterprises nationwide. The Bank also provided enterprises and
business households in 24 districts in Hochiminh City with total
loans of approximately VND 1,888.4 billion via Bank - Enterprise
Connection Program.

»» Administrative renovation: Sacombank collaborated with

government agencies to build administrative renovation
products to save time and cost for enterprises such as Online
Tax Payment, import and export tax collection over the counters,
import and export tax guarantee via online methods...

»» Signed MOU to cross-sell products and services and expand

the customer segments with Vietnam Engine and Agricultural
Machinery Corporation (VEAM) on 24 July 2015

»» Participated in the support program for enterprises,
individuals, business households, retailers to facilitate trading
of Tet goods in 2013 and 2014 with total value of VND 3,000 billion.

»» Sacombank has accompanied Hochiminh City Department of

Industry and Trade, Hochiminh City Women Association and
Hochiminh City University of Economics for 6 years to organize
the short-term training program “Management Training for
Market Management Boards and Sales Skill Training for
Retailers” to enhance professional and modern management
skill and sales skill and to build traditional market brand during
integration. 8,840 managers and retailers were certified. In 2014,
Sacombank expanded this program to 8 provinces in South
East-West region.
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TRAINING NEXT GENERATION
TO PROMOTE CREATIVITY
Sacombank pioneers
associating with universities
to support financial
and banking students to
approach real practice in a
simulated bank.

Sacombank pioneers associating with universities to support
financial and banking students to approach real practice in
a simulated bank. This is the training method that integrates
theory with real practice to enhance students’ confidence. In
2015, Sacombank signed 3 MOUs with 3 universities including
University of Banking, University of Economics and Law,
Hong Bang University. In 2016, Sacombank will continue its
collaboration with 7 universities and colleges nationwide.
More so, Phu Dong Savings is the first financial product designed
for children aged from 0 to 15. The product was inspired by the
Piggy Bank Savings. This is deemed a modern banking service
for children and supported by parents as a practical education
of money saving and values for children.
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LOCAL RECRUITMENT

90

local employees accounts
for more than

%

of total employees
in branches

Sacombank has an extensive branch network of 563 transaction
points covering 48 of 63 provinces nationwide, in Laos and
Cambodia and contributes to the development of communities.
Sacombank recruits local employees with good salary and
welfare to promote life quality of local people, so as to facilitate
business opportunities to improve local economy.
Sacombank has localized its human resource by recruiting local
employees (if they meet the working requirements) during its
new recruitment and internal allocation/assignment. As a result,
Sacombank makes employees feel free in mind to work for
Sacombank and to contribute to the local development. Apart
from providing jobs, Sacombank also organizes meaningful
programs and activities to support community.
At present, local employees accounts for more than 90% of total
employees in branches (except Hochiminh City and Hanoi).

Sacombank labor statistics by regions:
No.

Region

Number of Employees

Ratio (%)

1

Northern Central Region

1,140

7%

2

Southeast Region

1,436

9%

3

East Hochiminh City

2,241

14%

4

Northern region

933

6%

5

South Central Region and Highlands

1,422

9%

6

Southwest Region

2,842

18%

7

West Hochiminh City

2,459

16%

8

Hanoi Region

1,384

9%
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COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES
Blood donation
In 2015, Sacombank continued collaborating with Red Cross
Associations to organize “Sacombank Blood Donation - Sharing
from Heart”. The program attracted more than 1,000 blood
donors from Head Quarter, subsidiaries, branches/transaction
offices in 48 provinces nationwide.
Charity Festival - Lunar New Year 2016
From 19 January 2015 to 9 February 2016, Sacombank
collaborated with Department of Labor, Invalids and Social Affair
in some provinces to visit, send Tet wishes, gifts and a “hong
bao” of rice, milk, sugar, cash to selected group of people in
Hochiminh City, Lang Son, Ha Nam, Thai Nguyen, Bac Ninh,
Quang Tri, Ha Tinh, Da Nang, Gia Lai, Khanh Hoa, Daklak, Binh
Duong, Dong Nai, Tra Vinh, Tien Giang and Long An Provinces.
Sacombank also collaborated with doctors from major hospitals
in Ho Chi Minh City to deliver free health checks and free
medicines in Mo Cay District, Ben Tre Province.
On 31 January 2016, Sacombank collaborated with Hochiminh
City Disadvantaged Children Support Association to hold the
Spring Charity Program - Monkey Year 2016 at Phu Tho Stadium
Hochiminh City. It was attended by more than 5,300 senior
citizens and orphans in Hochiminh City and other neighboring
provinces. The program cost of more than VND 5,3 billion
taken from Welfare Fund, Sacombank Trade Union Fund and
contribution from Sacombank customers and partners. After 13
years of organizing the Spring Charity Program, Sacombank has
set aside VND 38 billion to support charity organizations to bring
happiness of Tet to the selected group of people.
Support students
Sacombank continues its annual Scholarship Foundation
“Sacombank - Nurturing Dreams" to grant scholarships to
2,800 needy students. The “Sacombank Apprentice Program”
provided thousands of jobs to senior students nationwide.
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The “Sacombank runs for community health” program
The marathon has become a traditional event of the Bank. It is
held annually in local provinces situated Sacombank branches
to support community and connect with the local residents.
In 2015, Sacombank held 32 marathons in 32 provinces and
cities with participation of more than 9,600 employees and local
residents.
Other activities
Sacombank has invested in public benches, art benches at cultural
centers, parks, schools, hospitals and airports...; supported the
Program for Islands; supported victims of natural disasters; built
the House of Gratitude; contributed to charity foundations...
Anti-corruption
Sacombank sets up the Steering Board of Anti-corruption and
Anti-crime led by CEO and Steering Sub-board of Anti-corruption
and Anti-crime at branches led by the Branch Directors.
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CONTRIBUTION
FOR ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPROVEMENT

Cost saving

Cost savings from Printing

Reduce the glasshouse
waste and sewage

COST SAVING
This is the meaningful
program to support
Sacombank initiatives
to manage and control
operating cost.

In 2015, Sacombank continued the contest
of Gold idea “Together with Sacombank to
save cost”. The objectives of this contest
were to mobilize the creativity of employees
to contribute ideas and approaches to
control operating cost thereby paving the
habit of cost saving.

There was a slogan - "Saving cost in Sacombank benefits you"
- in which several measures on cost saving were proposed:

»» Control hiring cost and managing human resource.
»» Control costs such as stationary; printing; newspapers;
business trips; petrol; training; marketing and advertising;
ceremonial functions; conferences.

»» Manage the usage of assets and control costs of operations.
This is the meaningful program to support Sacombank initiatives
to manage and control operating cost. As a result, the Bank saved
from reducing fixed asset investment, petrol cost and using the
fixed asset investment budget reasonably and effectively.
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Enhance awareness of
environmental protection for
community

Build efficient working
environment

Promote creativity in
environment improvement

Unit: VND Billion
Content

2013

2014

2015

Total

Actual

Total

Actual

Total

Actual

Petrol

44.30

39.04

47.75

44.23

50.14

38.03

Electricity, water and
cleaning cost

97.29

84.53

103.56

90.71

102.46

110.18

Business trip fee

31.46

25.00

28.14

35.05

34.05

30.86

Paper printing

36.80

33.44

39.60

34.64

38.86

43.05

Fixed asset investment

818.00

453.71

900.00

553.72

622.85

476.38

Working tool investment

35.22

35.93

44.65

66.47

58.47

86.82

906.83

785.31

Total
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Cost savings from Printing
The Bank improved
awareness of environmental
protection for employees,
Paper printing was minimized
and employees were
encouraged to recycle
the one-side papers to save
papers.

The Bank improved awareness of environmental protection for
employees. By applying e-Office, S-Helpdesk, customer payment
document supervision; employment time checking system, asset
management and working tool management, Sacombank cuts
the cost significantly.
Paper printing was minimized and employees were encouraged
to recycle the one-side papers to save papers.
The Bank worked with paper suppliers to use papers with clear
country of origin to ensure that 100% natural material for papers
under the social and environment standard of ISO 140001 and
ISO 9706. The Bank aims to use environmentally friendly paper.
The Bank is considering switching to internal communication
and E-learning. The courses will be installed on employees’
computer. The Bank shall apply digital communications and
marketing activities to minimize leaflets, brochures or other
printed documents.

REDUCE THE GLASSHOUSE WASTE AND SEWAGE
Sacombank is aware of the issues negatively impacting the
environment, increasing the glasshouse waste and influencing
community health, such as:

»» Emissions from vehicles of employees and customers getting in
and out the offices.

»» Emissions from domestic waste during operations.
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Sacombank has deployed solutions to minimize the negative
impact to environment and then to green the environment:

»» To reduce the greenhouse waste and create fresh and
spacious environment, Sacombank plants trees at the offices
in entire system.

»» Set up waste bins and waste treatment under law.
»» Install air fans and minimize vehicles parking at the basements
to ensure air circulation.

»» Set up internal cleaners and outsource cleaners to ensure

continuous and professional sanitary services inside and
outside the working area.

»» Classify the common solid waste (printing papers, pens,
carton papers...) and hazardous wastes (light bulb, printing
ink, chemicals...) and propose secure and suitable treatment
methods.

BUILD EFFICIENT WORKING ENVIRONMENT
With the strategic direction
of becoming “The leading
Vietnamese retail bank and
regional-oriented bank”,
Sacombank has improved
product/service advantages
to serve customers. It also
applies the flexible business
strategy to standardize and
ensure operational quality.

With the strategic direction of becoming “The leading Vietnamese
retail bank and regional-oriented bank”, Sacombank has
improved product/service advantages to serve customers. It also
applies the flexible business strategy to standardize and ensure
operational quality.
Sacombank builds and sets up the Sacombank Standard Model
applied for both front offices and back offices (Supervision
and Support). Sacombank also organizes the competition
for Sacombank Standard Model annually. The program has
connected leaders and employees to build strong-standard
units, to affirm the style, image and culture of Sacombank, to
reach:
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1

Objective

Satisfied customers

To become the Sacombank Standard Model requires
the comprehensive role of unit leaders to build the
Sacombank Standard Model. The unit leaders are
expected to convey the objective and direction
thoroughly and consistently in each period. At the
same time, they must manage resources such as
human resource, assets, financial capacity... to aim at
“Safe Operations - Effective Business - Sustainable

3

2

Mission

Standardize and Renovate

Development”. This is a meaningful program of
Sacombank to solve urgent issues currently, to affirm
Sacombank position and to implement the desire
and expectation in sustainable development of
Sacombank - a standard and unique bank.
The SACOMBANK STANDARD MODEL is made of
3 key values and 2 documentations:

Standard
Model

key values

Corporate
governance

Sacombank
people

Sacombank
unit

The standard service quality
documentation includes:
»» Group of Sacombank people standard: to build

up the image of standard Sacombank people
to represent Sacombank in commitment of
implementing responsibilities to serve customers.

»» Group of Sacombank unit standard: to aim at the

modern and professional customer care. Focus on
the roles of unit leaders in organizing, managing,
training and allocating employees to ensure the
service quality commitment under the quality and
quantity policy of Sacombank.

The corporate governance handbook
is prepared to standardize all corporate governance
regulations of Sacombank. It also gathers the
business philosophy and experience of the leader
generations on corporate governance skills and
human resource management. This is to support the
managers of next generations to study and apply in

management. The corporate governance handbook
and the Service Quality Standard Documentation are
referred to evaluate the capacity of unit leaders and
set the foundation to build the criteria for Sacombank
Standard Model.

155
Sustainable Development Report

ENHANCE AWARENESS OF ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION FOR COMMUNITY
Sacombank has donated
free and comfortable public
restrooms to support the
local government to create
a fresh image.

Since February 2010, Sacombank has donated free and
comfortable public restrooms to support the local government
to create a fresh image. The project is creative and innovative in
expressing Sacombank’s support for community development.
The free restroom sponsor is highly appreciated by the local
government and is supported by the local residents. Sacombank
has installed 18 free public restrooms in Hochiminh City,
Vung Tau, Lam Dong and some Southwest Provinces.

PROMOTE CREATIVITY IN ENVIRONMENT
IMPROVEMENT
Using IT in daily operations, Sacombank has steadily created
standard of operations including templates, documents and
automated processes; set up an integrated database to minimize
data loss (from employee resignation or computer hacking).
The Bank has developed an online training system, project
management and experience sharing forum...

Apart
from
applying
environmental
protection processes internally, Sacombank
has also re-organized and re-arranged
the work area to save space. The Bank
closed the previous open-space working
corners to reduce electricity consumption
and generating exhaust fumes to the
environment.
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INFORMATION ANNOUNCEMENT
UNDER GRI4 STANDARD
This report consists of information announcement under Sustainable Development
Reporting Guidelines - Global Reporting Initiatives (GRI)			

No.
I.
1

2
II.

GRI

Information announcement

Detailed content

Strategy and analysis
G4-1

Presentation from highest senior manager on
the short, mid and long-term vision.

Message from CEO

106-107

G4-2

Description of key impact, risk and
opportunity from sustainable development
trend, long-term perspective and financial
results of the organization.

Overall description of Sacombank
Sustainable Development

102-103

Organizational Profile

1

G4-3

Name of the organization.

2

G4-4

Report of brand name, key products and services.

3

G4-5

Head Office of the organization.

4

G4-6

Number of countries
locations)
relating
development activities.

5

G4-7

Ownership and
organization.

6

G4-8

Market: geography, region,
segments and beneficiaries.

G4-9

Organizational scale: total employees,
total branches, sales revenue, total capital,
liabilities, shareholder’s equity and number
of products and services.

Sacombank’s profile from financial indicators
and non-financial indicators

7

Page

(the
to

legal

organization
sustainable

model

of

the

customer

Overall information

Organizational network

12-13

22

Milestones

14-15

Sacombank Introduction

12-23

111

8

G4-10

Report of total employees.

Employees are classified into (i) Region, (ii)
Gender, (iii) Management levels (in reference
124-125
to Overall Structure of Sacombank human
resource 2015)

9

G4-11

Percentage of employees is mentioned in the
Labor Collective Agreement.

100% employees sign in the Labor Collective
Agreement (in reference to Promote
democracy in the organization)

128

10

G4-12

Description of the supply chain.

Product and service supply process

120

11

G4-13

Description of key changes in scale, structure
and ownership rights.

Change in the Board of Directors, Board of
Supervisors, Board of Management

92

12

G4-14

Rules of preventing and managing risks in
planning or developing new products.

Risk Management at Sacombank

13

G4-15

Listing of economic, environmental and
social rules and articles developed outside
the organization or other initiatives that the
organization agrees/supports.

Environmental and Social Management
System (ESMS) consulted by PwC that applied
the Equator Principles and Assessment Guide
of financial institutions such as International
Finance Corporation (IFC), Asia Development
Bank (ADB)
Risk Management Model to ensure
sustainable business
Methods to choose suppliers
Risk Management of Sacombank

14

G4-16

Listing of member rights in the working
Ownership right and legal form of Sacombank
associations.

68-69

139

136-138
120
66-69
109
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No.
III.

GRI

Information announcement

Detailed content

Page

Defining key sectors and frontier

1

G4-17

Listing of units mentioned or not mentioned in
the consolidated financial statement.

2

G4-18

Explanation of process of defining the report
content and sector frontier and report rule
implementation.

3

G4-19

Listing of key sectors.

4

G4-20

With each key sector, report the sector
frontier inside the organization.

5

G4-21

With each key sector, report the sector
frontier outside the organization.

Operations
associates

of

subsidiaries

and

foreign

Report Overview

6

G4-22

Report the impact of re-stating information
announced in the previous reports and
reasons.

In Sustainable Development Report 2015
aiming at implementation of strategic
objectives in 2016 with 6 key sectors defined
above, we focus on analyzing the aspects
that are most concerned by Sacombank and
its relevant parties.

7

G4-23

Report of significant changes in scale and
regional frontier compared with the previous
report period.

Level and scale of impact of key sectors

IV.

104-105

113-114

The consultancy of relevant parties

1

G4-24

Listing of relevant parties invited by the
organization.

2

G4-25

Report on the reasons to define and choose
invited parties.

3

G4-26

Report of organizations with the consultancy
of relevant parties.

4

G4-27

Report on the subjects and key concerns
discussed by relevant parties.

V.

59-63

Customers, Employees, Investors, Service
suppliers, Government agencies, Community

110

Engagement of relevant parties

112

Report documents

1

G4-28

Report period.

Report for the period from 1st January 2015 to
31 December 2015

2

G4-29

The latest reporting day.

In 2016 (preparing Sustainable Development
Report 2015)

3

G4-30

Reporting frequency.

Annual

4

G4-31

Key contact:

Email: qlrr@sacombank.com
Hotline: (+84) 283.8469.516

5

G4-32

Report on “appropriate” solutions that the
organization chooses and prepares the
guidelines for GRI appendix.

6

G4-33

Report on external policy and practices

Overall Sustainable Development

104-105
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No.
VI.

GRI

INFORMATION ANNOUNCEMENT
UNDER GRI4 STANDARD (continued)

Information announcement

Detailed content

Page

Corporate Governance
Management structure consists of committees of Activities of the Board of Directors and
the senior management.
Committees

1

G4-34

2

G4-35

Process of authorizing the economic,
environmental and social topics from senior
management to managers.

Environmental and Social Risk Management
Model

135

3

G4-36

Report on responsible person for economic,
environmental, social topics and reporting
system to senior management team.

Highest responsible for Environmental and
Social Risk Management at Sacombank

137

4

G4-37

The consultancy process of relevant parties
and senior management team on economic,
environmental and social issues.

Engagement of relevant parties

112

5

G4-38

The senior management team: independence,
term, commitment, capacity, representation of
relevant parties.

Introduction of BOD, BOS and BOM

78-85

24-30

6

G4-39

The separation or plurality of Chairman and
CEO.

7

G4-40

Process of assigning the senior management
team and committees, criteria in choosing
the members.

Process of assigning members for BOD
and BOM complied with the current law to
ensure their matching with capacity and ethic
requirements

G4-41

Process for the senior management team to
avoid and control the interest conflicts.

At Sacombank, interest conflict management
is clearly stipulated and regulated in the Code
of Conduct applied for the entire system.
Ethics and Truth

115

G4-42

Role of the Board of Directors and CEO
in building and approving the economic,
environmental and social objectives and
policy.

Define the effective Environmental and Social
Risk Management

137

G4-43

Implementation approach to enhance
the knowledge of the Board of Directors
regarding economy, environment and
society.

Training the professional human resource

138

G4-44

Report on the process of evaluating the
performance and action plan of the Board of
Directors.

In 2015, the BOD held 80 meetings
including monthly and quarterly meetings.
In the meetings, the Board of Management
reported business performance monthly
and quarterly - comparing the planned and
actual results. The BOD meetings approved
regulations, policies and made decisions on
loan approval, debt management and other
corporate governance initiatives under the
responsibilities of the BOD.

78

G4-45

Role of the Board of Directors in defining
and managing the relevant impact and risks
including consultancy activities of relevant
parties.

Define the effective Environmental and Social
Risk Management

137

8

9

10

11

12
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No.

GRI

Information announcement

Detailed content

Page

13

G4-46

Role of the Board of Directors in reviewing
effective risk management process.

The BOD is concerned and final responsible
for setting and remaining the effective
Risk Management process to minimize
environmental and social damages.

78

14

G4-47

Report of the frequency of review on risk
impact.

BOD periodical meetings are held monthly
or quarterly. The extended meetings are
participated by the BOD, BOM and other
relevant departments/units.

4-5

15

G4-48

Report of the most senior manager in
reviewing and approving the sustainable
development report.

Board of Editors of the Annual Report

4-5

G4-49

Process of communicating concerns to the
senior management team.

The Operational Risk Management Policy
stipulates the process of reporting risky
issues. Accordingly, individuals/units shall
report risks to the Head Office via the Risk
Management Department to define, analyze,
evaluate and settle/warn the risks (if any).

17

G4-50

Report on the nature and urgent concerns
communicated and their settlement.

Risk Management Department shall gather
the number of risks from units and report
to the BOD and BOM via Operation Risk
Management system.

18

G4-51

Compensation and benefits of the members
of the Board of Directors and the Board of
Management.

19

G4-52

Process of deciding the remuneration.

20

G4-53

Opinions of relevant parties on remuneration.

16

Compensation policy for the BOD and BOM

21

G4-54

The ratio of total annual income for highest
salary employees against total average
income of all employees

The ratio of total income for highest-paid
employees (from unit chives) accounts for
11% of total average income for all employees.
This ratio is quite reasonable with current
Sacombank human resource structure and to
attract talents for Sacombank.

22

G4-55

% growth of income of the highest paid
employees, compared with the average
growth of total income for all employees.

In 2015, Sacombank cut operating cost and
stabilizes salary policy. There is no annual
salary increase applied for entire system,
except for promotion or new assignment

VII.
1

2

3

126-127

Ethics and Truth
G4-56

G4-57

G4-58

Value, rules, standards, and behavior of the
organization and Code of Conduct and Code
of Ethics.

Ethics and Truth

112

Ethical behavior is proved by complying with
anti-corruption law.

149

Internal and external regulations for behavior
and legal compliance.

Internal and external regulations to report
inappropriate behaviors.

Collaborate with relevant parties to listen to
their opinions to ensure the strategy implementation and get along with Sacombank
commitment.

112-113
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No.

A.

I.

INFORMATION ANNOUNCEMENT
UNDER GRI4 STANDARD (continued)

GRI

Information announcement

G4-DMA

The corporate governance manner in key Engage with relevant parties, announce the 112-113
field and approaches to evaluate corporate key sectors
governance manner.
Corporate culture
115

Indicators on sector performance

I.

Economic category

1

Economic operational efficiency

G4-EC1

G4-EC2

3

4

Page

Information on corporate governance approach

B.

2

Detailed content

Economic values are created and distributed:
revenue, operating cost, salary and allowance
for employees, interest payable, community
investment.
Risks and Opportunities from climate change
may expose key changes in operations
revenue or cost.

G4-EC3

Responsibilities of the organization to meet
the allowance plan.

G4-EC4

Financial support from government.

Stable economic growth. Contribute to state
116-117
budget and pay stable share dividend
Community Development Activities

148-149

None
Effective compensation policy

125

In 2015, Employee Welfare Fund is taken 7%
from profit after tax, equivalent to VND 136
billion. It is estimated that in 2015, the Welfare
Fund accounts for 5.33% of total salary
budget of Sacombank

127

None.

Its existence on the market
G4-EC5

The ratio of standard starting salary based
on gender, compared with the local minimum
salary at the focal operational location.

Effective compensation policy

G4-EC6

The rate of senior managers hired from the
local community at the focal location.

Local recruitment

147

126-127

Indirect economic impact
G4-EC7

Developing and measuring the impact of
the infrastructure investment and supporting
services.

Ensure effective business performance and
build sustainable community

118

G4-EC8

Indirect economic impact, including the
operational scale.

Expand and diversify distribution network

123

Purchasing method
G4-EC9

Sacombank expenditure for local suppliers at the Regulation of choosing materials and local
key operational location.
suppliers

II.

Environmental Category

1

Material

120
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No.

2

GRI

Information announcement

G4-EN1

Material for production and package in term
of quantity and weight.

G4-EN2

Percentage of recycled material.

4

Energy consumption in the organization.

G4-EN8

Total water.

G4-EN9

The water resources has
impacted by water exploration.

G4-EN10

% Total water volume recycled and reused.

Reduce green house exhaust.

7

Information of products and service labels

G4-EN27

150

Saving practice

150

Cut and recycle printing papers

152

Sacombank branches/ transaction offices are
located near residential area. Sacombank do
not build the offices in locations impacting the
ecosystem or biodiversity under protection

Reduce the greenhouse waste and sewage

152-153

Sacombank is the first Vietnamese bank to
evaluate environmental and social impact
Scope to minimize the environmental impact of
factors while approving loans. The Bank 136-137
products/services.
supplements criteria of environmental and
social risk evaluation in loan products

Compliance
G4-EN29

Value in cash of significant penalties and total
non-cash penalties for non-compliance in line None
with the new laws and environmental regulations.

Transportation

G4-EN30

The Bank applied for online training
program to minimize the transportation costs
Significant impact of products/services/material
among units and reduce resources using
transportation for Bank operations labor
151-152
and exhaust impact to the environmental
transportation.
(Building professional and effective working
environmental

Overview
G4-EN31

11

Saving practice

Biological waste

Waste water and waste substances

10

significantly

The premises to be owned, rented and managed
inside or next to the natural reserve and the area
with high biological diversification outside the
protection area.

6

9

120

Biological diversity

G4-EN19

8

Regulation of choosing materials and local
suppliers

Water

G4-EN11
5

Page

Energy
G4-EN3

3

Detailed content

Total cost and investment for environmental Enhance awareness of environment for
protection.
community

155

Environmental impact evaluation of suppliers
G4-EN32

% rate of new suppliers who were evaluated
by using the environmental criteria.

Policy of choosing material and local suppliers

120
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No.

12

GRI

Information announcement

G4-EN33

The real and potential significant market
impact in the supply chain and solutions
implemented.

a

Total jobs
G4-LA1

Total number and ratio of new employees
and employee transfer in terms of age group,
gender and region.

Overall structure of human resource at
124-125
Sacombank

G4-LA2

Allowance for full time employees is not
applied to temporary or part-time employees
in term of key locations.

Effective compensation policy

G4-LA3

Back to work and ratio of employees retained
after taking leave for child caring, in terms of
gender.

100% of female employees coming back after
giving birth

126-127

135

Working Management Relation

G4-LA4

d

None

Social category
Treatment with employees and sustainable works

c

Page

Number of claims relating to environmental
None
impact that are submitted, deliver and resolved.

1

b

Detailed content

Environmental claim settlement policy
G4-EN34

III.

INFORMATION ANNOUNCEMENT
UNDER GRI4 STANDARD (continued)

The minimum announcement term for the
changes in operations, including changes are
Democracy and gender equality
mentioned in the labor collective agreements or
not.

128-129

Health and Occupational Safety
G4-LA5

% ratio of total labor force represented in the
official work safety and health committees
among the managers and employees.

At Sacombank, Labor Union represents
employees and organizes the periodical
health check for employees

G4-LA6

Type of casualties and rate of casualties, work
sickness, leave days, absentee employees
and total death cases relating to work in term
of regions and genders.

No employee resignation due to work-related
health problems

G4-LA7

Employees getting a disease or highly
possibly getting the work-related diseases.

No
employees
diseases

G4-LA8

The heath and occupational safety subjects
are included in the official agreement with labor
union.

Take care of health for employees

suffering

work-related

129-130

Education and training
G4-LA9

Average number of training hours of
employees in terms of gender and
employment category.

G4-LA10

Skill management program and long-term
education to support employees to continue
or stop working.

Training

131
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No.

e

GRI

Information announcement

Detailed content

Page

G4-LA11

% Ratio of employees to be evaluated on
work efficiency and periodical profession
development, in terms of gender and
employment category.

Build effective salary and bonus policy based
on working efficiency. 100% employees are
evaluated qualification and provided with
promotion scheme.

132

Career diversity and fairness
G4-LA12

f

h

Salary ratio and basic income of women as
against men in terms of employee category and
key operational region.
Ratio % of new suppliers to be primarily
evaluated by using the employment treatment
criteria.

Method of choosing suppliers

120

G4-LA15

Real and potential negative impact towards
the employment treatment in supply chain
and solutions implemented.

Human rights

129

The process of settling the claims on labor treatment
Number of claims relating to treatment with
employees to be submitted, dealt and resolved None
via the official claim policy.

Human right

a

Investment
G4-HR1

Total and rate of key investment agreements with
the term of human rights.

G4-HR2

Total training hours for employees about
human right policy or procedure in human
right, activities including the percentage of
employees to be trained.

129

Human rights

129

Activities and suppliers are defined possibly
violate or significantly possibly the freedom of
Human rights
establishing the associations and labor collective
agreement and solutions implemented.

129

Activities and suppliers having the significant
risks in child labor and resolutions to eliminate Human rights
child labor.

129

Total treatment discrimination
solutions implemented.

cases

and

Freedom to establish associations

G4-HR4
Child labor
G4-HR5
e

Human rights

No treatment discrimination
G4-HR3

d

127

G4-LA14

2

c

The starting salary by gender compared with
minimum salary in local region

Treatment of Suppliers

G4-LA16

b

128

Income equality for male and female
G4-LA13

g

Manager levels and list of employees in terms of
gender, age groups, minority people and other Gender Equality
diversification indicators.

Obliged or regulatory labor
G4-HR6

The activities and suppliers containing the
significant risks in the obliged work and solutions Human rights
to eliminate children’s’ labor.

129
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No.

f

GRI

j

% Security employees are trained in the Human
Right policy and procedures relating to the Human rights
organization’s activities.
Total violations relating to human rights of local In 2015, there were no violations of human
people and the implemented solutions.
rights of local residents, and solutions.
During its operations, Sacombank prioritizes
Total number and ratio % of activities must gender equality and human rights. Human
be surveyed about human right and impact resource policy facilitates employees (of
evaluation.
any gender) to promote their capacity to
contribute to the development of Sacombank.

Evaluation of human right perspectives of suppliers
G4-HR10

% rate of suppliers that are primarily evaluated
using human right criteria.

Human rights

129

G4-HR11

Real/potential significant negative impact to
human right in supply chain and solutions
launched.

Human rights

129

Claim policy of human right
G4-HR12

Number of claims relating to human right impacts
that are submitted, dealt and resolved by the official None
claim policy.

3

Society

a

Local community

b

c

G4-SO1

Ratio % of activities participated by local
community, its impact and programs
implemented.

Community Development

G4-SO2

The activities that are real/potential that
have a significant negative impact to local
community.

None

148-149

Anti-corruption
G4-SO3

Total number and percentage of activities
containing risk of corruption and the
significant risks to be defined.

100% activities of Sacombank were evaluated
corruption factors

G4-SO4

Communicate and train about anti-corruption
policy and process.

Anti-corruption

G4-SO5

Corruption cases are defined and solutions to
be implemented.

None

149

Public policies
G4-SO6

d

129

Evaluation

G4-HR9

i

Page

Right of local people
G4-HR8

h

Detailed content

Asset protection
G4-HR7

g

Information announcement

Total value of politic contribution in term of
Enhance the Vietnamese goods brand
nations and receivers/beneficiaries.

Behaviors to be competitive

145
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No.

GRI

G4-SO7
e

g

Total legal action against the competition
resistance, anti-monopoly, the practices against None
monopoly and results of anti-monopoly Activities.
Value in cash of insignificant penalties and total
non-cash penalties toward the behaviors not None
complying the law and regulations.

G4-SO9

% ratio of suppliers primarily evaluated by
using the criteria of social impact.

G4-SO10

Real and potential negative significant impact
towards society in the supply chain and the
solutions applied.

a

Customer safety and occupational health
G4-PR1

% Ratio of key product and service portfolio
evaluated and its impact to health and safety.

Customer-oriented financial services

G4-PR2

Total cases of violation on regulations and
volunteer rules of impact to health and safety
from products and services in its life cycle.

None

Product and service information requested
in the organizational process regarding the
product/service information and % ratio of
product and service portfolio implementing
the above information.

Service supply process
Customer-oriented financial services

G4-PR4

Total cases not mentioning product/service
information and label.

None

G4-PR5

Survey of customer satisfaction.

Customer-oriented financial services

Communications and Marketing
G4-PR6

Selling prohibited products or products under
commercial dispute.

None

G4-PR7

Violation of communications and marketing
rules.

None

Customers’ privacy
G4-PR8

Total claims on breach of customer privacy.

None

Compliance
G4-PR9

f

120-121

Product and service information and labels

G4-PR3

e

120

Number of claims of impact toward the society,
None
dealing and settling by official claim policy.

Responsibilities toward products

d

Methods of choosing suppliers

Process of dealing claims with social impact

4

c

Page

Impact evaluation of suppliers to society

G4-SO11

b

Detailed content

Compliance
G4-SO8

f

Information announcement

Value in cash of the penalties from violations of
None
law and regulations.

Active ownership right

120
120-121

120-121

Spreading
VALUE
With Sacombank, success is not a destination but a journey that
commences with the milestone in Sacombank's effort in each period.
Parallel to the continuous development, Sacombank is committed to
bring the best benefits to its customers, shareholders and investors.
Sacombank always understands that the principle of equality is the
long-term commitment to cooperate in development and sustainable way.

FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS
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Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial
Joint Stock Bank

Separate financial
statements
31 December 2015
169
172
173
175
178
179

General information
Report of the Board of Management
Independent auditors’ report
Separate balance sheet
Separate income statement
Separate cash flow statement

The Separate Financial Statements of Saigon Thuong Tin
Commercial Joint Stock Bank as at 31 December 2015 audited
by Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited are fully disclosed at www.
sacombank.com.vn.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Financial Statements

THE BANK
Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“the Bank”) is a commercial joint stock bank incorporated in the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam.
The Bank was established and operates in accordance with Banking License No. 0006/NH-GP issued by the State Bank
of Vietnam on 5 December 1991, Business Registration Certificate No. 0301103908 dated 13 January 1992 and other
amendments issued by Ho Chi Minh City Department of Planning and Investment. The Bank’s operation period is 100
years from 21 December 1991.
As at 1 October 2015, Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank was officially merged into Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial
Joint Stock Bank according to Decision No. 1844/QD-NHNN dated 14 September 2015 issued by the State Bank of
Vietnam. Accordingly, Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank has received and inherited all assets and
obligations of Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank since the date of merger.
The Bank is allowed to carry out full range of banking services including mobilizing and receiving short, medium and
long-term deposits from organizations and individuals; providing short, medium and long-term loans to organizations
and individuals based on the Bank’s nature and capacity of the capital resources; foreign exchange trading; international
trade financing services; discount of commercial papers, bonds and other valuable papers; providing settlement services;
operating in monetary market; banking and financial consultancy; trading in government and corporate bonds; gold
trading; cash management services, asset preservation, cabin and safer renting; entrustment and trusteeship services;
insurance agent; brokerage and other banking services as allowed by the State Bank of Vietnam.
The Bank’s head office is located at 266 - 268 Nam Ky Khoi Nghia Street, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City. As at 31 December
2015, the Bank had one (1) Head Office, one hundred and nine (109) branches located in cities and provinces in
Vietnam, four hundred thirty two (432) domestic transaction offices and eleven (11) savings funds.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The members of the Bank’s Board of Directors for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 and at the date of these
separate financial statements are as follows:
Name

Date of joining
the Board of Directors

Current position

Date of appointment/resignation

Mr. Kieu Huu Dung

26 May 2012

Chairman

Appointed on 24 March 2014

Mr. Phan Huy Khang

26 May 2012

Vice Chairman cum
CEO

Appointed on 15 November 2013

Mr. Nguyen Mien Tuan

26 May 2012

Vice Chairman

Appointed on 15 November 2013

Ms. Duong Hoang Quynh Nhu 26 May 2012

Member cum Deputy
CEO

Appointed on 26 May 2012

Mr. Nguyen Gia Dinh

25 April 2013

Member

Appointed on 25 April 2013

Ms. Nguyen Thi Le An

25 April 2013

Member cum Deputy
CEO

Appointed on 25 April 2013

Mr. Nguyen Van Cuu

25 April 2013

Independent member

Appointed on 25 April 2013

Mr. Tram Be

26 May 2012

Member

Resigned on 23 February 2017

Mr. Tram Khai Hoa

26 May 2012

Member

Resigned on 23 February 2017
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GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

BOARD OF SUPERVISION
The members of the Bank’s Board of Supervision for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 and at the date of
these separate financial statements are as follows:
Date of joining the Board
of Supervision
Mr. Nguyen Van Ly
26 May 2012
Ms. Nguyen Thi Thanh Mai 2 April 2011
Mr. Le Van Tong
2 April 2011
Mr. Nguyen Tan Thanh
2 April 2011
Name

Current Position

Date of appointment/resignation

Chief Supervisor
Deputy Chief Supervisor
Member
Chief Supervisor

Appointed on 15 April 2015
Appointed on 9 September 2015
Appointed on 2 April 2011
Resigned on 15 April 2015

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND CHIEF ACCOUNTANT
The members of the Board of Management and Chief Accountant for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 and
at the date of these separate financial statements are as follows:
Name

Position

Date of appointment/resignation

Mr. Phan Huy Khang
Mr. Nguyen Van Nhan
Ms. Duong Hoang Quynh Nhu
Ms. Nguyen Thi Le An
Mr. Ha Van Trung
Mr. Nguyen Minh Tam
Mr. Phan Dinh Tue
Ms. Quach Thanh Ngoc Thuy
Mr. Trinh Van Ty
Mr. Ly Hoai Van
Mr. Nguyen Xuan Vu
Mr. Bui Van Dung
Mr. Ha Ton Trung Hanh
Mr. Dao Nguyen Vu
Mr. Nguyen Ba Tri
Ms. Ha Quynh Anh
Mr. Vo Anh Nhue
Mr. Hoang Thanh Hai
Mr. Tran Minh Khoa
Mr. Ho Doan Cuong
Ms. Nguyen Duc Thach Diem

CEO
Standing Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO

Mr. Le Minh Tam

Deputy CEO

Mr. Le Trong Tri
Mr. Huynh Thanh Giang

Deputy CEO
Chief Accountant

Appointed on 3 July 2012
Appointed on 1 October 2015
Appointed on 14 June 2012
Appointed on 24 July 2012
Appointed on 10 October 2012
Appointed on 21 May 2007
Appointed on 14 June 2012
Appointed on 5 February 2010
Appointed on 1 October 2015
Appointed on 30 August 2010
Appointed on 28 August 2013
Appointed on 29 March 2012
Appointed on 28 February 2013
Appointed on 27 June 2007
Appointed on 26 July 2012
Appointed on 28 June 2012
Appointed on 1 October 2012
Appointed on 7 April 2014
Appointed on 2 January 2014
Appointed on 1 October 2012
Appointed on 7 April 2014
Appointed to be CEO of Remittance
Company on 20 May 2015
Resigned on 4 April 2017
Appointed on 1 June 2012
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LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE
The legal representative of the Bank for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 and at the date of these separate
financial statements is Mr. Phan Huy Khang - CEO.
AUDITORS
The auditor of the Bank is Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited.
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR AND AT THE DATE OF THESE SEPARATE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
According to Decision No. 1844/QD-NHNN of the State Bank of Vietnam dated 14 September 2015, Southern
Commercial Joint Stock Bank ("PNB") was merged into Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank on 1 October
2015. Accordingly, Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“STB”) has received and inherited all assets and
obligations of Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank since the date of merger.
According to Official Letter No. 7168/NHNN-TTGSNH dated 21 September 2015 by the State Bank of Vietnam, Official
Letter No. 6924/UBCK-QLPH dated 4 November 2015 by the State Securities Commission and Official Letter No.
09/2006/GCNCP-VSD dated 12 November 2015 by the Vietnam Securities Depository, Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial
Joint Stock Bank increased its charter capital to VND18,852,157 million from the merger of Southern Commercial Joint
Stock Bank and from bonus shares issuance and share dividends payment for 2013 and 2014 of Saigon Thuong Tin
Commercial Joint Stock Bank amounting to VND4,000 billion and VND2,427,041 million, respectively.
On 3 August 2015, with the approval of the Bank of Lao P.D.R and the State Bank of Vietnam, Saigon Thuong Tin
Commercial Joint Stock Bank officially converted its branch in Laos into a 100% foreign-owned bank named Saigon
Thuong Tin Lao Bank Limited (Sacombank Lao), a subsidiary of the Bank.
On 22 May 2017, the Post-merger Restructuring Plan of Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank for the period
up to 2025 and the Bank’s proposals for financial regimes and resolutions in the Restructuring Plan in relation to accrued
interest receivables, special bonds issued by VAMC, bad debts, doubtful assets and investment securities during the
restructuring period was approved by the State Bank of Vietnam according to Decision No. 34/QD-NHNN.Tym and
Official Letter No. 426/NHNN-TTGSNH.Tym.
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REPORT OF
THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management of Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“the Bank”) is pleased to present its
report and the separate financial statements of the Bank as at and for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.
THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
The Board of Management is responsible for the separate financial statements of each year which give a true and fair
view of the separate financial position of the Bank and of the separate results of its operations and its separate cash
flows for the year. In preparing those separate financial statements, the Board of Management is required to:
»»

select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

»»

make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

»»

state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the separate financial statements; and

»»

prepare the separate financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Bank will continue in business.

The Board of Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which disclose, with
reasonable accuracy at any time, the separate financial position of the Bank and to ensure that the accounting records
comply with the applied accounting system. It is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The Board of Management commits to comply with the above requirements in preparing the accompanying separate
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.
STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
The Board of Management does hereby state that, in its opinion, the accompanying separate financial statements give
a true and fair view of the separate financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2015, of the separate results of its
operations and its separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards,
Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions, the official approvals of the State Bank of Vietnam for the Postmerger Restructuring Plan and the Bank’s proposals for financial regimes and resolutions in the Restructuring Plan in
relation to accrued interest receivables, VAMC’s special bonds, bad debts, doubtful assets and investment securities
during the restructuring period and statutory requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of the separate
financial statements.
On behalf of the Board of Management:

Mr. Phan Huy Khang
CEO
Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
29 May 2017

Reference: 60857352/17860423
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To: The Shareholders of Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank
We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank
(“the Bank”) as prepared on 29 May 2017 and set out on pages 7 to 83, which comprise the separate balance sheet as
at 31 December 2015, the separate income statement and the separate cash flow statement for the year then ended
and the notes thereto.
The Board of Management's responsibility
The Bank’s Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these separate financial
statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit
Institutions, the official approvals of the State Bank of Vietnam for the Post-merger Restructuring Plan and the Bank’s
proposals for financial regimes and resolutions in the Restructuring Plan in relation to accrued interest receivables,
VAMC’s special bonds, bad debts, doubtful assets and investment securities during the restructuring period and
statutory requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of the separate financial statements, and for such
internal control as the Board of Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of
the separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these separate financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the separate
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the separate financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Bank's preparation and fair presentation of the
separate financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Board of Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the separate financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Reference: 60857352/17860423

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)

Opinion
In our opinion, the separate financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the separate
financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2015, of the separate results of its operations and its separate cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System
for Credit Institutions, the official approvals of the State Bank of Vietnam for the Post-merger Restructuring Plan and
the Bank’s proposals for financial regimes and resolutions in the Restructuring Plan in relation to accrued interest
receivables, VAMC’s special bonds, bad debts, doubtful assets and investment securities during the restructuring
period and statutory requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of the separate financial statements.
Emphasis of matter
As disclosed in Note 5, Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank ("PNB") was merged into Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial
Joint Stock Bank ("STB") on 1 October 2015 according to Decision No. 1844/QD-NHNN dated 14 September 2015
issued by the State Bank of Vietnam. Accordingly, Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank has received and
inherited all assets, rights, obligations and legitimate interests of Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank since the date
of merger. The Bank issued additional 400 million STB shares, equivalent to VND4,000 billion at par value, to swap shares
of PNB shareholders.
Simultaneously, the Bank prepared and submitted the Post-merger Restructuring Plan to the State Bank of Vietnam for
its approval. On 22 May 2017, the Post-merger Restructuring Plan of Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank
and the Bank’s proposals for financial regimes and resolutions in the Restructuring Plan in relation to accrued interest
receivables, VAMC’s special bonds, bad debts, doubtful assets and investment securities during the restructuring
period was approved by the State Bank of Vietnam according to Decision No. 34/QD-NHNN.Tym and Official Letter No.
426/NHNN-TTGSNH.Tym (see Note 3.3). Accordingly, the basis for recognition, measurement and presentation of these
items in the separate financial statements was made according to the official approvals of the State Bank of Vietnam for
the Post-merger Restructuring Plan and the Bank’s proposals in the Restructuring Plan which are presented in relevant
notes to the separate financial statements.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited

		
Nguyen Xuan Dai
Deputy CEO
Audit Practicing Registration
Certificate No. 0452-2013-004-1
Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
29 May 2017

Nguyen Quoc Tuan
Auditor
Audit Practicing Registration
Certificate No. 1841-2013-004-1
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Financial Statements

as at 31 December 2015

B02/TCTD

Notes

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

ASSETS
Cash and gold

6

6,402,244

4,682,765

Balances with the State Bank of Vietnam

7

6,794,170

4,040,518

4,623,072

4,958,262

Due from and loans to other credit institutions
Due from other credit institutions

8.1

3,639,543

3,593,344

Loans to other credit institutions

8.2

984,081

1,364,918

Provision for credit losses

12

(552)

-

Held-for-trading securities

9

95,334

7,683,341

Held-for-trading securities

124,841

7,732,428

Provision for held-for-trading securities

(29,507)

(49,087)

-

12,151

178,427,423

123,269,459

Derivatives and other financial assets

10

Loans to customers
Loans to customers

11

180,592,870

124,575,857

Provision for credit losses of loans to customers

12

(2,165,447)

(1,306,398)

13

39,677,509

25,924,909

Available-for-sale securities

13.1

25,108,656

20,250,274

Held-to-maturity securities

13.2

16,148,253

5,935,128

Provision for investment securities

13.4

(1,579,400)

(260,493)

3,419,337

2,031,159

Investment securities

Long-term investments
Investment in subsidiaries

14.1

2,967,294

1,848,294

Other long-term investments

14.2

856,636

400,749

Provision for long-term investments

14.3

(404,593)

(217,884)

7,316,111

4,883,145

4,026,388

2,620,758

5,535,793

3,537,488

(1,509,405)

(916,730)

3,289,723

2,262,387

Cost

3,904,215

2,737,101

Accumulated amortization

(614,492)

(474,714)

43,608,915

11,191,865

Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets

15.1

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Intangible fixed assets

15.2

Other assets
Receivables

16.1

17,085,178

4,737,887

Interest and fees receivable

16.2

25,126,972

5,101,444

94,588

60,607

Deferred tax assets

21

Other assets

16.3

1,887,355

1,725,509

Provision for other assets

16.4

(585,178)

(433,582)

290,364,115

188,677,574

TOTAL ASSETS
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SEPARATE BALANCE SHEET (continued)
as at 31 December 2015

Notes

B02/TCTD

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

3,673,048

4,489,411

LIABILITIES
Due to and borrowings from other credit institutions
Due to other credit institutions

17.1

1,376,102

1,938,567

Borrowings from other credit institutions

17.2

2,296,946

2,550,844

Due to customers

18

259,427,737

162,533,382

Derivatives and other financial liabilities

10

22,853

-

Grants, entrusted funds and loans exposed to risks

19

1,661,894

875,025

600

600

3,914,684

2,974,777

3,014,811

1,904,428

899,873

1,070,349

268,700,816

170,873,195

18,166,632

12,590,879

18,852,157

12,425,116

1,121

795

Share premium

63,612

1,671,693

Treasury shares

(750,911)

(1,506,878)

653

153

2,247,659

1,803,588

118,046

79,046

1,130,962

3,330,866

21,663,299

17,804,379

290,364,115

188,677,574

Valuable papers issued
Other liabilities
Interest and fees payable
Other liabilities

20

TOTAL LIABILITIES
OWNERS’ EQUITY
Capital
Charter capital
Fund for capital expenditure

Other capital
Reserves
Foreign currency translation reserve
Retained earnings
TOTAL OWNERS’ EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS’ EQUITY

22.1
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OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

32,404

190,294

14,423,048

38,574,959

- Commitments on buying foreign currencies

2,537,450

4,346,830

- Commitments on selling foreign currencies

1,970,586

3,265,376

- Commitments on swap transactions

9,915,012

30,962,753

Letters of credit

6,338,606

7,954,903

Other guarantees

3,837,992

3,242,532

11,271

11,103

24,643,321

49,973,791

Notes
Guarantees for borrowings
Commitments on foreign exchange transactions

Other commitments
35

Prepared by:

Reviewed by:

Approved by:

Mr. Luu Van Hoa
Accountant

Mr. Huynh Thanh Giang
Chief Accountant

Mr. Phan Huy Khang
CEO

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
29 May 2017
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SEPARATE INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2015

B03/TCTD

Notes

Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

Interest and similar income

23

15,436,555

14,921,435

Interest and similar expenses

24

(9,201,103)

(8,597,127)

6,235,452

6,324,308

Fee and commission income

1,453,466

1,194,757

Fee and commission expenses

(453,814)

(366,596)

Net interest and similar income

Net fee and commission income

25

999,652

828,161

Net gain from foreign currencies and gold trading

26

159,060

198,232

Net gain from dealing of held-for-trading securities

27

11,455

183,086

Net (loss)/gain from dealing of investment securities

28

(99,478)

169,024

506,205

188,728

Other operating income
Other operating expenses

(20,638)

(21,221)

Net gain from other operating activities

29

485,567

167,507

Net income from long-term investments

30

77,607

252,337

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME

7,869,315

8,122,655

Personnel expenses

(2,672,702)

(2,437,631)

(301,178)

(271,651)

Depreciation and amortization charges
Other operating expenses
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

31

Net operating profit before credit loss expenses
Credit loss expenses

12

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

(1,958,818)

(1,610,236)

(4,932,698)

(4,319,518)

2,936,617

3,803,137

(2,238,504)

(952,584)

698,113

2,850,553

Current corporate income tax expense

21

(195,653)

(528,257)

Deferred corporate income tax income/(expense)

21

33,981

(43,639)

(161,672)

(571,896)

536,441

2,278,657

Total corporate income tax expenses
NET PROFIT AFTER TAX

Prepared by:

Reviewed by:

Approved by:

Mr. Luu Van Hoa
Accountant

Mr. Huynh Thanh Giang
Chief Accountant

Mr. Phan Huy Khang
CEO

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
29 May 2017
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SEPARATE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2015

B04/TCTD

Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

Interest and similar receipts

15,215,160

13,748,826

Interest and similar payments

(8,857,516)

(8,503,797)

Net fee and commission receipts

948,352

828,161

Net receipts from trading of securities, gold and foreign currencies

139,960

202,063

66,095

76,468

139,467

6,046

(3,954,853)

(3,820,885)

(464,720)

(438,131)

3,231,945

2,098,751

(27,151,635)

(23,815,234)

380,837

1,593,271

(4,264,315)

(2,763,067)

-

31,845

(22,857,570)

(22,308,515)

(43,485)

(50,836)

(367,102)

(317,932)

19,560,247

26,954,125

(1,050,498)

-

(804,816)

(1,236,297)

20,492,499

31,106,396

-

(500,547)

786,869

(2,241,494)

35,004

-

352,253

27,343

(251,064)

(201,276)

(4,359,443)

5,237,642

(486,441)

(510,485)

4,679

12,790

626

21

77,607

271,982

(403,529)

(225,692)

Notes
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from other activities
Recoveries from bad debts written-off previously
Payments to employees and other operating expenses
Corporate income tax paid during the year

21

Net cash from operating activities before changes in operating
assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets
Decrease in due from and loans to other credit institutions
Increase in investment securities
Decrease in derivatives and other financial assets
Increase in loans to customers
Decrease in provisions used for compensation of losses
Increase in other operating assets
Changes in operating liabilities
Decrease in borrowings from the state bank
Decrease in due to and borrowings from other credit institutions
Increase in due to customers
Decrease in valuable papers issued
Increase/(decrease) in grants, entrusted funds and loans exposed to risks
Increase in derivatives and other financial liabilities
Increase in other operating liabilities
Reverses utilized during the year
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase and constructions of fixed assets
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets
Proceeds from disposal of investments in other entities
Dividends received and profits shared from long-term investments
Net cash used in investing activities

30
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SEPARATE CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

B04/TCTD

Notes

Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

22,3

(698)

(35,073)

Cash used in financing activity

(698)

(35,073)

Net cash flows during the year

(4,763,670)

4,976,877

19,882,602

14,905,725

Cash and cash equivalents from merger of Southern
Commercial Joint Stock Bank

2,188,820

-

Cash and cash equivalents from conversion of Laos branch into
a subsidiary

(471,795)

-

16,835,957

19,882,602

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Dividends distributed to shareholders

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

32

32

Prepared by:

Reviewed by:

Approved by:

Mr. Luu Van Hoa
Accountant

Mr. Huynh Thanh Giang
Chief Accountant

Mr. Phan Huy Khang
CEO

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
29 May 2017
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Consolidated financial statements
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GENERAL INFORMATION

THE BANK
Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“the Bank”) is a commercial joint stock bank incorporated in the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam.
The Bank was established and operates in accordance with Banking License No. 0006/NH-GP issued by the State Bank
of Vietnam on 5 December 1991, Business Registration Certificate No. 0301103908 dated 13 January 1992 and other
amendments issued by Ho Chi Minh City Department of Planning and Investment. The Bank’s operation period is 100
years from 21 December 1991.
As at 1 October 2015, Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank was officially merged into Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial
Joint Stock Bank according to Decision No. 1844/QD-NHNN dated 14 September 2015 issued by the State Bank of
Vietnam. Accordingly, Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank has received and inherited all assets and
obligations of Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank since the date of merger.
The Bank is allowed to carry out full range of banking services including mobilizing and receiving short, medium and
long-term deposits from organizations and individuals; providing short, medium and long-term loans to organizations
and individuals based on the Bank’s nature and capacity of the capital resources; foreign exchange trading; international
trade financing services; discount of commercial papers, bonds and other valuable papers; providing settlement services;
operating in monetary market; banking and financial consultancy; trading in government and corporate bonds; gold
trading; cash management services, asset preservation, cabin and safer renting; entrustment and trusteeship services;
insurance agent; brokerage and other banking services as allowed by the State Bank of Vietnam.
The Bank’s head office is located at 266 - 268 Nam Ky Khoi Nghia Street, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City. As at 31 December
2015, the Bank had one (1) Head Office, one hundred and nine (109) branches located in cities and provinces in
Vietnam, four hundred thirty two (432) domestic transaction offices and eleven (11) savings funds.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The members of the Bank’s Board of Directors for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 and at the date of these
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Mr. Kieu Huu Dung

Date of joining the
Board of Directors
26 May 2012

Mr. Phan Huy Khang

26 May 2012

Mr. Nguyen Mien Tuan

26 May 2012

Ms. Duong Hoang Quynh Nhu

26 May 2012

Mr. Nguyen Gia Dinh

25 April 2013

Ms. Nguyen Thi Le An

25 April 2013

Mr. Nguyen Van Cuu
Mr. Tram Be
Mr. Tram Khai Hoa

25 April 2013
26 May 2012
26 May 2012

Name

Current position

Date of appointment/ resignation

Chairman
Vice Chairman cum
CEO

Appointed on 24 March 2014
Appointed on 15 November
2013
Appointed on 15 November
2013

Vice Chairman
Member cum Deputy
CEO
Member
Member cum Deputy
CEO
Independent member
Member
Member

Appointed on 26 May 2012
Appointed on 25 April 2013
Appointed on 25 April 2013
Appointed on 25 April 2013
Resigned on 23 February 2017
Resigned on 23 February 2017
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BOARD OF SUPERVISION
The members of the Bank’s Board of Supervision for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 and at the date of
these consolidated financial statements are as follows:
Name

Date of joining the
Board of Supervision

Current Position

Date of appointment/ resignation

Mr. Nguyen Van Ly
Ms. Nguyen Thi Thanh Mai
Mr. Le Van Tong
Mr. Nguyen Tan Thanh

26 May 2012
2 April 2011
2 April 2011
2 April 2011

Chief Supervisor
Deputy Chief Supervisor
Member
Chief Supervisor

Appointed on 15 April 2015
Appointed on 9 September 2015
Appointed on 2 April 2011
Resigned on 15 April 2015

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND CHIEF ACCOUNTANT
The members of the Board of Management and Chief Accountant for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 and
at the date of these consolidated financial statements are as follows:
Name

Position

Date of appointment/resignation

Mr. Phan Huy Khang
Mr. Nguyen Van Nhan
Ms. Duong Hoang Quynh Nhu
Ms. Nguyen Thi Le An
Mr. Ha Van Trung
Mr. Nguyen Minh Tam
Mr. Phan Dinh Tue
Ms. Quach Thanh Ngoc Thuy
Mr. Trinh Van Ty
Mr. Ly Hoai Van
Mr. Nguyen Xuan Vu
Mr. Bui Van Dung
Mr. Ha Ton Trung Hanh
Mr. Dao Nguyen Vu
Mr. Nguyen Ba Tri
Ms. Ha Quynh Anh
Mr. Vo Anh Nhue
Mr. Hoang Thanh Hai
Mr. Tran Minh Khoa
Mr. Ho Doan Cuong
Ms. Nguyen Duc Thach Diem

CEO
Standing Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO
Deputy CEO

Mr. Le Minh Tam

Deputy CEO

Mr. Le Trong Tri
Mr. Huynh Thanh Giang

Deputy CEO
Chief Accountant

Appointed on 3 July 2012
Appointed on 1 October 2015
Appointed on 14 June 2012
Appointed on 24 July 2012
Appointed on 10 October 2012
Appointed on 21 May 2007
Appointed on 14 June 2012
Appointed on 5 February 2010
Appointed on 1 October 2015
Appointed on 30 August 2010
Appointed on 28 August 2013
Appointed on 29 March 2012
Appointed on 28 February 2013
Appointed on 27 June 2007
Appointed on 26 July 2012
Appointed on 28 June 2012
Appointed on 1 October 2012
Appointed on 7 April 2014
Appointed on 2 January 2014
Appointed on 1 October 2012
Appointed on 7 April 2014
Appointed to be CEO of Remittance
Company on 20 May 2015
Resigned on 4 April 2017
Appointed on 1 June 2012

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE
The legal representative of the Bank for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 and at the date of these consolidated
financial statements is Mr. Phan Huy Khang - CEO.
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GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

AUDITORS
The auditor of the Bank and its subsidiaries is Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited.
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR AND AT THE DATE OF THESE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
According to Decision No. 1844/QD-NHNN of the State Bank of Vietnam dated 14 September 2015, Southern
Commercial Joint Stock Bank ("PNB") was merged into Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank on 1 October
2015. Accordingly, Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“STB”) has received and inherited all assets and
obligations of Southern Commercial Joint Stock since the date of merger.
According to Official Letter No. 7168/NHNN-TTGSNH dated 21 September 2015 by the State Bank of Vietnam, Official
Letter No. 6924/UBCK-QLPH dated 4 November 2015 by the State Securities Commission and Official Letter No.
09/2006/GCNCP-VSD dated 12 November 2015 by the Vietnam Securities Depository, Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial
Joint Stock Bank increased its charter capital to VND18,852,157 million from the merger of Southern Commercial Joint
Stock Bank and from bonus shares issuance and share dividends payment for 2013 and 2014 of Saigon Thuong Tin
Commercial Joint Stock Bank amounting to VND4,000 billion and VND2,427,041 million, respectively.
On 3 August 2015, with the approval of the Bank of Lao P.D.R and the State Bank of Vietnam, Saigon Thuong Tin
Commercial Joint Stock Bank officially converted its branch in Laos into a 100% foreign-owned bank named Saigon
Thuong Tin Lao Bank Limited (Lao Sacombank), a subsidiary of the Bank.
On 22 May 2017, the Post-merger Restructuring Plan of Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank for the period
up to 2025 and the Bank’s proposals for financial regimes and resolutions in the Restructuring Plan in relation to accrued
interest receivables, special bonds issued by VAMC, bad debts, doubtful assets and investment securities during the
restructuring period was approved by the State Bank of Vietnam according to Decision No. 34/QD-NHNN.Tym and
Official Letter No. 426/NHNN-TTGSNH.Tym.

REPORT OF
THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
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The Board of Management of Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“the Bank”) is pleased to present its
report and the consolidated financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries as at and for the financial year ended
31 December 2015.
THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
The Board of Management is responsible for the consolidated financial statements of each financial year which give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Bank and its subsidiaries and of the consolidated results
of their operations and their consolidated cash flows for each financial year. In preparing those consolidated financial
statements, the Board of Management is required to:
»» select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
»»

make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

»»

state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the consolidated financial statements; and

»»

prepare the consolidated financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Bank and its subsidiaries will continue in business.

The Board of Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which disclose, with
reasonable accuracy at any time, the consolidated financial position of the Bank and its subsidiaries and ensuring that
the accounting records comply with the applied accounting system. It is also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the Bank and its subsidiaries and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.
The Board of Management commits to comply with the above requirements in preparing the accompanying
consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.
STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
The Board of Management does hereby state that, in its opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Bank and its subsidiaries as at 31 December
2015, of the consolidated results of their operations and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions, the official
approvals of the State Bank of Vietnam for the Post-merger Restructuring Plan and the Bank’s proposals for financial
regimes and resolutions in the Restructuring Plan in relation to accrued interest receivables, VAMC’s special bonds, bad
debts, doubtful assets and investment securities during the restructuring period and statutory requirements relevant
to preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
On behalf of the Board of Management:

Mr. Phan Huy Khang
CEO
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Reference: 60857352/17860423-HN

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
29 May 2017
To: The Shareholders of Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock
Bank (“the Bank”) and its subsidiaries as prepared on 29 May 2017 and set out on pages 7 to 88, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2015, the consolidated income statement and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended and the notes thereto.
The Board of Management’s responsibility
The Bank’s Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit
Institutions, the official approvals of the State Bank of Vietnam for the Post-merger Restructuring Plan and the Bank’s
proposals for financial regimes and resolutions in the Restructuring Plan in relation to accrued interest receivables,
VAMC’s special bonds, bad debts, doubtful assets and investment securities during the restructuring period and
statutory requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements, and for such
internal control as the Board of Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors' responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Bank and its subsidiaries’
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank
and its subsidiaries’ internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of Management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the consolidated
financial position of the Bank and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of the consolidated results of their
operations and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions, the official approvals of the State Bank of Vietnam for
the Post-merger Restructuring Plan and the Bank’s proposals for financial regimes and resolutions in the Restructuring
Plan in relation to accrued interest receivables, VAMC’s special bonds, bad debts, doubtful assets and investment
securities during the restructuring period and statutory requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.
Emphasis of matter
As disclosed in Note 5, Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank ("PNB") was merged into Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial
Joint Stock Bank ("STB") on 1 October 2015 according to Decision No. 1844/QD-NHNN dated 14 September 2015 issued
by the State Bank of Vietnam. Accordingly, Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank has received and inherited
all assets, rights, obligations and legitimate interests of Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank since the date of merger.
The Bank issued additional 400 million STB shares, equivalent to VND4,000 billion at par value, to swap shares of PNB
shareholders.
Simultaneously, the Bank prepared and submitted the Post-merger Restructuring Plan to the State Bank of Vietnam
for approval. On 22 May 2017, the Post-merger Restructuring Plan of Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank
and the Bank’s proposals for financial regimes and resolutions in the Restructuring Plan in relation to accrued interest
receivables, VAMC’s special bonds, bad debts, doubtful assets and investment securities during the restructuring
period was approved by the State Bank of Vietnam according to Decision No. 34/QD-NHNN.Tym and Official Letter
No. 426/NHNN-TTGSNH.Tym (see Note 3.3). Accordingly, the basis for recognition, measurement and presentation of
these items in the consolidated financial statements was made according to the official approvals of the State Bank of
Vietnam for the Post-merger Restructuring Plan and the Bank’s proposals in the Restructuring Plan which are presented
in relevant notes to the consolidated financial statements.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited

Nguyen Xuan Dai
Deputy CEO
Audit Practicing Registration
Certificate No. 0452-2013-004-1
Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
29 May 2017

Nguyen Quoc Tuan
Auditor
Audit Practicing Registration
Certificate No. 1841-2013-004-1
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Notes
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Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

ASSETS
Cash, gold and precious stones

6

6,586,478

4,815,942

Balances with central banks

7

7,497,267

4,289,757

2,207,868

3,630,099

Due from and loans to other credit institutions
Due from other credit institutions

8.1

2,207,868

2,894,719

Loans to other credit institutions

8.2

552

735,380

Provision for credit losses

12

(552)

-

Held-for-trading securities

9

95,334

7,683,341

124,841

7,732,428

(29,507)

(49,087)

-

12,151

Held-for-trading securities
Provision for held-for-trading securities
Derivatives and other financial assets

10

Loans and finance leases to customers

183,660,021

126,646,093

Loans and finance leases to customers

11

185,916,813

128,015,011

Provision for credit losses of loans to customers

12

(2,256,792)

(1,368,918)

Purchased debts
Purchased debts
Provision for credit losses purchased debts
Investment securities

-

-

300

-

(300)

-

13

39,678,056

25,925,440

Available-for-sale securities

13.1

25,109,203

20,250,805

Held-to-maturity securities

13.2

16,148,253

5,935,128

Provision for investment securities

13.4

(1,579,400)

(260,493)

594,542

264,513

Long-term investments
Other long-term investments

14.1

897,843

400,749

Provision for long-term investments

14.2

(303,301)

(136,236)

7,967,719

5,198,975

Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets

15.1

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Finance lease

15.2

Cost

4,530,436

2,831,507

6,553,671

4,105,565

(2,023,235)

(1,274,058)

70

188

596

596

(526)

(408)

3,437,213

2,367,280

Cost

4,089,239

2,868,438

Accumulated amortization

(652,026)

(501,158)

43,745,451

11,336,316

Accumulated depreciation
Intangible fixed assets

15.3

Other assets
Receivables

16.1

17,175,891

4,864,718

Interest and fees receivable

16.2

25,207,349

5,149,188

Deferred tax assets
Other assets

21
16.3

- In which: Goodwill
Provision for other assets
TOTAL ASSETS

16.4

94,588

60,607

1,853,427

1,695,385

-

15,120

(585,804)

(433,582)

292,032,736

189,802,627
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Notes

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

2,954,073

4,410,606

LIABILITIES
Due to and borrowings from other credit institutions
Due to other credit institutions

17.1

657,127

1,859,762

Borrowings from other credit institutions

17.2

2,296,946

2,550,844

Due to customers

18

260,994,745

163,057,456

Derivatives and other financial liabilities

10

22,853

-

Grants, entrusted funds and loans exposed to risks

19

1,793,234

1,115,813

600

600

4,186,736

3,154,951

3,065,170

1,924,092

Valuable papers issued
Other liabilities
Interest and fees payable
Deferred tax liabilities

21

21,359

868

Other liabilities

20

1,100,207

1,229,991

269,952,241

171,739,426

18,166,632

12,590,879

18,852,157

12,425,116

1,121

795

Share premium

63,612

1,671,693

Treasury shares

(750,911)

(1,506,878)

653

153

2,419,833

1,938,962

229,077

104,270

1,264,953

3,429,086

-

4

22,080,495

18,063,201

292,032,736

189,802,627

TOTAL LIABILITIES
OWNERS’ EQUITY
Capital
Charter capital
Fund for capital expenditure

Other capital
Reserves
Foreign currency translation reserve
Retained earnings
Non-controlling interest
TOTAL OWNERS’ EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS’ EQUITY

22.1
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

32,404

190,294

14,423,048

38,574,959

- Commitments on buying foreign currencies

2,537,450

4,346,830

- Commitments on selling foreign currencies

1,970,586

3,265,376

- Commitments on swap transactions

9,915,012

30,962,753

Letters of credit

6,339,073

8,168,215

Other guarantees

3,854,693

3,242,532

11,271

11,103

24,660,489

50,187,103

Notes
Guarantees for borrowings
Commitments on foreign exchange transactions

Other commitments
36

Prepared by:

Reviewed by:

Approved by:

Mr. Luu Van Hoa
Accountant

Mr. Huynh Thanh Giang
Chief Accountant

Mr. Phan Huy Khang
CEO

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
29 May 2017
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Notes

Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

Interest and similar income

24

15,892,850

15,195,969

Interest and similar expenses

25

(9,317,743)

(8,631,311)

6,575,107

6,564,658

Fee and commission income

1,740,796

1,443,862

Fee and commission expenses

(569,533)

(495,379)

Net interest and similar income

Net fee and commission income

26

1,171,263

948,483

Net gain from foreign currencies and gold trading

27

158,842

196,167

Net gain from dealing of held-for-trading securities

28

11,455

183,086

Net (loss)/gain from dealing of investment securities

29

(99,478)

169,024

479,034

192,607

Other operating income
Other operating expenses
Net gain from other operating activities

30

Net income from long-term investments

31

(20,182)

(59,045)

458,852

133,562

12,675

54,508

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME

8,288,716

8,249,488

Personnel expenses

(2,858,094)

(2,577,294)

(333,024)

(287,688)

Depreciation and amortization charges
Other operating expenses

(1,963,429)

(1,595,631)

32

(5,154,547)

(4,460,613)

3,134,169

3,788,875

12

(2,256,014)

(962,588)

878,155

2,826,287

Current corporate income tax expense

21

(242,858)

(576,216)

Deferred corporate income tax income/(expense)

21

12,622

(43,639)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
Net operating profit before credit loss expenses
Credit loss expenses
PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Total corporate income tax expenses
NET PROFIT AFTER TAX

(230,236)

(619,855)

647,919

2,206,432

647,919

2,206,436

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Minority interest

-

(4)

Basic earnings per share (VND)

23

444

1,292

Diluted earnings per share (VND)

23

444

1,292

Prepared by:

Reviewed by:

Approved by:

Mr. Luu Van Hoa
Accountant

Mr. Huynh Thanh Giang
Chief Accountant

Mr. Phan Huy Khang
CEO

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
29 May 2017
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2015

B04/TCTD-HN

Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

Interest and similar receipts

15,648,740

13,985,472

Interest and similar payments

(8,987,452)

(8,530,512)

1,188,601

1,028,491

140,029

200,244

37,740

46,768

139,467

6,046

(4,164,667)

(3,939,477)

(514,536)

(480,746)

3,487,922

2,316,286

(27,510,472)

(24,498,216)

734,827

1,770,462

(4,264,314)

(2,763,071)

Decrease in derivatives and other financial assets

-

31,845

Increase in loans and finance leases to customers

(23,417,321)

(23,029,919)

(43,886)

(50,836)

(519,778)

(456,697)

18,857,824

26,933,553

Decrease in borrowings from the state bank

(1,050,498)

-

Decrease in due to and borrowings from other credit institutions

(1,456,851)

(1,569,716)

Increase in due to customers

20,514,104

31,412,834

-

(500,547)

677,421

(2,316,246)

35,004

-

411,814

121,124

(273,170)

(213,896)

(5,164,726)

4,751,623

(563,101)

(523,110)

10,680

17,451

626

21

12,675

48,153

(539,120)

(457,485)

Notes
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net fee and commission receipts
Net receipts from trading of securities, gold and foreign currencies
Receipts from other activities
Recoveries from bad debts written-off previously
Payments to employees and other operating expenses
Corporate income tax paid during the year

21

Net cash from operating activities before changes in operating
assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets
Decrease in due from and loans to other credit institutions
Increase in investment securities

Decrease in provisions used for compensation of losses
Increase in other operating assets
Changes in operating liabilities

Decrease in valuable papers issued
Increase/(decrease) in grants, entrusted funds and loans exposed to
risks
Increase in derivatives and other financial liabilities
Increase in other operating liabilities
Reverses utilized during the year
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase and constructions of fixed assets
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets
Proceeds from disposal of investments in other entities
Dividends received and profits shared from long-term investments
Net cash used in investing activities

31
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Notes

Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

22.4

(698)

(35.073)

Cash used in financing activity

(698)

(35.073)

Net cash flows during the year

(5.704.544)

4.259.065

19.566.393

15.299.928

2.304.957

-

124.807

7.400

16.291.613

19.566.393

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Dividends distributed to shareholders

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

33

Cash and cash equivalents from merger of Southern
Commercial Joint Stock Bank
Foreign exchange differences
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

33

Prepared by:

Reviewed by:

Approved by:

Mr. Luu Van Hoa
Accountant

Mr. Huynh Thanh Giang
Chief Accountant

Mr. Phan Huy Khang
CEO

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
29 May 2017
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1. 	BANK INFORMATION
Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“the Bank”) is a commercial joint stock bank incorporated in
the Socialist Republic of Vietnam.
Establishment and Operations

The Bank was established and operates in accordance with Banking License No. 0006/NH-GP issued by the
State Bank of Vietnam on 5 December 1991, Business Registration Certificate No. 0301103908 dated 13 January
1992 and other amendments issued by Ho Chi Minh City Department of Planning and Investment. The Bank’s
operation period is 100 years from 21 December 1991.
On 1 October 2015, Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank was officially merged into Saigon Thuong Tin
Commercial Joint Stock Bank according to Decision No. 1844/QD-NHNN dated 14 September 2015 issued
by the State Bank of Vietnam. Accordingly, Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank has received and
inherited all assets and obligations of Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank since the date of merger.
The Bank is allowed to carry out full range of banking services including mobilizing and receiving short,
medium and long-term deposits from organizations and individuals; providing short, medium and longterm loans to organizations and individuals based on the Bank’s nature and capacity of the capital resources;
foreign exchange trading; international trade financing services; discount of commercial papers, bonds and
other valuable papers; providing settlement services, operating in monetary market; banking and financial
consultancy; trading in government and corporate bonds; gold trading; cash management services, asset
preservation; cabin and safer renting; entrustment and trusteeship services; insurance agent; brokerage and
other banking services as allowed by the State Bank of Vietnam.
Charter capital

The charter capital of the Bank as at 31 December 2015 amounted to VND18,852,157 million (31 December
2014: VND12,425,116 million).
Network

The Bank’s head office is located at 266 - 268 Nam Ky Khoi Nghia Street, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City. As at 31
December 2015, the Bank had one (1) Head Office, one hundred and nine (109) branches located in cities
and provinces in Vietnam, four hundred thirty two (432) domestic transaction offices and eleven (11) savings
funds.
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1. 	BANK INFORMATION (continued)
Subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2015, the Bank has six (6) subsidiaries as follows:
Subsidiary

Establishment
License No.

Nature of business

Sacombank Asset Management Co., Ltd.,

4104000053

Asset management

100%

Sacombank Leasing Co., -Ltd.,

04/GP-NHNN

Mobilizing capital and leasing
activities

100%

Sacombank Remittance Express Co., Ltd.,

90/QĐ-NHNN

Foreign currency remittance service and foreign exchange agent

100%

Sacombank Jewelry Co., Ltd.,

4104003812

Retailing gold, silver and precious
stones, jewelry; commercial
inspection; gold trading, manufacturing gold and jewelry

100%

Sacombank (Cambodia) Plc.

N.27

Banking business

100%

Sacombank (Lao) Plc.

1858/NHNNTTGSNH

Banking business

100%

Ownership

Phuong Nam Asset Management Co., Ltd., was merged into Sacombank Asset Management Co., Ltd., on 1
October 2015 in accordance with the approval of the State Bank of Vietnam in the Official Letter No. 7157/
NHNN-TTGSNH dated 21 September 2015.
In addition, Sacombank Jewelry Company Limited owns a below subsidiary:
Subsidiary

Establishment
License No.

Nature of business

Hypertek Co., Ltd.,

0309998954

Trading in machinery and equipment, providing IT solutions and
services

Ownership
100%

SBJ Cambodia Co., Ltd., is a subsidiary of Sacombank Jewelry Company Limited. The Company submitted
an application to the General Department of Taxation Cambodia on 5 May 2014 for discontinuing its
operation from 1 July 2014. The General Department of Taxation Cambodia notified SBJ Cambodia Co., Ltd.,
on 4 September 2014 of tax inspection before dissolution. On 27 November 2015, the Ministry of Planning
and Development issued Official Letter No. 10578/BKHDT-DTNN to invalidate from 15 November 2015 the
Certificate of Foreign Investment No. 353/BKHDT-DTNN dated 1 June 2010.
Employees

The Bank has 16,485 employees as at 31 December 2015 (31 December 2014: 12,608 employees).
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2.	FISCAL YEAR AND ACCOUNTING CURRENCY
2.1	Fiscal year

The Bank and its subsidiaries’ fiscal year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.
2.2	Currency unit used in accounting

The currency used in the Bank and its subsidiaries' accounting is Vietnam dong ("VND"). According to Circular
No. 49/2014/TT-NHNN, for the purpose of preparing these consolidated financial statements, the data is
rounded to millions and expressed in millions of Vietnam dong ("VND million").
3.	APPLIED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM
3.1

Statement of compliance

The Board of Management confirms that the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit
Institutions, the official approvals of the State Bank of Vietnam for the Post-merger Restructuring Plan and
the Bank’s proposals for financial regimes and resolutions in the Restructuring Plan in relation to accrued
interest receivables, VAMC’s special bonds, bad debts, doubtful assets and investment securities during the
restructuring period and statutory requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.
3.2	Accounting standards and system

The consolidated financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with
the Accounting System applicable to credit institutions required under Decision No. 479/2004/QD-NHNN
issued on 29 April 2004 and Circular No. 10/2014/TT-NHNN dated 20 March 2014 amending and supplementing
Decision No. 479/2004/QD-NHNN; the financial reporting regime applicable to credit institutions required
under Decision No. 16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 and Circular No. 49/2014/TT-NHNN amending and
supplementing a number of articles of Decision No. 16/2007/QD-NHNN, the Decision No. 34/QD-NHNN.Tym
and the Official Letter No. 426/NHNN-TTGSNH.Tym dated 22 May 2017 issued by the State Bank of Vietnam
relating to the official approvals of the State bank of Vietnam for the Post-merger Restructuring Plan of Saigon
Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank and the Bank’s proposals for financial regimes and resolutions in the
Restructuring Plan as presented at Note 3.3 and Vietnamese Accounting Standards issued by the Ministry of
Finance as per:
»»

Decision No. 149/2001/QD-BTC dated 31 December 2001 on the Issuance and Promulgation of Four
Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (Series 1);

»»

Decision No. 165/2002/QD-BTC dated 31 December 2002 on the Issuance and Promulgation of Six
Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (Series 2);

»»

Decision No. 234/2003/QD-BTC dated 30 December 2003 on the Issuance and Promulgation of Six
Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (Series 3);

»»

Decision No. 12/2005/QD-BTC dated 15 February 2005 on the Issuance and Promulgation of Six
Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (Series 4); and

»»

Decision No. 100/2005/QD-BTC dated 28 December 2005 on the Issuance and Promulgation of Four
Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (Series 5).

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared using accounting principles, procedures
and reporting practices generally accepted in Vietnam. Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet,
consolidated income statement, consolidated cash flow statement and notes to the consolidated financial statements
and their utilization are not designed for those who are not informed about Vietnam’s accounting principles, procedures
and practices, and furthermore are not intended to present the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted
in countries other than Vietnam.
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3.	APPLIED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM (continued)
3.2	Accounting standards and system (continued)

Items which are not presented in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Decision No.
16/2007/QĐ-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 and Circular No. 49/2014/TT-NHNN dated 31 December 2014 issued
by the State Bank of Vietnam indicate nil balance.
3.3	Main contents of the Post-merger Restructuring Plan as approved by the State Bank of Vietnam

On 22 May 2017, the Post-merger Restructuring Plan of Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank for
the period up to 2025 and the Bank’s proposals for financial regimes and resolutions in the Restructuring Plan
in relation to accrued interest receivables, VAMC's special bonds, bad debts, doubtful assets and investment
securities during the restructuring period was approved by the State Bank of Vietnam according to Decision
No. 34/QD-NHNN.Tym and Official Letter No. 426/NHNN-TTGSNH.Tym. These proposals are summarized as
follows:
»»

Accrued interest receivables: The Bank is permitted to block some accrued interest receivables of bad
debts and doubtful assets in its consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2015 and make an
annual amortization of such blocked interest into the profit and loss based on its financial capacity within
a maximum period of 10 years according to its Restructuring Plan (Note 16.2).

»»

Provision for credit losses: The Bank is permitted to make and allocate provision for credit losses based on
its financial capacity during the restructuring period of the Restructuring Plan (Note 11.1 and 12).

»»

Special bonds issued by VAMC: The Bank is permitted to make and allocate provision for special bonds
issued by VAMC based on its financial capacity during the term of the bonds (Note 12).

»»

Doubtful assets: The Bank is required to set up specific processes and schedules to implement the fast
resolutions of foreclosed assets for debt recoveries in order to recover its capital. It is allowed to sell its
bad debts and doubtful assets to organizations and individuals at market prices and make an annual
amortization of losses arising from sales of these debts into its profit and loss based on its financial
capacity within a maximum period of 5 years from the selling date (Note 16).

»»

Securities investments in excess of 11% of the investee’s charter capital and cross ownership: The Bank is
approved to apply the proposed schedule in the Restructuring Plan for resolution of these investments
to comply with current regulations (Note 13 and 14).

3.4	Consolidation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and of its subsidiaries as at
31 December 2015. The financial statements of subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which Bank obtains control, and continued being consolidated up to the date such control
ceases. The control is achieved when the Bank has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and
operating polices of subsidiaries so as to obtain economic benefits from their activities.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Bank, using
consistent accounting policies.
All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealized gains or losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full.
Non-controlling interest represents the portion of profit or loss and of net assets of the subsidiaries not be
held by the Bank and are presented separately in the consolidated income statement and within equity in the
consolidated balance sheet, separately from the parent shareholders’ equity.
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3.	APPLIED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM (continued)
3.4	Consolidation of financial statements (continued)

The effect of changes in the ownership ratio in a subsidiary without losing control is accounted for in the
undistributed profit after tax/accumulated loss.
3.5	Accounting estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires the Board of Management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities.
These estimates and assumptions also affect the income, the expenses and the provisions. Such estimates are
based on assumptions involving varying degrees of subjectivity and uncertainty. Therefore, actual results may
differ from estimates, resulting in future changes in such items.
3.6	Going concern

The Board of Management has taken all necessary measures to maintain the Bank’s operation continuity,
including the recovery of matured debts and bad debts, maintenance of existing customer deposits and
finding new customers, strict control of operating expenses, etc. Simultaneously, the Board of Management
has also implemented the bad debt recovery and restructuring according to the Merger Plan and the
Restructuring Plan as approved by the State Bank of Vietnam. The Board of Management believes that with
the implementation of the above measures, the Bank will continue to operate in the definite future. As a result,
these consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the going concern assumption basis.
3.7	Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies used by the Bank and its subsidiaries in preparing these consolidated financial
statements are consistent with those used in preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014, except for the changes in the accounting policies in relation to the following:
Adjustment of loan classification result in accordance with Circular No. 02/2013/TT-NHNN (“Circular 02”) and
Circular No. 09/2014/TT-NHNN (“Circular 09”)
From 1 January 2015, credit institutions, foreign bank branches must use result of classification of customer
debt group supplied by Credit Information Center (“CIC”) at the classification time in order to adjust their result
of self-classification of debts, off-balance sheet commitments. If debts and off-balance sheet commitments of
customers are classified into the group of debts with lower risk than that provided by the CIC, credit institutions,
foreign bank branches must adjust result of classification of debts, off-balance sheet commitments according
to the debt group supplied by the CIC.
In addition, Clause 3a, Article 10 of Circular 02 officially ceased to be effective on 1 April 2015. Accordingly, the
Bank and its subsidiaries are not permitted to restructure time limit for debt payment and keep intact group
of debt as group already been classified as prescribed in Clause 3a, Article 10.
Circular No. 49/2014/TT-NHNN - Amending and supplementing several articles of financial reporting regime for credit
institutions issued in conjunction with Decision No. 16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 and the Accounting
System for Credit Institutions issued in conjunction with the Decision No. 479/2004/QD-NHNN dated 29 April 2004
by the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam (“Circular 49”)
On 31 December 2014, the Governor of the SBV issued Circular 49 effective on 15 February 2015 amending
and supplementing some articles of financial reporting regime for credit institutions as promulgated in
Decision No. 16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 and the Accounting System for Credit Institutions as
promulgated in Decision No. 479/2004/QD-NHNN dated 29 April 2004 issued by the Governor of State Bank
of Vietnam.
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3.	APPLIED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM (continued)
3.7	Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

Accordingly, the forms of the financial statements have some significant changes as follows:
»»

Supplementing the templates of the balance sheet, income statement and cash flow statement according
to the amendments and supplements as promulgated in Circular 02, Circular 09 and Circular 10;

»»

Supplementing some notes to financial statements in compliance with amendments of financial
statements including balance sheet, income statement and cash flow statement.

Circular No. 14/2015/TT-NHNN issued on 28 August 2015 by the SBV amending, supplementing some articles of
Circular No. 19/2013/TT-NHNN on the purchase, sale and settlement of bad debts of Vietnam Asset Management
Company (“Circular 14”)
In accordance with Circular 14, each year within 5 consecutive working days prior to the maturity date of
special bonds issued by Vietnam Asset Management Company (“VAMC”), credit institutions are obliged to
fully make a minimum specific provision as required for such year depending on the type and maturity of the
bonds. The formula for calculation of specific provision is also set out in Clause 2, Article 46 of this Circular. The
Circular takes effect from 15 October 2015.
Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC – Superseding enterprise accounting regime as promulgated in Decision No.15/2016/
QD – BTC (“Circular 200”)
On 22 December 2014, the Ministry of Finance issued the Circular 200 providing guidance on enterprise
accounting. Circular 200 is effective for the financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2015. Below are
some new requirements of Circular 200 compared with Decision 15 which might have impact the Bank and
its subsidiaries’ accounting policies and preparation of financial statements:
»»

»»

Provision for diminution in value of long-term investments:
••

For an investment in listed shares or shares which their fair value can be determined reliably,
provision shall be made based on the shares’ market value (similarly to provision for diminution in
value of held-for-trading securities);

••

For an investment in shares which fair value cannot be reliably determined on the reporting date,
provision shall be made based on the loss incurred by the investee (provision for loss of investment
in other entities).

Presentation of the income statement:
••

»»

Other income and expenses: difference between receivable with residual value and expense on
liquidation or sales of fixed assets and real estates is presented on net basis.

Some highlights on profit appropriation:
••

The Bank is entitled to distribute its earnings to the shareholders which shall not exceed the
undistributed after-tax profits on the consolidated financial statements after eliminating the
impact of profits recognized from a bargain purchase. If the undistributed after-tax profit on the
Bank’s consolidated financial statements is higher than that on its separate financial statements
and if the earnings approved to be distributed exceed the undistributed after-tax profits on the
separate financial statements, the Bank is only allowed to make the appropriation of profits after its
subsidiaries‘ profits are transferred to the Bank.

••

The Bank, when distributing profits, should consider the impact of non-monetary items included in
the undistributed earnings on its cash flows and ability to pay dividends and distribute profits.
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3.	APPLIED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM (continued)
3.7	Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

The effects of the change in accounting policies in accordance with Circular 200 to the Bank and its subsidiaries
are applied on a prospective basis as Circular 200 does not require a retrospective application.
Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC providing guidance on preparation and presentation of consolidated financial
statements (“Circular 202”)
On 22 December 2014, the Ministry of Finance issued the Circular 202 replacing section XIII of Circular No.
161/2007/TT-BTC dated 31 December 2007. Circular 202 is effective for the preparation and presentation of
consolidated financial statements for the financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
The effects of the change in accounting treatment in accordance with Circular 202 to the Bank and its
subsidiaries are applied on a prospective as this Circular does not require a retrospective application.
3.8	Issued accounting policies which have not been yet effective

The National Assembly approved Law on Accounting No. 88/2015/QH13 (“New Accounting Law”) on 20
November 2015. The New Accounting Law supplements regulations on electronic vouchers and stipulates
regulations on measurement and recognition at fair value of certain types of assets and liabilities which their
values are frequently changes in line with market values and can be determined reliably. The New Accounting
Law comes into effect from 1 January 2017
4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1		Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, gold, balances with the State Bank, treasury notes and
other short-term valuable papers which can be discounted with the State Bank, due from and loans to other
credit institutions on demand or with an original maturity of less than three months from the transaction
date and securities investments with maturity of less than three months from purchase dates which are
readily convertible into certain amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risks of change in value since the
purchase date.
4.2	Purchased debts

Purchased debts are recognized at the amount which has been paid for debt purchase and classified into the
group of risk which is not lower than the group of debts classified before purchase. Interest receipt including
the interest incurred before the purchase is recognized using the following principle: (i) reduce the value
of purchased debts by the amount of interest incurred before the purchase date, (ii) recognize the interest
income in the period by the amount incurred after the purchase date.
The Bank and its subsidiaries classify loan group and make provision against credit risks for purchased debts in
accordance with regulations on setting up risk provisions and using of provisions against credit risks presented
in Note 4.4.
4.3	Loans and finance leases to customers

Loans and finance leases to customers are disclosed and presented at the principal amounts outstanding at
the end of the financial year.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.4	Provision for credit losses

Provision for due from and loans to other credit institutions, purchased and entrusted unlisted corporate
bonds, originated or entrusted loans to customers (collectively referred to "debts") is made in compliance
with the official approvals of the State Bank of Vietnam for the Post-merger Restructuring Plan and the
Bank’s proposals for financial regimes and resolutions in the Restructuring Plan in relation to accrued interest
receivables, special bonds issued by VAMC, bad debts, doubtful assets and investment securities during the
restructuring period (Note 3.3).
The classification of due from and loans to other credit institutions, purchased and entrusted unlisted
corporate bonds, originated or entrusted loans to customers is made in accordance with the quantitative
method prescribed in Article 10 of Circular 02/2013/TT-NHNN (“Circular 02”) and Circular 09/2014/TT-NHNN
amended and supplemented some articles of Circular 02 ("Circular 09") which is presented as follows:
Group

Description
(a)

Current debts are assessed as fully and timely recoverable for both principals
and interests; or

1

Current

(b)

Debts are overdue for a period of less than 10 days and assessed as fully
recoverable for both overdue principals and interests, and fully and timely
recoverable for both remaining principals and interests.

2

Special
mention

(a)

Debts are overdue for a period of between 10 days and 90 days; or

(b)

Debts which the repayment terms are restructured for the first time.

(a)

Debts are overdue for a period of between 91 days and 180 days; or

(b)

Debts which the repayment terms are extended for the first time; or

(c)

Debts which interests are exempted or reduced because customers do not
have sufficient capability to repay all interests under credit contracts; or

(d)

Debts under one of the following cases which have not been recovered in less
than 30 days from the date of the recovery decision:

3

4

Sub-standard •

Debts made incompliance with Clause 1, 3, 4, 5, 6 under Article 126 of Law on
Credit Institutions ; or

•

Debts made incompliance with Clause 1, 2, 3, 4 under Article 127 of Law on Credit
Institutions ; or

•

Debts made incompliance with Clauses 1, 2 and 5 under Article 128 of Law on
Credit Institutions.

Doubtful

(e)

Debts are required to be recovered according to regulatory inspection
conclusions.

(a)

Debts are overdue for a period of between 181 days and 360 days; or

(b)

Debts which the repayment terms are restructured for the first time but still
overdue for a period of less than 90 days under that restructured repayment
term; or

(c)

Debts which the repayment terms are restructured for the second time; or

(d)

Debts are specified in point (d) of Loan group 3 and overdue for a period of
between 30 days and 60 days after decisions of recovery have been issued; or

(e)

Debts are required to be recovered according to regulatory inspection
conclusions but still outstanding with an overdue period up to 60 days since
the recovery date as required by regulatory inspection conclusions
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.4	Provision for credit losses (continued)

Group

5

Loss

Description
a.

Debts are overdue for a period of more than 360 days; or

b.

Debts which the repayment terms are restructured for the first time but still overdue
for a period of 90 days or more under that first restructured repayment term; or

c.

Debts which the repayment terms are restructured for the second time but still
overdue under that second restructured repayment term; or

d.

Debts which the repayment terms are restructured for the third time or more,
regardless of being overdue or not; or

e.

Debts are specified in point (d) of Loan group 3 and overdue for a period of more
than 60 days after decisions on recovery have been issued; or

f.

Debts are required to be recovered under regulatory inspection conclusions but still
outstanding with an overdue period of more than 60 days since the recovery date as
required by regulatory inspection conclusions; or

g.

Debts of credit institutions under special control as announced by the SBV, or debts
of foreign bank branches which capital and assets are blocked.

If a customer has more than one debts with the Bank and any of outstanding debts is classified into a higher risk
group, entire remaining debts should be also classified into the higher risk group.
When the Bank and its subsidiaries participate in a syndicated loan as a participant, they classify such loan
(including syndicated loans) into a higher risk group between the Bank and its subsidiaries’ assessment and the
leading bank’s assessment.
4.5	Loans sold to Vietnam Asset Management Company (“VAMC”)

The Bank and its subsidiaries sell loans to VAMC at the carrying amount in accordance with Decree No. 53/2013/
ND-CP effective from 9 July 2013 on “Establishment, structure and operations of Vietnam Asset Management
Company”, Circular No. 19/2013/TT-NHNN “Regulations on selling, purchasing and writing-off of bad debts
of Vietnam Asset Management Company”, Circular No. 14/2015/TT-NHNN and Circular No. 08/2016/TT-NHNN
amending and supplementing Circular No. 19/2013/TT-NHNN and Official Letter No. 8499/NHNN-TCKT on
“Accounting guidance on selling and purchasing of loan transactions between VAMC and credit institutions”.
Accordingly, the selling price is the outstanding loan balance minus (-) unused balance of specific provision and
is received in the form of special bonds issued by VAMC.
Upon the sale of loans to VAMC, the Bank and its subsidiaries write off loan balances and corresponding specific
provisions and recognizes special bonds issued by VAMC at par value determined as the difference between the
loan balance sold and corresponding specific provision. When receiving back loans previously sold to VAMC,
the Bank and its subsidiaries use annual specific provisions for special bonds to write off such bad debts. The
difference between provision for VAMC bonds and the remaining outstanding balance of loan /bond will be
recognized as in “Other income” in the consolidated income statement.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.6	Held-for-trading securities

Held-for-trading securities include debt, equity and other securities acquired by the Bank and its subsidiaries for
resale in the short-term period for benefits from price variance.
Held-for-trading securities are initially recognized at cost and presented at cost minus provision for held-fortrading securities in subsequent periods. Gains or losses from the disposal of held-for-trading securities are
recognized in the consolidated income statement.
Interest earned and dividends received during the holding period of held-for-trading securities are recognized
in the consolidated income statement on a cash basis.
Held-for-trading securities are made provision for impairment when the carrying amount is higher than the
market value determined in accordance with Circular No. 228/2009/TT-BTC dated 7 December 2009 (“Circular
228) and Circular 89/2013/TT-BTC dated 28 June 2013 (“Circular 89”) amended and supplemented some articles
of Circular 228.
»»

The market values of listed securities are determined based on the quoted prices on the stock markets
(which are closing prices on the stock exchange) as at the financial year-end date.

»»

The market values of unlisted shares which have been registered on the unlisted public companies market
(UPCoM), are the closing prices traded on the system as at the financial year-end date.

»»

The market values of unlisted shares which have not been registered on the unlisted public companies
market (UPCoM) are the average public price quotations obtained from at least three (3) reputable and
large securities companies in the market.

»»

Other securities that have no quoted prices are carried at cost.

Provision for held-for-trading securities is recognized in the "Net gain/(loss) from dealing of held-for-trading
securities" in the consolidated income statement.
For corporate bonds that have not been listed on the stock exchange or have not been registered for trading on
the trading market of unlisted public companies, the provision is calculated as described in Note 4.4.
4.7	Investment securities
4.7.1 Held-to-maturity securities

(i) Special bonds issued by VAMC
Special bonds issued by VAMC are valuable papers with specific terms issued by VAMC to purchase bad
debts from the Bank and its subsidiaries. Special bonds are recognized at par value at the transaction date
and continuously recorded at par value in subsequent periods. Par value of special bonds relating to the bad
debts sold, is the difference between the outstanding loan balance and unused balance of specific provision
of loan.
Specific provision for special bonds issued by VAMC is calculated annually in accordance with Circular
No. 19/2013/TT-NHNN regulating the purchase, sale and settlement of bad debts with VAMC, Circular No.
14/2015/TT-NHNN dated 28 August 2015 and Circular No. 08/2016/TT-NHNN dated 16 June 2016 amending
and supplementing some clauses of Circular No. 19/2013/TT-NHNN.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7	Investments in securities (continued)
4.7.1 Held-to-maturity securities (continued)

(i) Special bonds issued by VAMC (continued)
According to Circular No. 14/2015/TT-NHNN and Circular No. 08/2016/TT-NHNN, each year within 5
consecutive working days prior to the date of special bonds, credit institutions which have bad debts sold
to VAMC are obliged to fully make a minimum specific provision of the mentioned year for each special
bond using the below formula:
X(m)=

Y
n

x m – (Zm + Xm-1)

In which:
-------

X(m) is minimum provision for special bonds in the mth year;
Xm-1 is accumulated specific provision for special bonds in the m-1th year;
Y is face value of special bonds;
n is term of special bonds (years);
m is number of years from the bond issuance date to the provision date;
Zm is accumulated bad debt recoveries at the provision date (mth year). Credit institutions should cooperate with VAMC to determine the recovery of the bad debts.
On settlement date of special bonds, gains from the debts shall be recognized into “Other operating income”.
If (Zm + Xm-1) ≥ (Y/n x m), the specific provision (X(m)) will be zero (0).
Specific provision for each special bond is recognized in the consolidated income statement in “Provision
expense for credit losses”. General provision is not required for the special bonds.
Provision for special bonds issued by VAMC is made in compliance with the official approvals of the State
Bank of Vietnam for the Post-merger Restructuring Plan and the Bank’s proposals for financial regimes and
resolutions in the Restructuring Plan in relation to accrued interest receivables, VAMC's special bonds, bad
debts, doubtful assets and investment securities during the restructuring period of the Restructuring Plan
(Note 3.3).

(ii) Other held-to-maturity securities
Other held-to-maturity investments include debt securities acquired by the Bank and its subsidiaries for
earning interest and which the Bank and its subsidiaries have the intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Held-to-maturity investments have fixed or determinable payments and maturity date. In case these
securities are sold before maturity, they will be reclassified to held-for-trading securities or available-for-sale
securities.
Debt securities are initially recognized at face value at the purchase date. The accrued interest income (for
debt securities with interest payment in arrears) or deferred interest income (for debt securities with interest
payment in advance) is recognized in a separate account. Discount/premium which is the difference
between the cost and the amount including face value plus (+) accrued interest income (if any) or minus (-)
deferred interest income (if any) is also recorded in a separate account.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4.7	Investments in securities (continued)
4.7.1 Held-to-maturity securities (continued)

(ii) Other held-to-maturity securities (continued)
In subsequent periods, these securities are continuously stated at face value. The discount/premium (if
any) is amortized to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the remaining term
of securities. Interest received in arrears is recognized as a deduction in the value of such securities and
the corresponding accrued interest receivable for the portion incurred prior to the purchase date and
recognized into the income of the Bank and its subsidiaries under the cumulative method for the portion
incurred after the purchase date. Interest received in advance is amortized to the interest income from
investment securities on a straight-line basis over the term of investment securities.
Periodically, these securities are subject to review for impairment. For corporate bonds that have not been
listed on the stock exchange or have not been registered for trading on the trading market of unlisted
public companies, provision is made as described in Note 4.4. For other held-to-maturity securities, provision
is made when there is certain evidence of impairment. In case the market value cannot be determined, no
provision is calculated. Provision for impairment is recognized into the consolidated income statement in
“Net gain/(loss) from dealing of investment securities”.
4.7.2 Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities include debt and equity securities, which are held by the Bank and its subsidiaries for
the purpose of investment and available-for-sale, not regularly traded but can be sold when there is a benefit.
For equity securities, the Bank and its subsidiaries are neither the founder shareholder nor strategic partner
and does not have the ability to place certain influence in establishing and making the financial and operating
policies of the investees through a written agreement on assignment of its officers to the Board of Directors/
Management.
Available-for-sale equity securities are initially recognized at cost at the purchase date and continuously
presented at cost in subsequent periods. Periodically, available-for-sale securities are subject to review for
impairment. Provision for impairment of securities is made when carrying value is higher than market value in
compliance with Circular 228 and Circular 89. In case market prices of securities are not available or cannot be
determined reliably, no provision is calculated. Provision for impairment is recognized into the consolidated
income statement in “Net gain/(loss) from dealing of investment securities”.
Available-for-sale debt securities are recognized, measured, reviewed for impairment loss and made provision
similarly to held-to-maturity securities as presented in Note 4.7.1(ii).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.8	Purchase with commitment to resale of securities

Securities acquired under agreements to resell at a specific date in the future are not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements. The corresponding cash paid is recognized in the consolidated balance sheet
as an asset item and the difference between the buying price and sale price is accounted for as interest income
and is accrued on the straight-line basis to the consolidated income statement over the term of the agreement.
Provision for securities purchased with commitment for resale in the future is made in compliance with the
official approvals of the State Bank of Vietnam for of the Post-merger Restructuring Plan and the Bank’s proposals
in the Restructuring Plan in relation to accrued interest receivables, VAMC's special bonds, bad debts, doubtful
assets and equity investments during the restructuring period of the Restructuring Plan (Note 3.3).
4.9	Long-term investments

Other long-term investments represent investments in other entities (except for investment in subsidiaries)
which have maturity over 1 year. These investments are initially recorded at cost at the investment date and at
cost less provision for diminution in value of investments in subsequent.
Provision for long-term investments is made when the investees incur net loss unless losses have been previously
projected in the initial business plan prior to the investment is made. For an investment in a listed share or a fair
value of an investment can be reliably determined, provision is made based on the market value (similar to the
provision for trading securities).
For long-term investments which fair value cannot be determined at the financial year-end date, provision for
impairment is calculated as total invested amount of all the parties in the entity (at face value) minus (-) owner’s
equity multiplied (x) with the Bank's ownership (at face value) at the investee according to Circular 228 and
Circular 89.
Provision is reversed when the recoverable amount of the investment increases after the provision is made.
Provision is reversed to the extent that the carrying amount of the investments does not exceed the carrying
amount of the investment when no provision is recognized.
4.10	Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of a business combination
is measured as the fair value of assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at
the date of exchange plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination. Identifiable assets and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at fair values at the
date of business combination.
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities. If the cost of a business combination is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized directly in the consolidated income statement. After initial
recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated amortization. Goodwill is amortized over 10year period on a straight-line basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.11	Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
The cost of a tangible fixed asset comprises any directly attributable costs of bringing the fixed asset to working
condition for its intended use.
Expenditures for additions, improvements and renewals are added to the carrying amount of the assets and
other expenditures are charged to the consolidated income statement as incurred.
When tangible fixed assets are sold or retired, any gain or loss resulting from their disposal (the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount) is included in the consolidated income statement.
4.12	Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization.
The cost of an intangible fixed asset comprises any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working
condition for its intended use.
Expenditures for additions, improvements and renewals are added to the carrying amount of the assets and
other expenditures are charged to the consolidated income statement as incurred.
When intangible fixed assets are sold or retired, any gain or loss resulting from their disposal (the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount) is included in the consolidated income statement.
4.13	Lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.
A lease is classified as a finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
4.13.1 The Bank and its subsidiaries as the lessee

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
4.13.2 The Bank and its subsidiaries as the lessor

The net investment under finance lease contracts is included as a receivable in the consolidated balance sheet.
All receivables therefrom are recognized as receivables for principal capital and financial revenues from the
lessors’ investments and services. Lease income is amortized over the lease term on the basis of the fixed interest
rate over the balance of net investment in finance leases.
The Bank and its subsidiaries record operating lease assets in the consolidated financial statements. Income
from operating lease is charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. Operating lease expenses, including depreciation expenses of leased assets, are recorded as expenses
when incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.14	Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization of tangible and intangible fixed assets is calculated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful life of the assets as follows:
Buildings and structure		
Machines and equipment		
Transportation vehicles		
Other tangible assets		
Land use rights			
Computer software			
Other intangible assets		

5 - 50 years
3 - 15 years
9 -10 years
4 - 25 years
29 - 53 years
5 - 13 years
5 - 10 years

Infinite and use rights granted by the Government are not amortized. Definite term land use rights are amortized
over the term of use.
4.15	Receivables
4.15.1 Receivables classified as credit risk bearing assets

Receivables classified as credit risk bearing assets are recognized at cost. Classification and provision for doubtful
receivables are made by the Bank and its subsidiaries as presented in Note 4.4.
4.15.2 Other receivables

Receivables other than receivables classified as credit risk bearing assets are initially recognized at cost.
Provision for receivables is set up based on the aging schedule of overdue receivables or expected losses
which may occur in case where the receivables has not been due for payment but an economic organization
is bankrupted or liquidated; or individual debtor is missing, run away, being prosecuted, under a trial or serving
sentences or dead. Provision expense occurred will be recognized into “Operating expenses” during the year.
For overdue receivables, the Bank makes provision in compliance with Circular 228 and Circular 89 as follows:
Overdue

Provision rate

From over six (6) months up to less than one (1) year

30%

From one (1) year up to less than two (2) years

50%

From two (2) years up to less than three (3) years

70%

From three (3) years and above

100%

4.16	Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses are reported as short-term or long-term prepaid expenses on the consolidated balance
sheet and amortized over the period for which the amount is paid or the period in which economic benefit is
generated in relation to these expenses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.17	Due to other credit institutions, due to customers and value papers issued

Due to other credit institutions, due to customers and value papers issued are disclosed at the principal amounts
outstanding at the date financial year-end date.
4.18	Payables and accruals

Payables and accruals are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received,
whether or not billed to the Bank and its subsidiaries.
4.19

Science and Technology Development Funds

According to relevant regulations and Official Letter No. 10186/NHNN-TCKKT dated 24 December 2009 of
the State Bank of Vietnam, the Science and Technology Development Funds is recognized immediately
in management expenses when the Fund is set up and credited to a separate account in other payables.
Subsequently, the Fund will be used for fixed asset or operating expenses that this expense is allowed to use
the Fund to offset.
4.20	Equity
Charter capital

Contributed capital from issuance of shares is recorded into to charter capital account at par value.
Share premium

The Bank records the difference between the par value and issue price of shares if the issue price is higher than
par value, and the difference between the price of repurchasing of treasury stocks and the re-issue price of
treasury stocks into the share premium account.
Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognized at cost and deducted from
equity. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss upon purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Bank’s own
equity instruments.
4.21	Income and expense recognition

Interest income and expenses are recognized in the consolidated income statement on an accrual basis. The
recognition of accrued interest income is suspended when a loan is classified in groups 2 to 5 according to
Circular 02 and Circular 09 except for some accrued interest receivables as approved in the official approvals of
the State Bank of Vietnam for the Post-merger Restructuring Plan and the Bank’s proposals for financial regimes
and resolutions in the Restructuring Plan in relation to accrued interest receivables, VAMC's special bonds, bad
debts, doubtful assets and investment securities during the restructuring period (Note 3.3). Suspended interest
income is reversed and monitored off-balance-sheet and recognized in the consolidated income statement
upon actual receipt.
Fee and commissions are recognized in the consolidated income statement when services are provided.
Revenue from investments in securities is determined based on the difference between the selling price and
the average cost of securities sold.
Cash dividends from equity investments are recognized in the consolidated income statement when the right
to receive the payment is established. For stock dividends and bonus shares, only the number of shares is
updated and no dividend income is recognized in the consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.22	Foreign currency transactions

In accordance with the accounting system of the Bank, all transactions are recorded in original currencies.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year-end are translated into VND using
exchange rates ruling at the consolidated balance sheet date (see list of exchange rates of applicable foreign
currencies against VND as at 31 December 2015 in Note 47). Income and expenses arising in foreign currencies
during the year are converted into VND at real rates ruling at the transaction dates. Unrealized foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date are recognized
in the consolidated income statement.
The reporting currency of foreign subsidiaries (including Sacombank Cambodia Plc and SBJ Cambodia Co., Ltd.,
Sacombank Lao Plc) is USD and KIP Lao. The financial statements of the foreign subsidiaries are translated for
consolidating into the Bank’s financial statements as follows:
a) Assets and liabilities (both monetary items and non-monetary items) of the foreign subsidiaries are translated
at the closing rate;
b) Revenue, other income and expenses items of foreign subsidiaries are translated at the average exchange
rate; and
c) Exchange differences arising from the conversion of the subsidiaries’ financial statements are recorded as
foreign currency translation reserve under the Bank’s equity.
4.23	Corporate income tax
4.23.1 Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are effective as at the consolidated balance sheet date.
Current income tax is charged or credited to the consolidated income statement, except when it relates to
items recognized directly to equity, in which case the current income tax is also dealt with in equity.
Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right for the Bank and
its subsidiaries to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the Bank and its subsidiaries
intend to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
The Bank and its subsidiaries’ tax returns are subject to examination by the taxation authorities. Since the
application of tax laws and regulations to many types of transactions are susceptible to varying interpretations,
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements could be changed at a later date upon final
determination by the taxation authorities.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.23	Corporate income tax (continued)
4.23.2 Deferred corporate income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the consolidated balance sheet
date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:
»»

where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
which at the time of the related transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

»»

in respect of taxable temporarily differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in joint ventures where timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credit
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against deductible
temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credit and unused tax losses can be recognized, except:
»»

where the deferred tax asset in respect of deductible temporary difference which arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability which at the time of the related transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss;

»»

in respect of deductible temporarily differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates,
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each consolidated balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Previously unrecognized deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each consolidated balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted at the
consolidated balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated income statement, except when it relates to items
recognized directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in the equity account.
The Bank and its subsidiaries are only allowed to offset deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax
payable when the Bank and its subsidiaries have a legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets
with current income tax payable and deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities related to
corporate income tax managed by the same tax authority for the same entity or the Bank and its subsidiaries
intend to settle their current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.24	Fiduciary assets
Entrusted operations that the Bank and its subsidiaries bear no risks

The Bank and its subsidiaries provide services of holding assets in trust or in a fiduciary capacity. Assets held in
trust or in a fiduciary capacity are not reported in the consolidated financial statements since they are not assets
of the Bank and its subsidiaries.
Entrusted operations that the Bank and its subsidiaries bear all risks

The Bank and its subsidiaries receive entrusted funds from the trustor in order to grant loans to borrowers. The
Bank and its subsidiaries record loan balance granted from entrusted funds in the loans to customers account.
The accounting policy for loans granted to customers is in accordance with regulations of the State Bank of
Vietnam as presented in Note 4.3 and Note 4.4.
4.25		Off-balance-sheet commitments

According to Circular 02 and Circular 09, the Bank and its subsidiaries classify guarantees, acceptances for
payment and irrevocable loan commitments with specific effective date (generally called “off-balance-sheet
commitments”) into different groups as regulated in Article 10, Circular 02 to control and monitor credit quality.
Accordingly, off-balance-sheet commitments are classified into groups such as Current, Special mention, Substandard, Doubtful and Loss based on the overdue status and other qualitative factors.
4.26	Derivatives
Currency forward and swap contracts

The Bank and its subsidiaries enter into foreign exchange forward and swap contracts which enable customers
to transfer, modify or reduce their foreign exchange risk or other market risks and also are used for the Bank and
its subsidiaries’ business purpose.
Forward contracts are commitments to either purchase or sell a designated currency at a specific future date for
a specific exchange rate and cash settlement. Forward contracts are recorded at nominal values at transaction
dates, and are subsequently revaluated at the end of the accounting period. The difference on revaluation
is recognized under “Foreign exchange differences” in the equity section and is recorded in the consolidated
income statement at the end of the financial year.
Swap contracts are commitments to settle in cash at a future date based on differences between specified
exchange rates, calculated on the notional principal amount. Swap contracts are subsequently revaluated at
the end of the accounting period and the difference on revaluation is recognized under “Foreign exchange
differences” in the equity section and is recorded in the consolidated income statement at the end of the
financial year.
Currency option contracts

Contracts in foreign currency options are monitored off-balance sheet and the difference between the market
price and the expected price of the contract is recognized at each revaluation as an asset item – “Interest
receivables from option transactions” or a liability item - "Interest payable for option transactions".
Cross currency interest rate swap contracts

For cross currency interest rate swap contracts, the interest difference between the VND value and swap foreign
currencies are recognized in the consolidated income statement.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.27 	Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and reported at the net amount in the consolidated balance
sheet if, and only if, the Bank and its subsidiaries have an enforceable legal right to offset financial assets against
financial liabilities and the Bank and its subsidiaries have intention to settle on a net basis, or the realization of
the assets and settlement of liabilities is made simultaneously.
4.28	Employee benefits
4.28.1 Post employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are paid to retired employees of the Bank and its subsidiaries by the Social Insurance
Agency, which belongs to the Ministry of Labor, Invalids and Social Affairs. The Bank and its subsidiaries are
required to contribute to these post-employment benefits by paying social insurance premium at the rate of
18% of an employee’s basic salary on a monthly basis. Besides, the Bank and its subsidiaries have no further
obligation.
4.28.2 Voluntary resignation benefits

The Bank and its subsidiaries have the obligation, under Labor Code, to pay allowance arising from voluntary
resignation of employees, equal to one-half month’s salary for each year of employment up to 31 December
2008 plus salary allowances (if any). The monthly salary used in this calculation is the average monthly salary of
the latest six-month period up to the resignation date.
4.28.3 Unemployment insurance

According to the current regulations on unemployment insurance, the Bank and its subsidiaries are obliged to
pay unemployment insurance at 1% of its salary fund used to pay for unemployment insurance and deduct 1%
of salary of each employee to pay simultaneously to the unemployment insurance fund.
5.	THE MERGER OF SOUTHERN COMMERCIAL JOINT STOCK BANK
On 14 September 2015, the State Bank of Vietnam issued Decision No. 1844/QD-NHNN approving the merger of
Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank ("PNB") into Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank. Accordingly,
Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank has received and inherited all assets, rights, obligations and
legitimate interests of Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank since the merger date, 1 October 2015.
The Bank issued 400,000,000 shares, equivalent to VND4,000 billion at par value to swap PNB shares (see the
increase in the Bank's charter capital in Note 22), which were distributed to the shareholders of the parties in
the merger as follows:
»»

1 PNB share was swapped to 0.75 STB share (par value: VND10,000/share) at the issuance date (400,000,000
PNB shares were swapped to 300,000,000 STB shares); and

»»

1 share of STB shareholders was added by 0.0875 STB share (par value: VND10,000/share) at the issuance
date (100,000,000 PNB shares were distributed to the STB shareholders in the Bank’s charter capital after
deduction of 1,142,511,590 treasury shares).

214
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

B05/TCTD-HN

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2015

6.	CASH, GOLD AND PRECIOUS STONES
Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

Cash on hand in VND

4,099,103

2,991,753

Cash on hand in foreign currencies

2,195,020

1,395,055

251,939

396,637

Jewelry

26,194

16,650

Other precious metal and stones

14,177

15,735

Gold

Valuable papers in foreign currencies

45

112

6,586,478

4,815,942

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

5,830,836

3,146,939

963,335

586,586

Balances with the National Bank of Cambodia

397,993

249,238

Balances with the Bank of Lao PDR

305,103

306,994

7,497,267

4,289,757

7. 	BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

Balances with the SBV
-

In VND

-

In foreign currencies

Balances with the SBV include settlement and compulsory deposits. The average balance of settlement deposits
of the Bank at the SBV is not less than the compulsory deposits in the month. The compulsory deposits are
calculated by multiplying previous month average deposit balances and compulsory deposit rates.
The compulsory deposit rates are as follows:
Ending balance Beginning balance
Demand deposits and term deposits with maturity term less than 12
months in VND

3.00%

3.00%

Term deposits with maturity term from 12 months and above in VND

1.00%

1.00%

Demand deposits and term deposits with maturity term less than 12
months in foreign currencies

8.00%

8.00%

Term deposits with maturity term from 12 months and above in foreign
currencies

6.00%

6.00%

The actual interest rates on deposits with the SBV are as follows:
Ending balance

Beginning balance

Within the limit of compulsory deposits in VND

1.20%

1.20%

Within the limit of compulsory deposits in USD

0.00%

0.00%

Exceeding the limit of compulsory deposits in VND

0.00%

0.00%

Exceeding the limit of compulsory deposits in USD

0.05%

0.05%
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8. 	DUE FROM AND LOANS TO OTHER CREDIT INSTITUTIONS
8.1	Due from other credit institutions

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

1,663,968

1,404,168

41,740

52,385

1,622,228

1,351,783

Term deposits

543,900

1,490,551

In VND

325,000

1,430,000

In foreign currencies

218,900

60,551

2,207,868

2,894,719

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

552

735,380

(552)

-

-

735,380

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

Current

543,900

2,225,379

Term deposits with other credit institutions

543,900

1,490,551

Demand deposits

In VND
In foreign currencies

8.2 	Loans to other credit institutions

Loans to other credit institutions in VND
Provision for credit losses (Note 12.1)

8.3 	Term deposits with and loans to other credit institutions by quality

Term deposits with and loans to other credit institutions by quality are as below:

Loans to other credit institutions

-

734,828

Loss

552

552

Loan to other credit institution

552

552

544,452

2,225,931

The loss loan represents a loan provided to a People's Credit Fund incurred in 2012. Currently, the fund has been
liquidated and the Bank has made a full provision for this loan.
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9.	HELD-FOR-TRADING SECURITIES
Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

Debt securities

-

7,565,975

Bills issued by the SBV with term under 3 months

-

5,426,537

Bills issued by the SBV with term over 3 months

-

388,778

Bills issued by the State Treasury with term of 1 year

-

1,750,660

124,841

166,453

Equity securities
Issued by domestic economic entities

124,841

166,453

124,841

7,732,428

(29,507)

(49,087)

95,334

7,683,341

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

Debt securities

-

7,565,975

Listed

-

1,750,660

Provision for held-for-trading securities

The listing status of held-for-trading securities is as follows:

Unlisted

-

5,815,315

124,841

166,453

Listed

61,591

103,203

Unlisted

63,250

63,250

124,841

7,732,428

Equity securities

Movements of provision for held-for-trading securities during the year are as follows:
Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

49,087

225,870

Reversal during the year (Note 28)

(19,580)

(176,783)

Ending balance

29,507

49,087

Beginning balance
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10. 		DERIVATIVES AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES
Nominal amount
(using the exchange
rate at the effective
date)
VND million

Carrying value
(using the exchange rate at the
balance sheet date)
Assets
VND million

Liabilities
VND million

15,100

-

4,535,596

-

37,953

5,366,235

15,100

37,953

Currency derivative financial instruments as
at 31 December 2015
Forward
Swap

830,639

22,853

Net value
Currency derivative financial instruments as
at 31 December 2014
Forward
Swap

1,133,323

-

13,730

15,194,429

25,881

-

16,327,752

25,881

13,730

12,151

Net value
Options
Buy options

1,029,032

-

15,150

Sell options

1,269,251

20,061

-

2,298,283

20,061

15,150
(4,911)

Net value

11.	LOANS AND FINANCE LEASES TO CUSTOMERS

Loans to domestic economic entities and individuals

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

179,032,945

122,032,496

Loans to foreign economic entities and individuals

3,910,748

3,703,539

Finance leases

1,415,189

1,205,495

Loans financed by entrusted funds

1,400,664

1,073,481

157,267

-

185,916,813

128,015,011

Loan from discount of commercial and valuable papers
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11.	LOANS AND FINANCE LEASES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)
11.1 	Analysis of loans and finance leases by quality

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

174,096,718

125,985,614

Current
Special mention

1,041,682

506,888

Sub-standard

1,776,909

102,765

Doubtful

1,140,028

414,089

Loss

7,861,476

1,005,655

185,916,813

128,015,011

Included in the current loans as at 31 December 2015 were some loans amounting to VND33,782,627 million
which will be resolved in accordance with the proposals in the Restructuring Plan as approved by the SBV.
In 2016, the Bank has sold most loans under the Restructuring Plan approved by the SBV to VAMC amounting
to VND22,530,230 million.
Provision for loans and finance leases to customers of the Bank and its subsidiaries is made based on their
financial capacity during the restructuring period of the Restructuring Plan (Note 3.3).
11.2	Analysis of loans and finance leases by original term

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

Short-term loans

68,710,450

53,769,731

Medium-term loans

85,658,574

51,985,357

Long-term loans

31,547,789

22,259,923

185,916,813

128,015,011

11.3 	Analysis of loans and finance leases by type of customer and ownership

Ending balance
Corporate loans

Beginning balance

VND million

%

VND million

%%

96,236,167

51.76

71,039,066

55.49

Limited companies

50,050,445

26.92

35,833,100

27.98

Other joint-stock companies

36,825,406

19.81

27,709,316

21.64
3.06

Private companies

5,254,122

2.83

3,912,822

State-owned joint-stock companies

1,195,320

0.64

1,416,353

1.11

Foreign invested enterprises

928,223

0.50

481,254

0.38

State-owned limited companies

897,574

0.48

929,037

0.73

State-owned enterprises

314,738

0.17

319,314

0.25

Co-operatives

138,619

0.07

163,046

0.13

Others

631,720

0.34

274,824

0.21

89,680,646

48.24

56,975,945

44.51

185,916,813

100.00

128,015,011

100.00

Loans to individuals
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11.	LOANS AND FINANCE LEASES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)
11.4	Analysis of loans and finance leases by economic sectors

Ending balance

Beginning balance

VND million

%

VND million

%

Real estate trading and consulting services

38,666,409

20.80

23,069,451

18.02

Trading, repair of motor vehicles, motorcycles, personal
appliances and household appliances

31,178,368

16.77

16,764,693

13.10

Construction

21,391,218

11.51

15,751,138

12.30

Manufacturing and processing

19,636,867

10.56

18,618,363

14.54

International organizations or parties

15,041,583

8.09

10,178,287

7.95

Agriculture, forestry and aquaculture

14,599,686

7.85

12,096,080

9.45

7,253,503

3.90

6,997,022

5.47

Households’ services and self-consuming productions
Education and training

4,884,362

2.63

4,620,480

3.61

Transportation, warehousing and communication

3,947,706

2.12

3,949,995

3.09

Hotel and accommodation services

3,135,131

1.69

1,319,853

1.03

Financial services, banking and insurance

1,846,504

0.99

8,629,137

6.74

Electricity, gas and water supply and distribution

1,673,033

0.90

1,758,287

1.37

Health care and social relief activities

1,669,731

0.90

1,667,593

1.30

Mining exploration

1,412,835

0.76

866,686

0.68

691,239

0.37

538,219

0.42

Individuals and public activities
Sport and cultural activities

123,442

0.07

49,594

0.04

Science and technology

113,889

0.06

100,205

0.08

18,651,307

10.03

1,039,928

0.81

185,916,813

100.00

128,015,011

100.00

Others
11.5 	Analysis of loans and finance leases by currency

Ending balance
In VND
In foreign currencies and gold

Beginning balance

VND million

%

VND million

%%

173,953,500

93.57

116,355,131

90.89

11,963,313

6.43

11,659,880

9.11

185,916,813

100.00

128,015,011

100.00

12.	PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES
The Bank and its subsidiaries classify their debts in accordance with Article 10, Circular 02 and Circular 09 of SBV
and theirs policy on debt classification. According to the Restructuring Plan approved by the SBV (Note 3.3), the
Bank and its subsidiaries are allowed to make provision for credit losses based on their financial capacity during
the restructuring period of the Restructuring Plan.
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12.	PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES (continued)
Provision for credit losses at the year-end comprised of:
Notes

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

Provision for credit losses of due from and loans to other
credit institutions

12.1

552

-

Provision for credit losses of loans and finance leases to customers

12.2

2,256,792

1,368,918

Provision for credit losses of special bonds issued by VAMC

12.3

1,378,545

232,346

Provision for credit losses of credit risk bearing assets
Provision for credit losses of held-to-maturity securities

13.4

Provision for credit losses of purchased debts

143,007

-

7,500

7,500

300

-

3,786,696

1,608,764

Notes

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

Provision for due from and loans to other credit institutions

12.1

552

(14,311)

Provision for loans and finance leases to customers

12.2

942,342

688,479

Provision for special bonds issued by VAMC

12.3

1,170,113

232,346

Provision expenses for the year comprised of:

Provision for on-balance sheet credit risk bearing assets
Provision reversal for off-balance sheet commitments

143,007

128,178

-

(72,104)

2,256,014

962,588

12.1	Provision for credit losses of due from and loans to other credit institutions

Results of the loan classification as at 30 November 2015 and the corresponding provision for credit losses of
due from and loans to other credit institutions made by the Bank and its subsidiaries are as follows:

Classification
Current
Loss

Balance
VND million

Specific provision
VND million

General provision
VND million

Total provision
VND million

5,100,700

-

-

-

552

552

-

552

5,101,252

552

-

552

Movements in the provision for credit losses of deposits at and loans to other credit institutions are as follows:
Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

-

14,311

Provision expense/(reversal) for the year

552

(14,311)

Ending balance

552

-

Beginning balance
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12.	PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES (continued)
12.2	Provision for credit losses of loans and finance leases to customers

Results of the loan classification as at 30 November 2015 and the corresponding provision for credit losses of
loans and finance leases to customers made by the Bank and its subsidiaries are as follows:

Classification

Outstanding
balance
VND million

Specific provision
VND million

General provision
VND million

Total provision
VND million

Current

182,161,670

-

1,368,262

1,368,262

3,267,593

58,527

24,065

82,592

Sub-standard

345,100

32,610

2,572

35,182

Doubtful

268,165

81,832

1,840

83,672

3,866,382

1,317,376

-

1,317,376

189,908,910

1,490,345

1,396,739

2,887,084

Special mention

Loss

Changes in provision for credit losses of loans and finance leases to customers during the current year are as
follows:
Specific provision
VND million

General provision
VND million

Total
VND million

Beginning balance

422,324

946,594

1,368,918

Increase from the merger of Southern Commercial Joint
Stock Bank

486,473

318,442

804,915

Provision charged for the period

839,267

130,666

969,933

1,782

(11)

1,771

(10,424)

-

(10,424)

(250,013)

-

(250,013)

936

1,048

1,984

Balance as at 30 November 2015

1,490,345

1,396,739

2,887,084

Provision reversed in December

(3,814)

(23,777)

(27,591)

Provision used to resolve debts in December

(9,548)

-

(9,548)

(593,125)

-

(593,125)

(25)

(3)

(28)

883,833

1,372,959

2,256,792

Adjustment for provisions of subsidiaries
Provision used to resolve debts from January to November
Provision used to resolve debts sold to VAMC from January
to November
Foreign exchange differences

Provision used to resolve debts sold to VAMC in December
Foreign exchange differences
Ending balance
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12.	PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES (continued)
12.2	Provision for credit losses of loans and finance leases to customers (continued)

Changes in provision for credit losses of loans and finance leases to customers during the previous year are as
follows:
Specific provision
VND million

General provision
VND million

Total
VND million

Beginning balance

546,821

804,749

1,351,570

Provision charged in the period

548,339

140,909

689,248

Provision used to resolve debts from January to November

(43,467)

-

(43,467)

(514,760)

-

(514,760)

15,015

(332)

14,683

(46)

143

97

551,902

945,469

1,497,371

Provision (reversed)/charged in December

(1,824)

1,055

(769)

Provision used to resolve debts in December

(7,369)

-

(7,369)

(120,410)

-

(120,410)

25

70

95

422,324

946,594

1,368,918

Provision used to resolve debts sold to VAMC from January
to November
Adjustment for provisions of subsidiaries
Foreign exchange differences
Balance as at 30 November 2014

Provision used to resolve debts sold to VAMC in December
Foreign exchange differences
Ending balance
12.3	Provision for credit losses of special bonds issued by VAMC

Movements of provision for credit losses of special bonds issued by VAMC during the year following to the
Restructuring Plan approved by the SBV (Note 3.3) are as follows:

Beginning balance
Provision charged for the year (Note 13.4)
Provision used to resolve debts during the year (Note 13.4)
Ending balance

Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

232,346

-

1,170,113

232,346

(23,914)

-

1,378,545

232,346
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13.	INVESTMENT SECURITIES
Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

24,520,195

19,721,794

176,177

427,100

Available-for-sale securities
Debt securities
- Issued by the Government (i)
- Issued by other local credit institutions (ii)
Equity securities
- Issued by domestic credit institutions (iii)

264,832

-

- Issued by domestic economic entities

147,452

101,380

547

531

25,109,203

20,250,805

1,000,000

1,000,000

14,142,479

4,935,128

1,005,774

-

16,148,253

5,935,128

(193,355)

(20,647)

(1,378,545)

(232,346)

(7,500)

(7,500)

(1,579,400)

(260,493)

39,678,056

25,925,440

- Issued by foreign economic entities
Held-to-maturity securities
Bonds issued by a domestic economic entity (iv)
Special bonds issued by VAMC (v)
Government bonds (vi)
Provision for investment securities
Available-for-sale securities
Special bonds issued by VAMC
Held-to-maturity securities

(i)

Government bonds have terms from 2 to 5 years and bear interest at rates from 5.20% to 13.20% p.a,
interest is paid annually. Some bonds amounting to VND1,094,557 million have been pledged for security
of borrowings obtained from other credit institutions and for the limits granted on transactions with the
SBV (Note 35.2). As at 31 December 2015, total borrowings from other credit institutions which have been
pledged by government bonds amounted to VND300,000 million (Note 17.2).

(ii)

Bonds issued by Vietnam Development Bank have terms from 10 to 15 years and bear interest rates from
8.50% to 9.00% p.a. Interest is paid annually. Some bonds amounting to VND161,145 million have been
pledged for the limit granted on transactions with the SBV (Note 35.2).

(iii) These represent the shares of four (4) domestic credit institutions transferred from Southern Commercial
Joint Stock Bank after the merger and the Bank is currently making solution of these investments according
to the Restructuring Plan as approved by the SBV (Note 3.3).
(iv) This represent a 5-year corporate bonds which bears interest rate of 9.28% per annum, maturing on 30
December 2018.
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13.	INVESTMENT SECURITIES (continued)
(v) These are special bonds issued by VAMC to buy bad debts of the Bank which have term of five (05) years
and bear interest at rate of 0%. Changes in special bonds issued by VAMC in the current year are as follows:
Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

Beginning balance

4,935,128

628,689

Increase from the merger of Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank

1,914,451

-

Increase from selling debts to VAMC during the year

7,619,029

4,349,032

Decrease during the year

(326,129)

(42,593)

14,142,479

4,935,128

Ending balance

During the year, the Bank has sold some debts to VAMC amounting to VND8,462,167 million and used a
corresponding provision for credit losses of VND843,138 million (Note 12.2) in exchange for special bonds
issued by VAMC amounting to VND7,619,029 million.
(vi) Government bonds have terms from 2 to 5 years and bear interest at rates from 5.40% to 9.40% p.a. Interest
is paid annually.
13.1 	Listing status of available-for-sale securities

Debt securities
Listed
Equity securities
Listed
Unlisted

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

24,696,372

20,148,894

24,696,372

20,148,894

412,831

101,911

75,623

25,713

337,208

76,198

25,109,203

20,250,805

Included in unlisted equity securities was an investment in Saigon Aquatic Products Trading Joint Stock
Company amounting to VND32,397 million which was made by Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank
prior to the merger and was authorized to an individual to own the shares. The Bank has made a full
provision for this investment and is pending resolution of the investment following the Restructuring Plan
as approved by the SBV (Note 3.3).
13.2 	Listing status of held-to-maturity securities

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

Debt securities
Listed
Unlisted

1,005,774

-

15,142,479

5,935,128

16,148,253

5,935,128

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

1,000,000

1,000,000

13.3	Analysis of securities classified as credit risk bearing assets by quality

Classification
Bonds issued by domestic economic entities
- Current
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13.	INVESTMENT SECURITIES (continued)
13.4	Provision for investment securities

Changes in provision for investment securities in the year are as follows:
Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

20,647

169,286

Special bonds issued by VAMC (Note 12.3)

232,346

-

Other held-to-maturity securities
(excluded special bonds issued by VAMC)

7,500

-

260,493

169,286

71,738

-

100,970

(148,639)

Special bonds issued by VAMC (Note 12.3)

1,170,113

232,346

Other held-to-maturity securities
(excluded special bonds issued by VAMC)

-

7,500

(23,914)

-

1,318,907

91,207

193,355

20,647

Special bonds issued by VAMC (Note 12.3)

1,378,545

232,346

Other held to maturity securities
(excluded special bonds issued by VAMC)

7,500

7,500

1,579,400

260,493

Beginning balance
Available-for-sale securities

Increase from the merger of Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank
Available-for-sale securities
Charge/(reversal) in the year
Available-for-sale securities (Note 29)

Use in the year
Special bonds issued by VAMC (Note 12.3)
Ending balance
Available for sale securities
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14.	LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
14.1	Other long-term investments

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

Investments in other credit institutions

1,634

1,634

Unlisted

1,634

1,634

896,209

399,115

Listed (i)

455,762

-

Unlisted (ii)

440,447

399,115

Investments in economic entities

Total
Provision for other long-term investments

897,843

400,749

(303,301)

(136,236)

594,542

264,513

(i) Included in investments in listed economic entities was an investment in Binh Chanh Construction &
Investment Joint Stock Company amounting to VND438,653 million transferred from Southern Commercial
Joint Stock Bank upon merger and the ownership is 13%. The Bank has made a full provision for this
investment and is under pending resolution to reduce the ownership rate to under 11% in accordance with
the regulations of the SBV.
(ii) Included in the investment in unlisted economic entities is the investment in Phuong Nam Jewelry Joint
Stock Company transferred from Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank with the ownership ratio of 9.38%.
Additionally, as at 31 December 2015, the Bank has made an advance to an individual to invest in this
company with the ownership ratio of 8.31%. The Bank has made full provision and has been in process of
reducing the ownership rate to under 11% in accordance with the regulations of the SBV (Note 16.1).
14.2 	Provision for long-term investments

Movements in provision for long-term investment in the year is as follows:

Beginning balance
Increase from the merge with Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank
Provision charged/(reversed) in the year (Note 31 and 32)
Ending balance

Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

136,236

144,069

10,638

-

156,427

(7,833)

303,301

136,236
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15.	FIXED ASSETS
15.1	Tangible fixed assets

Buildings and Machines and
structure
equipment
VND million
VND million

Transportation vehicles
VND million

Other
tangible
assets
VND million

Total
VND million

Cost
Beginning balance

2,158,351

1,434,152

400,311

112,751

4,105,565

2,641

105,008

40,519

24,853

173,021

295,978

136,089

27,506

8,586

468,159

-

4,721

-

23

4,744

46,399

-

-

-

46,399

1,558,293

86,548

93,218

13,062

1,751,121

(5,682)

(3,360)

(12,825)

(995)

(22,862)

-

(118)

-

(127)

(245)

22,156

679

1,132

3,802

27,769

4,078,136

1,763,719

549,861

161,955

6,553,671

Beginning balance

223,100

849,621

151,159

50,178

1,274,058

Charge for the year

86,077

164,531

38,372

11,904

300,884

Charge from Science and Technology
Development Funds

-

3,892

-

-

3,892

Increase from the merger of Southern
Commercial Joint Stock Bank

288,627

76,579

68,305

10,783

444,294

(2,178)

(2,260)

(4,140)

(630)

(9,208)

-

(119)

-

(31)

(150)

4,415

545

821

3,684

9,465

600,041

1,092,789

254,517

75,888

2,023,235

Beginning balance

1,935,251

584,531

249,152

62,573

2,831,507

Ending balance

3,478,095

670,930

295,344

86,067

4,530,436

Newly purchase
Transfer from purchases of fixed assets,
work in progress (Note 16.1)
Upgrade
Transfer from foreclosed assets
Increase from the merger of Southern
Commercial Joint Stock Bank
Disposals
Transfer to tools and equipment
Foreign exchange differences
Ending balance
Accumulated depreciation

Disposals
Transfer to tools and equipment
Foreign exchange differences
Ending balance
Net book value
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15.	FIXED ASSETS (continued)
15.1 	Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Included in machines and equipment balance are the assets financed by Science and Technology Development
Funds with historical cost of VND53,012 million. The accounting policy applied for these assets differs from other
similar assets not financed by Science and Technology Development Funds. Accordingly, the depreciation of
these assets is funded by the Science and Technology Development Funds.
Other information on tangible fixed assets:

Net carrying value of tangible fixed assets that are temporarily not in use
Fully depreciated tangible fixed assets that are still in use

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

12,715

12,844

442,503

179,198

15.2 	Finance lease

Vehicles
VND million
Cost
Beginning balance and ending balance

596

Accumulated depreciation
Beginning balance

408

Depreciation charges

118

Ending balance

526

Net book value
Beginning balance
Ending balance

188
70
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15.	FIXED ASSETS (continued)
15.3 	Intangible fixed assets

Land use
rights
VND million

Computer
software
VND million

Other intangible fixed
assets
VND million

Total
VND million

2,313,538

554,416

484

2,868,438

-

7,265

-

7,265

167,916

121,179

-

289,095

-

115

Cost
Beginning balance
Newly purchases
Transfer from purchases of fixed assets, work in progress
(Note 16.1)

-

115

Increase from the merger of Southern Commercial Joint
Stock Bank

Upgrade

319,986

53,409

Transfer from foreclosed assets

538,401

-

(577)
(18)

373,395
-

538,401

(33)

-

(610)

-

-

(18)

11,160

1,998

-

13,158

3,350,406

738,349

484

4,089,239

Beginning balance

93,923

406,962

273

501,158

Charge for the year

23,711

73,731

67

97,509

-

51,500

-

51,500

(93)

(27)

-

(120)

Disposal
Transfer to tools and equipment
Foreign exchange differences
Ending balance
Accumulated amortization

Increase from the merger of Southern Commercial Joint
Stock Bank
Disposals
Foreign exchange differences

-

1,979

-

1,979

117,541

534,145

340

652,026

Beginning balance

2,219,615

147,454

211

2,367,280

Ending balance

3,232,865

204,204

144

3,437,213

Ending balance
Net book value

Other information on intangible fixed assets:

Net carrying value of intangible fixed assets that are temporarily not in use
Fully amortized intangible fixed assets that are still in use

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

21,157

21,613

353,986

176,538
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16. 	OTHER ASSETS
16.1 	Receivables

Expenses from purchases of fixed assets, work in progress (a)
Other receivables (b)

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

426,051

660,435

16,749,840

4,204,283

17,175,891

4,864,718

(a) This account presents constructions in progress and advances for purchase of fixed assets of branches and
transaction offices. Movements of this account in the year are as follows:
Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

Beginning balance

660,435

443,856

Increase in the year

377,954

449,008

Increase from the merger of Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank

152,981

-

Transfer to tangible fixed assets (Note 15.1)

(468,159)

(139,228)

Transfer to intangible fixed assets (Note 15.3)

(289,095)

(80,309)

Transfer to allocation and operation expense

(2,432)

(3,289)

Other decreases

(5,633)

(9,603)

Ending balance

426,051

660,435

Construction in progress and advances for purchases of fixed assets comprised of:
Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

Property in 306 - 308 Vuon Lai

87,029

-

Office in Tay Ninh town

71,062

67,860

House in 47 Hoa Binh, Tan Thoi Hoa Ward, Tan Phu District, HCMC

37,418

37,418

Tan Kim Warehouse

-

265,963

Land use right in Quyet Thang Ward, Bien Hoa, Dong Nai

-

135,099

Ebanking solution

-

65,796

230,542

88,299

426,051

660,435

Other construction in progress

The Bank and its subsidiaries have entered into agreements to purchase assets and made partial or full
payments. As at 31 December 2015, the Bank and its subsidiaries are still pending implementation of
necessary procedures to complete the transfer of ownership in accordance with the current regulations.
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16. 	OTHER ASSETS (continued)
16.1 	Receivables (continued)

(b) Other receivables included:

Internal receivables
Advances for operations (i)
Advance for construction of FICO building (ii)
Others
External receivables
Foreclosed assets (iii)
Receivables from purchase and sale of securities (iv)
Receivables from disposal of trading securities (vi)
Receivables from Southern Jewelry Joint Stock Company (v)
Tax advance (Note 21)
Receivables from sale of partial FICO building (vii)
Receivables from card organizations
Receivables from deposits for office rent
Receivables from foreign exchange settlements
Receivables from investment in Southern Jewelry Joint Stock Company (viii)
Receivables from disposal of convertible bonds of Sacombank Securities
Company
Margin deposits for commodity future contracts
Receivables from the State Budget relating to interest subsidy program
Receivables from disposal of foreclosed securities
Receivables from land lease
Others

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

1,274,932
1,032,478
216,693
25,761
15,474,908
8,603,356
4,524,532
771,872
503,639
246,923
158,204
119,457
101,381
88,081
64,800

846,580
823,423
23,157
3,357,703
1,266,190
886,468
10,580
78,751
118,443
127,393
-

41,000

61,000

36,301
27,535
187,827
16,749,840

76,287
29,077
306,115
202,645
194,754
4,204,283

Internal receivables:
(i) Included in advances for operation are advances for cash supply in ATMs for the New Year amounting to
VND824,625 million. These advances have been cleared by branches in early 2016.
(ii) These operational advances were used to purchase a partial FICO building at 927 Tran Hung Dao, District
5, Ho Chi Minh City. Currently, the Bank is implementing necessary procedures to receive the building
ownership.
External receivables:
Receivables which are resolved according to the official approvals of the State Bank of Vietnam for the Postmerger Restructuring Plan (Note 3.3) include the following items:
(iii) These represent assets that the Bank is in the process of transferring the ownership or recovering debts,
which includes some foreclosed assets amounting to VND6,991,575 million transferred from Southern
Commercial Joint Stock Bank as at 31 December 2015.
(iv) These represent receivables relating to purchases and sale of securities which were received from
Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank upon merger. These receivables are secured by shares and real
estates. Some receivables amounting to VND3,590,842 million have been made provision based on the
Bank’s financial capability during the restructuring period of the Restructuring Plan.
(v) These represent receivables relating to the gold trading between Southern Jewelry Joint Stock Company
and Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank before the merger. These receivables are secured by shares
amounting to VND681,145 million. The Bank has made provision for these receivables based on its
financial capability during the restructuring period of the Restructuring Plan.
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16. 	OTHER ASSETS (continued)
16.1 	Receivables (continued)

Other external receivables include the following items:
(vi) These represent the remaining receivables from selling securities on credit to customers which were
deposited and made partial payment.
(vii) This represents a receivable incurred in connection with a sale of a partial FICO building at 927 Tran
Hung Dao, District 5, Ho Chi Minh City by Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank to a partner for using
as head office. Currently, the Bank is completing procedures for transferring the ownership to such a
partner in accordance with the current regulations.
(viii) This represents an advance to invest in Southern Jewelry Joint Stock Company by Southern Commercial
Joint Stock Company before the merger and was authorized to an individual to own the shares. The
Bank has made a full provision for this advance and is in process of resolving in accordance with the
regulations of the SBV (Note 14.1).
16.2 	Interest and fees receivable

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

22,732,268

3,932,048

2,385,564

1,157,602

Interest receivables from trust investment (iii)

51,612

-

Receivables from swap contracts

19,118

27,400

8,857

6,884

717

6,210

9,213

6,015

-

13,029

25,207,349

5,149,188

Interest receivables from loans to customers (i)
Interest receivables from investments (ii)

Interest receivables from due from at and loans to other credit institutions
Receivables from forward contracts
Interest receivables from financial leases
Receivables from option contracts

(i)

Included in interest receivables from loans to customers as at 31 December 2015 are some interest
amounting to VND20,387,051 million. The Bank is allowed to block of this interest and make an annual
amortization of such blocked interest into the profit and loss based on its financial capacity within a
maximum period of 10 years according to the Restructuring Plan (Note 3.3).

(ii)

Included in interest receivables from investments as at 31 December 2015 are some interest on agreements
of purchase and sale of securities (Note 16.1) and on some bonds amounting to VND912,556 million and
VND224,537 million, respectively, which were received from Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank upon
merger. The Bank is allowed to block these interest at 31 December 2015 and make an annual amortization
of such blocked interest into the profit and loss based on its financial capacity within a maximum period of
10 years according to the Restructuring Plan (Note 3.3).

(iii) This represents an interest receivable related to an entrustment in a company (Note 16.3) received from
Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank upon merger. The Bank is allowed to block this interest and make
an annual amortization of such blocked interest into the profit and loss based on its financial capacity
within a maximum period of 10 years according to the Restructuring Plan (Note 3.3).
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16. 	OTHER ASSETS (continued)
16.3	Other assets

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

1,134,718

1,024,032

- Real estates

917,284

804,226

- Securities

200,525

202,897

Foreclosed assets (i)
In which:

- Fund certificates

6,000

6,000

10,909

10,909

593,508

604,831

Receivables from an entrustment (iii)

90,000

-

Investments in financial lease assets

11,140

30,370

-

15,120

- Others
Prepaid expenses (ii)

Goodwill (iv)
Other assets

24,061

21,032

1,853,427

1,695,385

(i)

These represent collaterals of loans to customers which were foreclosed to the Bank upon writing-off
of bad debts including loans and other receivables. The Bank has completed procedures to receive the
ownership of these assets to the Bank and is in progress to resolve these foreclosed assets in accordance
with regulations stipulated by the SBV.

(ii)

Prepaid expenses comprise of asset rental, asset maintenance and repairing expenses, option premium fee
and interest paid in advance which are being amortized for a period from 1 to 50 years.

(iii) This represents an entrustment of Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank to a company before the merger.
This entrustment is pending resolution according to the Restructuring Plan as approved by the SBV (Note
3.3).
(iv) Movements of goodwill during the year are as below:
Current year
VND million
Total goodwill
Amortization period
Accumulated amortization of goodwill at the beginning of the year
Remaining balance of goodwill at the beginning of the year
Amortization of goodwill for the year
Remaining balance of goodwill at end of year

Previous year
VND million

20,387

20,387

10 years

10 years

5,267

3,229

15,120

17,159

(15,120)

(2,039)

-

15,120

During the year, the Bank made a distribution of all goodwill arising from the acquisition of SBJ Cambodia
Co., Ltd., - a subsidiary as the completion of its liquidation procedures. On 27 November 2015, the Ministry of
Planning and Development issued Official Letter No. 10578/BKHDT-DTNN to invalidate from 15 November 2015
the Certificate of Foreign Investment No. 353/BKHDT-DTNN dated 1 June 2010.
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16. 	OTHER ASSETS (continued)
16.4 	Provision for other assets

Results of the receivables classified as credit risk bearing assets are as follows:
Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

4,524,532

-

Loss
Receivables from term purchase and sale of securities
Receivables from trust investments

90,000

-

4,614,532

-

Included in loss debts are some receivables amounting to VND3,680,842 million from agreements of purchase
and sale of securities and an entrustment which have been provided for allowance by the Bank based on its
financial capability and are under pending resolution according to the Restructuring Plan as approved by the
SBV (Note 3.3).
Provision for other assets comprises of:

Provision for credit risk bearing assets
- Specific provision
Provision for other assets
- Provision for foreclosed assets
- Provision for receivable from securities trading
- Provision for other assets

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

143,007
143,007
442,797
235,166
57,850
149,781
585,804

433,582
213,939
219,643
433,582

Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

433,582
152,222
585,804

305,404
128,178
433,582

Changes in provision for other assets in the year are as follows:

Beginning balance
Provision charged during the year
Ending balance

17. 	DUE TO AND BORROWINGS FROM OTHER CREDIT INSTITUTIONS
17.1	Due to other credit institutions

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

Demand deposits
In VND
In foreign currencies
Term deposits
In VND

125,374
89,996
35,378
531,753
-

169,095
119,349
49,746
1,690,667
3,000

In foreign currencies

531,753

1,687,667

657,127

1,859,762
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17. 	DUE TO AND BORROWINGS FROM OTHER CREDIT INSTITUTIONS (CONTINUED)
17.2	Borrowings from other credit institutions

Ending balance Beginning balance
VND million
VND million
Borrowings from other domestic credit institutions in VND
Borrowings from other foreign and domestic credit institutions in foreign currencies
In which: Pledged loans (Note 13)

1,437,993
858,953
300,000
2,296,946

962,880
1,587,964
2,550,844

18. 	DUE TO CUSTOMERS
18.1 	Breakdown by type of deposits

Demand deposits
Demand deposits in VND
Demand deposits in foreign currencies
Demand savings in VND
Demand savings in foreign currencies
Term deposits
Term deposits in VND
Term deposits in foreign currencies
Term savings in VND
Term savings in foreign currencies
Margin deposits
In VND
In foreign currencies
Deposits for specific purposes
In VND
In foreign currencies
Margin deposits for other settlement services
In VND
In foreign currencies

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

33,215,714
29,523,290
3,069,657
160,592
462,175
227,023,511
14,349,738
2,133,188
201,704,040
8,836,545
477,686
349,545
128,141
86,182
27,049
59,133
191,652
186,689
4,963
260,994,745

24,333,311
21,941,355
2,019,385
134,574
237,997
137,900,625
12,453,018
1,793,155
118,182,084
5,472,368
645,292
160,541
484,751
18,640
5,216
13,424
159,588
151,108
8,480
163,057,456

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

30,568,941

24,718,278

21,573,191

16,027,988

7,029,644

6,721,007

18.2 	Breakdown by customer and type of business

Deposits from economic entities
Private enterprises and others
State-owned enterprises
Foreign-invested enterprises
Deposits from individuals
Deposits from other entities

1,966,106

1,969,283

228,856,259

137,279,537

1,569,545

1,059,641

260,994,745

163,057,456
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19. 	GRANTS, ENTRUSTED FUNDS AND LOANS EXPOSED TO RISKS
Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

1,094,500

-

PROPARCO (ii)

222,268

366,085

SMEFP (iii)

185,195

131,805

ADB (iv)

147,568

192,287

FMO (v)

118,983

205,648

21,890

63,738

2,830

-

-

156,250

1,793,234

1,115,813

Cathay United Bank (i)

NORFUND
Rabobank Foundation
IFC (vi)

(i)

This borrowing was obtained from Cathay United Bank which aims to provide supplement capital for the
Bank’s businesses with interest rate of six-month LIBOR plus 3.79% p.a and a five-year term.

(ii)

This borrowings were grants, entrusted funds and loans from Societe De Promotion Et De Participation
Pour La Cooperation Economique S.A (“PROPARCO”) for medium - long term financing in USD for parties
operating in Vietnam at interest rate from 3.04% to 3.39% p.a.

(iii) This borrowing was sponsored by Japanese Government through the Japan International Cooperation
Agency (JICA) to enhance the competitiveness of small and medium enterprises. The balance consists of
two (2) loans from SMEFP II and SMEFP III with the same interest rate of 4.68% p.a.
(iv) This borrowings were grants, entrusted funds and loans from the Asian Development Bank ("ADB") for
short, medium and long term financing in VND for low-income individuals to purchase and repair houses
at an interest rate of 5.28% p.a.
(v)

This borrowings were grants, entrusted funds and loans from Financierings - Maatschappij Voor
Ontwikkelingslarden (“FMO”), a bank in Netherland, include:
»»

Loans in VND to finance the purchase of houses from non-business customers who meet requirements
of FMO. The loans bear interest at rate of 6.02% p.a. As at 31 December 2015, outstanding loan balances
amounted to VND19,065 million and will mature in the year 2016. The principal and interests are paid
every 6 months; and

»»

Loans for domestic credit with the limit of USD10 million. The loans have term of 5 years and bear
floating interest at rate of Libor 6 months plus (+) 3.2% p.a. As at 31 December 2015, the outstanding
loan balances were USD4,999,999 and bear interest at rate of 3.7% p.a.

(vi) This borrowings were grants, entrusted funds and loans from International Finance Corporation ("IFC") to
finance low-income individuals to purchase and repair houses with the tenor within 10 years. The loans are
in VND and bear interest at rate of 10.22% p.a.
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20. 	OTHER LIABILITIES

Payables for internal activities
Bonus and welfare funds
Payables to employees
Termination allowance
Other payables
Payables for external activities
Payables for card operations
Deposit for purchase of foreclosed assets
Payables to foreign remittance companies
Tax payables to the State Budget (Note 21)
Payables to customers
Unearned income
Payables pending for payment
Science and Technology Development Funds
Dividend payables (Note 22.4)
Others

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

90,471
77,637
700
12,134
1,009,736
230,503
105,695
104,298
88,937
78,183
39,900
23,383
19,625
10,774
308,438
1,100,207

370,287
62,166
289,541
4,911
13,669
859,704
136,825
50,000
94,044
104,560
79,280
87,766
13,017
23,517
7,088
263,607
1,229,991

Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

62,166
525
288,043
73
(273,170)
77,637

75,330
(13,164)
62,166

Movements of the bonus and welfare funds during the year are as follows:

Beginning balance
Reclassify in the year
Increase from the merger of Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank
Profit appropriation to the fund during the year (Note 22.1)
Others
Utilization
Ending balance

21.

STATUTORY OBLIGATIONS
Movements during the year
Beginning
balance
Payables
Paid Other adjustments
VND million VND million VND million
VND million

Ending balance
VND million

Value added tax

15,033

188,124

(202,275)

18,804

19,686

Corporate income tax

38,582

242,858

(514,536)

2,794

(230,302)

Other tax

40,365

264,506

(252,277)

36

52,630

93,980

695,488

(969,088)

21,634

(157,986)

In which:
Tax payables to the State Budget (Note 20)

104,560

88,937

Tax advance (Note 16.1)

(10,580)

(246,923)
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21.

STATUTORY OBLIGATIONS (continued)
Corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Bank and its subsidiaries in Vietnam have the obligation to pay CIT at the rate of 22% of taxable profits
for the current year (2014: 22%), Sacombank Cambodia Plc. has the obligation to pay CIT at the rate of 20% of
taxable profit in Cambodia (2014: 20%), Sacombank Lao Plc. has the obligation to pay CIT at the rate of 24% of
taxable profit in Laos.
The Bank and its subsidiaries’ tax returns are subject to examination by the taxation authorities. Since the
application of tax laws and regulations to many types of transactions is susceptible to varying interpretations,
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements could be changed at a later date upon final
determination by the taxation authorities.
CIT expense in the year comprised of:

Current tax expense
Adjustment for under accrual of tax from prior years
Deferred tax (income)/expense

Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

235,928

576,216

6,930

-

(12,622)

43,639

230,236

619,855

Current corporate income tax

The current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable income differs from profit as reported
in the consolidated income statement since it excludes taxable income or deductible expenses in prior years
due to the differences between the Bank and its subsidiaries’ accounting policies and the current income tax
policies, and also excludes non-taxable income or non-deductible expenses. The current CIT payables are
calculated based on the statutory tax rates applicable at the separate balance sheet date.
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21.

STATUTORY OBLIGATIONS (continued)
Corporate income tax (“CIT”) (continued)
Current corporate income tax (continued)

Reconciliation between CIT expense and the accounting profit multiplied by CIT rate is presented below:
Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

878,155

2,826,287

55,553

197,948

933,708

3,024,235

Parent bank

698,113

2,850,553

Subsidiaries

235,595

173,682

At applied CIT rate

207,672

673,012

153,585

627,122

54,087

45,890

Accounting profit before tax
Adjustments for consolidation of financial statements
Accounting profit before tax after adjustments for consolidation of
financial statements
In which:

In which:
Parent bank (22%)
Subsidiaries
Adjustments to increase:
Provision expenses for other assets

56,980

-

Unrealized foreign exchange loss for the current year

17,645

6,425

6,535

2,358

Difference of tax rates between Vietnam and Laos

-

861

Difference of tax rates between Vietnam and Cambodia

-

5,691

(37,393)

(61,975)

Loss transfer from a subsidiary

(9,920)

-

Realized foreign exchange loss of the previous year

(5,740)

-

Provision reversal for credit losses

-

(7,945)

Provision reversal for investments and other assets

-

(43,042)

235,779

575,385

149

695

235,928

576,080

6,930

-

-

136

242,858

576,216

Other non-deductible expenses

Adjustment to decrease:
Tax exempted income

Estimate CIT expense in the year
Tax expense for land use rights transfer
Additional tax paid from 2013 and 2014
Adjustments of a subsidiary
Current CIT expense for the year
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21.

STATUTORY OBLIGATIONS (continued)
Corporate income tax (“CIT”) (continued)
Deferred corporate income tax

Changes in deferred CIT and its effect on the consolidated income statement of the Bank and its subsidiaries
are presented as follows:
Consolidated balance sheet

Consolidated income statement

Ending balance Beginning balance
VND million
VND million

Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

Deferred tax assets
Provision for investments and other
assets
Provision for credit losses
Provision for severance allowance

94,588

59,576

35,012

(33,345)

-

-

-

(9,028)

(1,031)

(1,266)

(21,359)

-

12,622

(43,639)

-

1,031

94,588

60,607

(21,359)

(868)

Deferred tax liabilities
Accumulated loss from subsidiaries and
other assets

Net deferred corporate income tax income/(expense) credit/(charged) to
consolidated income statement

-

-

-

-

Foreign exchange differences from the conversion of
Lao branch into a subsidiary

Appropriation to bonus and
welfare fund (Note 20)

Subsidiary liquidation (SBJ
Cambodia Co., Ltd.,)

Others

18,852,157

-

Reclassification

Ending balance

-

Utilization of reserves

1,121

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Additional reserves for prior
year

2,284,792

Increase capital from shares
dividend

-

-

142,249

Increase capital from issuing
bonus shares

326

-

795

Odd stock settlement

4,000,000

-

12,425,116

Increase from the merger of
Southern Commercial Joint
Stock Bank

Net profit for the year

Charter capital
VND million

63,612

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(263)

-

(1,649,127)

41,309

-

1,671,693

Fund for
capital
expenditure Share premium
VND million
VND million

Statement of changes in owners’ equity

Beginning balance

22.1

22.	OWNERS’ EQUITY

(750,911)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,506,878

(750,911)

-

(1,506,878)

653

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

500

-

153

Treasury
shares Other capital
VND million VND million

118,124

-

-

-

-

19,863

-

1,625

-

-

-

243

-

96,393

Development and
investment
reserve
VND million

1,442,957

-

-

-

-

(19,863)

(63)

226,624

-

-

-

127,707

-

1,108,552

Financial
reserve
VND million

858,752

-

-

-

-

-

-

116,956

-

-

-

7,779

-

734,017

Capital supplementary
reserve
VND million

229,077

-

-

-

124,807

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

104,270

Foreign
currency
translation
reserve
VND million

1,264,953

(614)

-

(288,043)

1,038

-

-

(345,205)

(231)

(2,284,792)

-

105,795

647,919

3,429,086

Retained
earnings
VND million

-

-

(4)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4

Non-controlling
interest
VND million

22,080,495

(614)

(4)

(288,043)

125,845

-

(63)

-

(494)

-

-

3,532,748

647,919

18,063,201

Total
VND million

Financial Statements
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22.	OWNERS’ EQUITY (continued)
22.1

Statement of changes in owners’ equity (continued)

According to Official Letter No. 7168/NHNN-TTGSNH dated 21 September 2015 by the State Bank of Vietnam,
Official Letter No. 6924/UBCK-QLPH dated 4 November 2015 by the State Securities Commission and Official
Letter No. 09/2006/GCNCP-VSD dated 12 November 2015 by the Vietnam Securities Depository, Saigon Thuong
Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank increased its charter capital to VND18,852,157 million as follows:
»»

Issue additional 400,000,000 shares of STB, equivalent to VND4,000 billion at par value, to swap all shares of
PNB’s shareholders related to the merger of Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank; and

»»

Distribute treasury shares and bonus shares from share premium and dividend shares issuance for 2013 and
2014 to STB’s shareholders before the merger amounting to VND2,427,041 million.

In 2015, the Bank recorded 81,562,287 treasury shares amounting to VND750,911 million from the merger of
Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank.
Details of shares issued by the Bank are as follows:
Ending balance
Share

Beginning balance
Share

Number of authorized shares

1,885,215,716

1,242,511,590

Number of issued shares

1,885,215,716

1,242,511,590

- Ordinary shares

1,885,215,716

1,242,511,590

Number of repurchased shares

(81,562,287)

(100,000,000)

- Ordinary shares

(81,562,287)

(100,000,000)

Number of outstanding shares

1,803,653,429

1,142,511,590

- Ordinary shares

1,803,653,429

1,142,511,590

22.2	Reserves of the Bank

According to Decree No. 57/2012/ND-CP effective from 15 September 2012, commercial joint stock banks are
required to appropriate the statutory reserves based on the percentage of net profit after tax as below:
Basis for calculation

Maximum balance

Supplementary capital reserve

5% of profit after tax

100% of charter capital

Financial reserve

10% of profit after tax

25% of charter capital

Other reserves

Subject to resolution of the Annual general
meeting of shareholders

Not defined

The Bank has not yet made statutory reserves from net profit after tax for 2015. Such reserves will be made in
2017 after getting approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and the State Bank of Vietnam.
22.3

Subsidiaries’ statutory reserves

Statutory reserves of the subsidiaries are made in accordance with the decision of the Bank for each year in
accordance with regulations in Vietnam and countries where subsidiaries are operating.
Sacombank Cambodia Plc and SBJ Cambodia Co., Ltd., are not required to make the reserves by local regulations
of Cambodia.
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22.	OWNERS’ EQUITY (continued)
22.4 	Dividends

Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

Beginning balance

7,088

42,161

Increase from the merger of Southern Commercial Joint Stock Bank

4,321

-

63

-

(698)

(35,073)

10,774

7,088

Dividend payable for minor shares in year
Dividend paid in year
Ending balance

23.	EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net profit after tax for the year attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit after tax for the year attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Bank (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary
shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
Information for calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share of the Bank is presented below:

Profit after tax (VND million)

Current year

Previous year
(restate)

647,919

2,206,436

Decrease due to the distribution to bonus and welfare funds (Note 22.1)

-

(288,043)

Net profit after tax attributable to ordinary shares for earnings per share
calculation (VND million)

647,919

1,918,393

1,458,564,556

1,142,511,590

Stock dividends (2013: 8%, 2014: 12%)

-

228,479,230

Distribution of treasury shares and a part of share premium to existing
shareholders

-

114,224,896

1,458,564,556

1,485,215,716

Basic earnings per share (VND)

444

1,292

Diluted earnings per share (VND)

444

1,292

Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares in the year
(shares)
Effect of dilution:

Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares adjusted for
the effect of dilution (shares)

Basic earnings per share after previous year adjustment was restated to reflect the stock dividends, distribution
of treasury shares and a part of share premium in the year.

244
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

B05/TCTD-HN

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2015

24. 	INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME

Interest income from loans to customers and other credit institutions
Interest income from investments in debt securities
- Interest income from held-for-trading securities
- Interest income from investments securities

Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

13,296,220

12,496,539

1,957,797

2,162,510

258,817

285,496

1,698,980

1,877,014

Interest income from deposits

186,047

124,480

Income from guarantees

161,196

142,478

Interest income from finance leases

149,544

124,740

Income from other credit activities

142,046

145,222

15,892,850

15,195,969

Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

8,987,437

8,198,431

169,441

303,370

7

493

160,858

129,017

9,317,743

8,631,311

Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

1,740,796

1,443,862

Income from settlement services

572,312

509,415

Income from treasury services

265,743

206,205

Income from warehouse leases

182,093

151,371

47,379

56,729

673,269

520,142

Income from other services

(569,533)

(495,379)

Fee and commission expenses

(205,098)

(150,290)

Expenses from settlement services

25. 	INTEREST AND SIMILAR EXPENSES

Interest expenses on deposits
Interest expenses on borrowings
Interest expenses on valuable papers
Interest expenses from other credit activities

26. 	NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fee and commission income

Income from remittance services
Income from other services

(120,060)

(96,320)

Expenses from postal and communication

(66,989)

(60,008)

Expenses from brokerage services

(30,854)

-

Expenses from treasury services

(65,202)

(80,008)

Depreciation expenses

(81,330)

(108,753)

1,171,263

948,483

Other services
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27.	NET GAIN FROM FOREIGN CURRENCIES AND GOLD TRADING
Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

Income from foreign exchange

1,497,833

765,024

Income from currency derivatives

1,171,681

480,707

292,859

257,354

33,293

26,963

Expense from foreign exchange

(1,338,991)

(568,857)

Expenses from currency derivatives

(1,139,822)

(455,903)

Expenses from spot foreign exchange

(98,422)

(70,982)

Expenses from gold trading

(26,377)

(15,883)

Loss from revaluation of foreign currencies, gold and financial
instruments

(74,370)

(26,089)

158,842

196,167

Income from spot foreign exchange
Income from gold trading

28. 	NET GAIN FROM DEALING OF HELD-FOR-TRADING SECURITIES
Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

-

30,357

Expenses from dealing of held-for-trading securities

(8,125)

(24,054)

Reversal of provision for held-for-trading securities (Note 9)

19,580

176,783

11,455

183,086

Income from dealing of held-for-trading securities

29. 	NET (LOSS)/GAIN FROM DEALING OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Income from dealing of investment securities
Expenses from dealing of investment securities
(Charged)/reversal of provision for investment securities (Note 13.4)

Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

9,647

107,233

(8,155)

(79,348)

(100,970)

141,139

(99,478)

169,024
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30.	OTHER INCOME FROM OTHER OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Other operating income
Income from recovery of written off bad debts and special bonds
issued by VAMC (i)
Income from reversal of accrued Head Office rental expenses (ii)

Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

479,034

192,607

424,576

6,046

-

84,245

Income from disposals of fixed assets

-

17,451

Income from cash surplus from ATM

-

5,458

Dividends from foreclosed securities

-

2,372

54,458

77,035

(20,182)

(59,045)

Other income
Other operating expenses
Expenses from disposals of fixed assets
Other expenses

(3,464)

(20,948)

(16,718)

(38,097)

458,852

133,562

(i)

Included in income from recovery of written-off bad debts and special bonds issued by VAMC was an
income of VND285,109 million related to foreclosed securities of a customer. These securities was sold with
deferred payment plan to a partner for debt recovery.

(ii)

This represents the income in 2014 from reversal of Head office rental expenses accrued in previous years
due to the change in rental fee as stated in amending and supplementing agreement between the Bank
and the lessor.

31.	NET INCOME FROM LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

12,675

48,153

- From held-for-trading securities

2,764

30,383

- From investment securities

2,464

4,608

- From other long-term investments

7,447

13,162

Loss from disposal of long-term investments

-

(1,478)

Reversal of provision for impairment of long-term investments (Note
14.2)

-

7,833

12,675

54,508

Dividends and profit received from capital contributions
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32. 	OPERATING EXPENSES
Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

Taxes and other fees

78,998

79,133

Personnel expenses

2,858,094

2,577,294

2,593,031

2,375,552

In which:
Salary and allowances
Salary-related allowances

214,313

181,520

Allowances

29,871

3,018

Uniform allowances

20,879

17,204

1,080,196

954,567

333,024

287,688

738,023

678,448

32,046

36,697

Insurance expenses for customer deposits

233,594

171,171

Provision expenses for long-term investment (Note 14.2)

156,427

-

Asset expenditures
In which:
Depreciation and amortization charges
Other operating expenses
In which:
Business trip expenses

Provision expenses for other assets

9,215

-

5,154,547

4,460,613

33. 	CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated cash flow statement comprise the following amounts
on the consolidated balance sheet:
Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

Cash and cash equivalents

6,586,478

4,815,942

Balances with the State Bank of Vietnam

7,497,267

4,289,757

Demand deposits with other credit institutions

1,663,968

1,404,168

543,900

1,490,551

Valuable papers with terms under three months from the purchase date

-

5,426,537

Short-term bills issued by the State Treasury which can be discounted
with the SBV

-

2,139,438

16,291,613

19,566,393

Deposits with other credit institutions with term under three months
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33. 	CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
Additional information on material non-monetary transactions eliminated from the consolidated cash flows
statement in the year is as follows:

Distribution of treasury shares and bonus shares from share premium

Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

142,249

-

Increase charter capital from retained earnings

2,284,792

-

Debts sold to VAMC in exchange for special bonds

7,619,029

4,349,032

Merger of Southern Commercial Bank

2,188,820

-

In which:
(81,716,506)

-

- Adjustment to increase total liabilities from the merger

- Adjustment to increase total assets from the merger

79,568,362

-

- Adjustment to increase owners’ equity from the merger

4,336,964

-

Merger of Phuong Nam Asset Management Co., Ltd.,

116,137

-

(156,869)

-

- Adjustment to increase total liabilities from the merger

9,764

-

- Adjustment to increase owners’ equity from the merger

263,242

-

Current year

Previous year

13,936

12,066

2,331,880

2,022,125

799,206

305,095

In which:
- Adjustment to increase total assets from the merger

34. 	EMPLOYEES’ INCOME

I.

Total average number of employees (persons)

II.

Employees’ income (VND million)
1.

Total salary and advances

2.

Other income

3.

Total income (1+2)

3,131,086

2,327,220

4.

Average salary per month (VND/person)

13,943,982

13,965,723

5.

Average income per month (VND/person)

18,723,008

16,072,849
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35. 	COLLATERALS AND MORTGAGES
35.1	Assets and valuable papers of customers and other credit institutions pledged, discounted and rediscounted

Types and book value of collaterals of customers at the year-end are as follows:
Book value

Real estate properties

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

260,394,418

177,175,656

Valuable papers

27,942,802

18,710,138

Transportation vehicles

14,821,021

9,465,045

Machines and equipments

4,277,581

4,078,687

Inventories

4,280,556

4,238,733

Other assets

15,096,536

10,555,483

326,812,914

224,223,742

35.2	Assets and valuable papers of the Bank and its subsidiaries pledged, discounted and re-discounted at
other credit institutions

Details of assets and valuable papers of the Bank and its subsidiaries pledged, discounted and re-discounted at
other credit institutions at the year-end are as follows:

Government bonds (Note 13)
Bonds issued by other local credit institutions (Note 13)

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

1,094,557

2,806,707

161,145

151,466

1,255,702

2,958,173

36. 	CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
In the normal course of business, the Bank and its subsidiaries are the parties to financial instruments which
are recorded as off-balance sheet items. These financial instruments mainly comprise guarantee commitments
and commercial letters of credit. These instruments involve elements of credit risk in excess of the amounts
recognized in the consolidated balance sheet.
Credit risk for off-balance sheet financial instruments is defined as the possibility of sustaining a loss because
any other party to a financial instrument fails to perform in accordance with the terms of the contract.
Financial guarantees are conditional commitments issued by the Bank and its subsidiaries to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party including guarantee for borrowings, settlement, performing of the
contracts and bidding. The credit risk involved in issuing guarantees is essentially the same as that involved in
extending loans to other customers.
Commercial at sight letters of credit represents a financing transaction by the Bank and its subsidiaries to their
customer where the customer is usually the buyer/importer of goods and the beneficiary is typically the seller/
exporter. Credit risk from this type of letters of credit is limited as the merchandise shipped serves as collateral
for the transaction.
Deferred payment letters of credits represent the amounts at risk should the contract be fully effected but the
client defaults in repayment to the beneficiary. Deferred payment letters of credit that defaulted by clients are
recognized by the Bank and its subsidiaries as granting of a compulsory loan with a corresponding liability
representing the financial obligation of the Bank and its subsidiaries to pay the beneficiaries and to fulfil the
guarantor obligation.
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36. 	CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (continued)
Guarantee commitment is the commitment issued by the Bank and its subsidiaries to guarantee the performance
of the customers to a third party including guarantee for borrowings, settlement, performing contracts and
bidding... Credit risk of the borrowing guarantee, settlement guarantee in general is essentially the same as that
involved in extending loans to other customers, while other guarantees, the risk is lower.
Risk of the letter of credit is usually lower, in condition that the Bank and its subsidiaries can control goods.
Deferred letter of credit may have contingent risk higher than at sight letter of credit. Deferred payment letters of
credit that were defaulted by clients are recognized by the Bank and its subsidiaries as granting of a compulsory
loan with a corresponding liability representing the financial obligation of the Bank and its subsidiaries to pay
the beneficiaries and to fulfill the guarantor obligation.
The Bank and its subsidiaries requires margin deposits to support credit-related financial instruments when it is
deemed necessary. The margin deposit required varies from nil to 100% of the value of a commitment granted,
depending on the creditworthiness of clients as assessed by the Bank and its subsidiaries.
The currency trading commitments are commitments to purchase, sell at spot and currency swap commitments.
Commitments to purchase, sell at spot are commitments to purchase, sell currency according to exchange rate
dealt and payment within two (02) days since transaction date. Currency swap commitments are commitments
to purchase and sell with the same notional principal amount (only two currencies used for transaction) to one
client, including one transaction for term payment at spot and one transaction for term payment in the future
with the exchange rate of both transactions determined at spot transaction date.
Details of outstanding contingent liabilities and commitments are as follows:

Letters of credit
Commitments on foreign exchange transactions
- Commitments on buying foreign currencies
- Commitments on selling foreign currencies
- Commitments on swap
Guarantees for borrowings
Other guarantees
Other commitments
Less: Margin deposits
Contingent liabilities and commitments

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

6,623,786
14,423,048
2,537,450
1,970,586
9,915,012
32,404
3,912,523
11,271
25,003,032
(342,543)
24,660,489

8,646,367
38,574,959
4,346,830
3,265,376
30,962,753
190,294
3,290,959
11,103
50,713,682
(526,579)
50,187,103

Results of the loan classification as required by Circular 02, Circular 09 and the Bank and its subsidiaries’ policy
on loan classification and provision are as follows:

Current loans

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

10,579,984

12,138,723

6,623,786

8,646,367

In which:
- Letters of credit
- Guarantees for borrowings
- Other guarantees
- Other commitments

32,404

190,294

3,912,523

3,290,959

11,271

11,103
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37. 	RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related party transactions include all transactions undertaken with other entities to which the Bank and its
subsidiaries are related. Parties are considered as related parties if one party is able to control over or significantly
influence on the other party in making decision of financial and operational policies. A party is deemed to be
related to the Bank and its subsidiaries if:
(a) Directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party:
»»

controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Bank and its subsidiaries (including
parents and subsidiaries);

»»

has an interest in the Bank and its subsidiaries (owning 5% or more of the charter capital or voting
share capital) that gives it significant influence over the Bank and its subsidiaries;

»»

has joint control over the Bank and its subsidiaries;

(b) The party is a joint venture in which the Bank and its subsidiaries is a venture or an associate (owning over
11% of the charter capital or voting share capital, but is not a subsidiary of the Bank);
(c)

The party whose member is the key management personnel of the Bank and its subsidiaries;

(d) The party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or (c); or
(e) The party is an entity that is, directly or indirectly, controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced
by, or of which, significant voting power in such entity resides with any individual referred to in (c) or (d).
Significant transactions with related parties are as follows:
Related party

Current year
VND million

Previous year
VND million

1,666

2,274

(4,317)

(4,941)

Post-tax remuneration of members of the
Board of Directors and Board of Supervision

(32,266)

(38,284)

Post-tax income of members of the Board of
Management

(95,378)

(82,686)

Interest income from loans/deposits

13,486

3,307

Interest expenses on borrowings/deposits

(3,940)

(4,911)

-

2,803

3,269

12,251

(20,345)

-

2,841

8,511

(2,081)

(2,505)

Transactions
Interest income from loans

Key management of the
Bank and its subsidiaries

Related parties to key
management of the Bank
and its subsidiaries
Main shareholders (own
more than 5% of the
Bank’s charter capital)
Related parties to main
shareholders

Interest expenses on deposits

Interest expenses on loans/deposits
Other income
Other expense
Interest income from loans
Interest expenses on deposit
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37. 	RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Receivables and payables with related parties as at 31 December 2015 are as follows:
Related party

Transactions
Loans

Key management of the Bank and its subsidiaries

Deposits
Other receivables

Related parties to key management of the Bank and
its subsidiaries
Related parties to main shareholders

Loans
Deposits
Loans
Deposits

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

435,281

50,830

(123,880)

(117,023)

238,086

-

22,248

45,962

(81,251)

(63,596)

-

131,701

(88,532)

(98,685)

38.	CONCENTRATION OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS BY
GEOGRAPHICAL REGIONS
Domestic
VND million

Overseas
VND million

Total
VND million

890,854

1,317,566

2,208,420

182,006,065

3,910,748

185,916,813

41,381,750

547

41,382,297

300

-

300

897,843

-

897,843

1,534,471

1,419,602

2,954,073

258,603,486

2,391,259

260,994,745

3,860,958

1,505,277

5,366,235

332,763

1,460,471

1,793,234

600

-

600

17,965,852

6,694,637

24,660,489

Assets as at 31 December 2015
Due from and loans to other credit institutions - gross
Loans and finance leases to customers - gross
Held-for-trading and investment securities - gross
Purchased debts - gross
Long-term investments - gross
Liabilities as at 31 December 2015
Due to and borrowings from other credit institutions
Due to customers
Derivatives and other financial liabilities (Nominal amount)
Grants, entrusted funds and loans exposed to risks
Valuable papers issued
Off-balance sheet commitments as at 31 December
2015

SEGMENT REPORT

(524,121)

(3,959,052)

(211,172)
(892,725)

Total corporate income tax expenses

NET PROFIT AFTER TAX

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Other liabilities

Due to customers

Due to and borrowings from other credit institutions

LIABILITIES

672,421
42,876,399

5,391,896
197,976,013

42,203,618

360

18,533,129

1,739,288

-

16,789,408

4,433

623,674

-

190,187,099

2,397,018

242,619,815

40,367,385
61,489,744

Investment securities

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

138,619,474

Due from and loans to other credit institutions

Loans and finance leases to customers

2,143,212

(681,553)

ASSETS

(1,039)

(2,241,364)

Credit loss expenses

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

623,674

624,713

1,559,811

Net operating profit before credit loss expenses

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

141,369
1,148,834

1,433,677
5,518,863

Non-interest income

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME

(1,661,167)

(12,946,299)
1,007,465

2,668,632

17,031,485

North
VND million

4,085,186

Net interest and similar income

Interest and similar expenses

Interest and similar income

South
VND million

26,850,129

423,372

26,419,912

6,845

26,262,416

1,850,131

-

24,411,102

1,183

857,155

-

857,155

5

857,150

(505,889)

1,363,039

94,961

1,268,078

(1,536,767)

2,804,845

Central
VND million

1,146,071

41,373

1,018,911

85,787

2,208,364

698,240

-

1,483,347

26,777

29,795

(9,326)

39,121

(3,053)

42,174

(67,412)

109,586

14,332

95,254

(70,411)

165,665

Laos
VND million

1,665,547

36,279

1,165,205

464,063

2,970,930

581,430

547

2,356,690

32,263

30,020

(9,738)

39,758

(10,563)

50,321

(98,073)

148,394

29,270

119,124

(55,453)

174,577

Cambodia
VND million

270,514,159

6,565,341

260,994,745

2,954,073

292,594,654

66,358,833

40,367,932

183,660,021

2,207,868

647,919

(230,236)

878,155

(2,256,014)

3,134,169

(5,154,547)

8,288,716

1,713,609

6,575,107

(16,270,097)

22,845,204

(561,918)

(561,918)

-

-

(561,918)

(561,918)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,952,354

(6,952,354)

Total segment
Eliminations
reported
VND million
VND million

269,952,241

6,003,423

260,994,745

2,954,073

292,032,736

65,796,915

40,367,932

183,660,021

2,207,868

647,919

(230,236)

878,155

(2,256,014)

3,134,169

(5,154,547)

8,288,716

1,713,609

6,575,107

(9,317,743)

15,892,850

Total
VND million

Information on income, expenses, assets and liabilities by geographical region of the Bank and its subsidiaries as at and for the year ended 31 December 2015 is
as follows:

39.1	Main segment report: by geographical region

39.
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Secondary segment report: by business sector
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For management purposes, the Bank and its subsidiaries are organized into sectors based on the followings:
Individual customers and
corporate customers:

The products and services provided to individual and corporate
clients include:
- due to customers;
- loans and finance leases to customers;
- card services and remittance

Investments:

Securities investments and other long-term investments.

Interbank:

Placements from and to; borrowings, lending and other interbank
activities with other credit institutions.

Secondary segment report: by business sector (continued)

39.2

-

Due from and loans to other credit institutions

Held-for-trading securities

29,233,406

Fixed assets

Other assets

-

264,904,850

3,909,505

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

42,753,496

2,385,564

-

594,542

39,678,056

-

95,334

-

-

-

Investments
VND million

4,787,982

17,822

-

1,793,234

22,853

-

2,954,073

9,731,541

26,406

-

-

-

-

-

2,207,868

7,497,267

-

Interbank
VND million

259,409

259,409

-

-

-

-

-

26,654,272

12,100,075

7,967,719

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,586,478

Un-allocated
general activities
VND million

269,952,241

4,186,736

600

1,793,234

22,853

260,994,745

2,954,073

292,032,736

43,745,451

7,967,719

594,542

39,678,056

183,660,021

95,334

2,207,868

7,497,267

6,586,478

Total
VND million

Segmental information on income and expenses is not presented by as the Bank and its subsidiaries have not established management information system
to collect these information.

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Other liabilities

600

Grants, entrusted funds and loans exposed to risks

Valuable papers issued

-

260,994,745

-

Derivatives and other financial liabilities

Due to customers

Due to and borrowings from other credit institutions

LIABILITIES

212,893,427

-

Long-term investments

TOTAL ASSETS

-

Investment securities

183,660,021

-

Balances with central banks

Loans and finance leases to customers

-

Cash, gold and precious stones

ASSETS

Individual and
corporate
customers
VND million

Information on assets and liabilities of the business sectors of the Bank and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 is as follows:

SEGMENT REPORT (continued)
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40.	FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk is inherent in the Bank and its subsidiaries’ activities and is managed through a process of ongoing
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk
management is critical to the Bank and its subsidiaries’ continuing profitability and each individual within the
Bank and its subsidiaries is accountable for the risk prevention within his or her responsibilities. The Bank and
its subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (then being subdivided into trading and
non-trading risks). The Bank and its subsidiaries are also subject to various operational risks.
The independent risk control process does not include business risks such as changes in the environment,
technology and industry. The Bank and its subsidiaries’ policy is to monitor those business risks through the
Bank and its subsidiaries’ strategic planning process.
(i)

Risk management structure

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for identifying and controlling risks. However, each separate
member shall be responsible for managing and monitoring risks.
(ii)

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for monitoring the overall risk management process within the Bank
and its subsidiaries.
(iii) Risk Management Committee

Risk Management Committee advises the Board of Directors in the promulgation of procedures and
policies under their jurisdiction relating to risk management in the Bank and its subsidiaries’ activities.
Risk Management Committee analyses and provides warnings on the potential risks that may affect the
Bank and its subsidiaries’ operation and preventive measures in the short term as well as long term.
Risk Management Committee reviews and evaluates the appropriateness and effectiveness of the risk
management of procedures and policies of the Bank and its subsidiaries to make recommendations to the
Board of Directors on the improvement of procedures, policies and operational strategies.
(iv) Board of Supervision

The Board of Supervision has the responsibility to control the overall risk management process within the
Bank and its subsidiaries.
(v) Internal Audit

According to the annual internal audit plan, business processes throughout the Bank and its subsidiaries’
are audited annually by the internal audit function, which examines both the adequacy of the procedures
and compliance with the Bank and its subsidiaries’ procedures. Internal Audit discusses the results of all
assessments with management, and reports its findings and recommendations to the Board of Supervision.
(vi) Risk measurement and reporting systems

The Bank and its subsidiaries’ risks are measured using a method which reflects both the expected loss
likely to arise in normal circumstances and unexpected losses, which are an estimate of the ultimate actual
loss based on statistical models.
Monitoring and controlling of risks is primarily performed based on limits established by the Bank and its
subsidiaries in compliance with the SBV’s regulations. These limits reflect the business strategy and market
environment of the Bank and its subsidiaries as well as the level of risk that the Bank and its subsidiaries are
willing to accept.
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40.	FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(vi) Risk measurement and reporting systems (continued)

Information compiled from all business activities is examined and processed in order to analyze, control
and early identify risks. This information is presented and explained to the Board of Directors, The Board
of Management, and the department heads. The report includes aggregate credit exposure, credit metric
forecasts, limit exceptions, liquidity ratios and risk profile changes. The Board of Directors assesses the
appropriateness of the allowance for credit losses on a quarterly basis. The Board of Directors receives a
comprehensive risk report quarterly which is designed to provide all the necessary information to assess
and conclude on the risks of the Bank and its subsidiaries.
For all levels throughout the Bank and its subsidiaries, specifically tailored risk reports are prepared and
distributed in order to ensure that all business departments have access to extensive, necessary and upto-date information.
(vii) Risk mitigation

The Bank and its subsidiaries actively use collaterals to reduce their credit risks.
(viii) Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or
activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would affect the group of
customers’ payment obligations or payment receipt rights when due under changes in economic, political
or other conditions.
These above concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Bank and its subsidiaries’ performance to
the developments of a particular industry or geographic allocation.
In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Bank and its subsidiaries’ policies and procedures
include specific guidelines to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of
credit risk are controlled and managed accordingly. Selective hedging is used within the Bank and its
subsidiaries in respect of the industries and other related factors.
41.	CREDIT RISK
Credit risk is the risk that the Bank and its subsidiaries will incur a loss because their customers or counterparties
fail to discharge their contractual obligations.
The Bank and its subsidiaries manage and control credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk they are
willing to accept for individual counterparties and for geographical and industry concentrations, and by
monitoring exposures in relation to such limits.
The Bank and its subsidiaries have established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of
possible changes in the financial position and creditworthiness of counterparties, including regular collateral
revisions. Credit limit for each counterparty is established by the use of a credit rating system, which assigns
each counterparty a risk rating. Risk ratings are subject to regular revision.
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41.	CREDIT RISK (continued)
41.1 	Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements

The maximum exposures to credit risk relating to each group of financial assets which are equivalent to their
book values on the consolidated balance sheet are listed below:
Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

2,208,420

3,630,099

- Individuals

89,680,646

56,975,945

- Corporates

96,236,167

71,039,066

300

-

-

12,151

- Debt securities - available-for-sale

176,177

427,100

- Debt securities - held-to-maturity

15,142,479

5,935,128

Other financial assets

31,920,251

6,844,881

Financial guarantees

3,944,927

3,481,253

Letters of credit

6,623,786

8,646,367

11,271

11,103

Credit risk exposures of balance sheet items
Due from and loans to other credit institutions
Loans and finance leases to customers

Purchased debts
Derivatives and other financial assets
Investment securities

Credit risk exposures of off-balance sheet items

Other commitments

This table presents the worst scenario which the Bank and its subsidiaries will incur the maximum credit
exposures as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, without taking into account of any collateral held
or their credit enhancements.
41.2 	Financial assets neither past due nor impaired

The Bank and its subsidiaries’ financial assets which are neither past due nor impaired include loans and finance
leases to customers classified as Group 1 (Current) in accordance with Circular 02 and Circular 09; securities,
receivables and other financial assets which are not past due and no provision is required in accordance with
Circular 228 and Circular 89 except for loans classified as Group 1 amounting to VND33,782,627 million (Note
11.1) and some accrued interest receivables which were blocked and amortized into the profit and loss (Note
16.2) according to the Restructuring Plan as approved by the SBV.
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41.3 	Financial assets past due but not impaired

The aging of financial assets past due but not impaired as at 31 December 2015 is presented as below:
Past due

Loans and finance leases to customers
Receivables

Less than
90 days
VND million

From 91 to
180 days
VND million

From 181 to More than 360
360 days
days
VND million
VND million

157,172

46,196

27,363

290,697

521,428

6,363

2,328

-

-

8,691

163,535

48,524

27,363

290,697

530,119

Total
VND million

Loans and finance leases to customers past due but not impaired are loans which are overdue but no provision
is required as these loans are secured adequately by collaterals under the form of deposits, real estate, movable
assets, valuable papers and other assets.
Receivables past due but not impaired are the receivables which are overdue under six (6) months and no
provision is required in accordance with Circular 228 and Circular 89.
42. 	MARKET RISK
42.1 	Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the fair values of financial
instruments. The Bank and its subsidiaries are exposed to interest rate risk as a result of mismatches of maturity
dates or dates of interest rate re-pricing in respect of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet instruments over a
certain period. The Bank and its subsidiaries manage this risk by matching the dates of interest rate re-pricing of
assets and liabilities through risk management strategies.
Analysis of assets and liabilities based on interest rate re-pricing date
The term of interest rate re-pricing is calculated from the consolidated balance sheet date to the next interest
rate re-pricing date or the maturity date of the items on the consolidated balance sheet whichever is earlier.

260
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2015

B05/TCTD-HN

42. 	MARKET RISK (continued)
42.1 	Interest rate risk (continued)

The following assumptions and conditions have been adopted in the analysis of interest rate re-pricing terms of
the assets and liabilities of the Bank and its subsidiaries:
»»

Cash, gold, precious stones, long-term investments, other assets (including fixed assets, investment
properties and other assets) and other liabilities are classified as non-interest bearing items;

»»

Balances with central banks are considered as current and the re-pricing term is therefore considered
within one (1) month;

»»

The re-pricing term of investment securities and held-for-trading securities is determined based on the
maturity term of each kind of securities as at the consolidated balance sheet date;

»»

The re-pricing term of balances due from and loans to other credit institutions; loans and finance leases
to customers; borrowings from the Government and the central banks; due to and borrowings from other
credit institutions, due to customers and grants, entrusted funds and loans exposed to risks are determined
as follows:

»»

-

Items which bear fixed interest rate for the entire contractual term: The re-pricing term is determined
based on the remaining contractual term calculated from the consolidated balance sheet date.

-

Items which bear floating interest rate: The re-pricing term is determined based on the next interest
rate re-pricing date subsequent to the consolidated balance sheet date.

The re-pricing term of valuable papers is determined based on the remaining maturity term of each
valuable paper.

The following table presents the interest re-pricing period of the Bank and its subsidiaries’ assets and liabilities
as at 31 December 2015.

1,034,322
22,853
4,186,736
5,262,010
111,771,019

-

3,370,946

300
14,555,310
897,843
7,967,719
1,089,355
43,230,760
3,370,946 117,033,029

-

43,321,983

2,280,739

18,099

650,526
3,611
56,048,873

124,841

-

-

46,037,696

42,992

552

600
121,868,914
(65,820,041)

332,763

-

119,438,959

2,096,592

-

2,164,876

6,586,478
305,103

7,192,164

Up to
1 month
VND
million

-

Non-interest
bearing
VND
million

54,972,293
32,191,771

1,116,390

-

53,306,333

549,570

2,524,558
87,164,064

84,639,506

-

-

-

From 1 to
3 months
VND
million

40,712,442
(33,609,428)

341,250

-

40,174,182

197,010

5,441,171
1,776
7,103,014

1,660,067

-

-

-

From 3 to
6 months
VND
million

40,585,846
(36,362,030)

354

-

40,497,882

87,610

2,233,921
5,753
4,223,816

1,984,142

-

-

-

From 6 to
12 months
VND
million

Thời hạn định lại lãi suất

6,508,175
14,269,698

2,477

-

6,504,406

1,292

15,801,059
20,777,873

4,976,814

-

-

-

From 1 to
5 years
VND
million

No analysis on interest rate sensitivity was performed at 31 December 2015 due to unavailability of sufficient data and technology.

Interest rate sensitivity

Assets
Cash, gold and precious stones
Balances with central banks
Due from and loans to other
credit institutions - gross
Held-for-trading securities - gross
Loans and finance leases to
customers - gross
Purchased debts - gross
Investment securities - gross
Long-term investments - gross
Fixed assets
Other assets - gross
Total assets
Liabilities
Due to and borrowings from
other credit institutions
Due to customers
Derivatives and other financial
liabilities
Grants, entrusted funds and
loans exposed to risks
Valuable papers issued
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Interest sensitivity gap

Overdue
VND million

42.1 	Interest rate risk (continued)

42. 	MARKET RISK (continued)

185,916,813

124,841

2,208,420

6,586,478
7,497,267

Total
VND
million

42,561
1,024,216

-

-

38,661

3,900

600
4,186,736
269,952,241
26,836,151

1,793,234

22,853

260,994,745

2,954,073

300
50,911
41,257,456
897,843
7,967,719
44,331,255
1,066,777 296,788,392

1,015,866

-

-

-

Over
5 years
VND
million
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as at and for the year ended 31 December 2015

42. 	MARKET RISK (continued)
42.2 	Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates.
The Bank and its subsidiaries are incorporated and operating in Vietnam with reporting currency as VND. The
major currency of their transactions is also VND, some transactions are denominated in gold, USD, EUR and other
foreign currencies; except for Sacombank Lao Plc whose major currency is LAK, and Sacombank Cambodia Plc,
SBJ Cambodia Co., Ltd., whose major currency is USD. The Bank and its subsidiaries have set limits to control the
positions of the currencies. Positions are monitored on a daily basis and hedging strategies are used to ensure
positions of the currencies are maintained within the established limits.
The following table presents assets and liabilities in foreign currencies translated into VND as at 31 December
2015:
Gold Other foreign
EUR
USD equivalent
currencies
equivalent to equivalent to
to equivalent to
VND million VND million VND million VND million

Total
VND million

Assets
Cash, gold and precious stones
Balances with central banks
Due from and loans to other credit institutions
- gross
Derivatives and other financial assets
Loans and finance leases to customers - gross

251,279

1,239,289

251,939

744,868

2,487,375

-

1,535,484

-

130,947

1,666,431

29,808

1,604,146

-

207,174

1,841,128

842,905

610,253

-

119,023

1,572,181

-

10,323,161

382,425

1,257,727

11,963,313

Investment securities - gross

-

547

-

-

547

Fixed assets

-

20,288

-

312,364

332,652

98

356,712

63,860

45,333

466,003

1,124,090

15,689,880

698,224

2,817,436

20,329,630

-

1,356,408

-

69,676

1,426,084

400,018

13,215,028

5,633

1,073,123

14,693,802

Derivatives and other financial liabilities

-

-

-

383,421

383,421

Grants, entrusted funds and loans exposed
to risks

-

1,448,108

-

-

1,448,108

Valuable papers issued

-

4

-

-

4

8,448

170,062

50

60,208

238,768

Total liabilities

408,466

16,189,610

5,683

1,586,428

18,190,187

Foreign exchange position on-balance
sheet

715,624

(499,730)

692,541

1,231,008

2,139,443

Foreign exchange position off-balance
sheet

(713,998)

1,696,644

(170,710)

(245,072)

566,864

Foreign exchange position on and offbalance sheet

1,626

1,196,914

521,831

985,936

2,706,307

Other assets - gross
Total assets
Liabilities
Due to and borrowings from other credit
institutions
Due to customers

Other liabilities

263
Financial Statements

42. 	MARKET RISK (continued)
42.2 	Currency risk (continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity

No analysis on foreign currency sensitivity was performed as at 31 December 2015 due to unavailability of
sufficient data and technology.
42.3 	Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk which the Bank and its subsidiaries have difficulty in meeting their financial obligations.
Liquidity risk occurs when the Bank and its subsidiaries cannot afford to settle debt obligations at the due dates
in the normal or stress conditions. To minimize the liquidity risk exposure, the Bank and its subsidiaries diversify
the mobilization of deposits from various sources apart from their basic capital resources. In addition, the Bank
and its subsidiaries have a flexible policy to control liquidity of assets, monitor the future cash flows and daily
liquidity. The Bank and its subsidiaries also evaluate the estimated cash flows and the availability of current
collaterals in case of obtaining more deposits.
The maturity term of assets and liabilities represents the remaining period of assets and liabilities calculated
from the consolidated balance sheet date to the settlement date in accordance with contractual terms and
conditions.
The following assumptions and conditions are applied in the maturity analysis of the Bank and its subsidiaries’
assets and liabilities:
»»

Balances with central banks are classified as demand deposits which include compulsory deposits;

»»

The maturity term of investment securities is calculated based on the maturity date of each kind of
securities; except for the maturity term of investments in Government bonds and bonds issued by the
Vietnam Development Bank is considered within one month because of their high liquidity;

»»

The maturity term of due from and loans to other credit institutions; loans and finance leases to customers
is determined based on the maturity date as stipulated in contracts. The actual maturity term may be
altered because loan contracts may be extended;

»»

The maturity term of long-term investments is considered as more than one year because these investments
do not have specific maturity date;

»»

The maturity term of due to and borrowings from other credit institutions; due to customers is determined
based on features of these items or the maturity date as stipulated in contracts. Vostro account and demand
deposits are transacted as required by customers, and therefore, classified as current accounts. The maturity
term of borrowings and term deposits is determined based on the maturity date in contracts. In practice,
these amounts may be rolled over, and therefore, they may last beyond the original maturity date;

»»

The maturity term of fixed assets is determined based on the remaining useful life of assets.

-

2,333,871

-

-

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

1,037,075

-

-

(71,104,510)

122,953,419

1,576,432

600

4,313

22,853

120,338,180

1,011,041

51,848,909

3,826,576

7,370

-

24,696,373

-

7,026,977

-

2,207,868

7,497,267

6,586,478

Up to
1 month
VND million

(37,892,838)

55,067,310

1,005,103

-

45,235

-

53,307,157

709,815

17,174,472

910,153

777

-

412,284

-

15,726,417

124,841

-

-

-

From 1 to
3 months
VND million

(38,293,813)

83,017,674

1,402,839

-

314,875

-

80,696,739

603,221

44,723,861

1,761,289

21,468

-

-

-

42,941,104

-

-

-

-

From 3 to
12 months
VND million

115,663,087

8,857,390

190,555

-

1,428,311

-

6,614,000

624,524

124,520,477

15,134,050

586,390

-

16,148,252

-

92,651,785

-

-

-

-

From 1 to
5 years
VND million

55,093,279

56,448

11,807

-

500

-

38,669

5,472

55,149,727

21,609,832

7,351,714

897,843

547

-

25,289,791

-

-

-

-

Above
5 years
VND million

26,836,151

269,952,241

4,186,736

600

1,793,234

22,853

260,994,745

2,954,073

296,788,392

44,331,255

7,967,719

897,843

41,257,456

300

185,916,813

124,841

2,208,420

7,497,267

6,586,478

Total
VND million

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2015

Net liquidity gap

-

-

Grants, entrusted funds and loans exposed to risks

Valuable papers issued

-

-

Due to customers

-

-

1,037,075

5,393

-

Derivatives and other financial liabilities

Due to and borrowings from other credit
institutions

Liabilities

1,083,962
2,333,871

Other assets - gross

Total assets

-

Long-term investments - gross

Fixed assets

-

-

-

300

1,031,682

1,249,057

-

-

552

-

Up to
3 months
VND million

-

Investment securities - gross

Purchased debts - gross

Loans and finance leases to customers - gross

Held-for-trading securities - gross

Due from and loans to other credit institutions gross

Balances with central banks

Cash, gold and precious stones

Assets

Above
3 months
VND million

Current
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Overdue

The following table presents the Bank and its subsidiaries’ assets and liabilities by relevant maturity based on the remaining period calculated as at 31 December
2015.

42.3 	Currency risk (continued)

42. 	MARKET RISK (continued)
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42. 	MARKET RISKS (continued)
42.4 	Market price risk

Except for the assets and liabilities presented above, the Bank and its subsidiaries have no other market price
risks which have risk level accounting for 5% or more of net profit or the value of assets, liabilities accounting for
5% or more of total assets.
43.	EXPENDITURE, OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS AND FIDUCIARY ASSETS
43.1	Expenditure commitments

Capital commitments on office building constructions and equipment acquisition

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

93,963

129,890

43.2	Operating lease commitments

Operating lease commitments

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

2,206,569

10,197,421

In which:
-

Due within one year

304,360

441,819

-

Due from one to five years

803,240

1,613,056

-

Due after five years

1,098,969

8,142,546

Ending balance
VND million

Beginning balance
VND million

1,659,294

2,662,354

43.3	Assets held under custody

Gold kept on behalf of customers

44.

SUPPLEMENTAL NOTES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
ACCORDING TO CIRCULAR NO. 210/2009/TT-BTC
On 6 November 2009, the Ministry of Finance issued Circular No. 210/2009/TT-BTC providing guidance for the
adoption in Vietnam of the International Financial Reporting Standards on presentation and disclosures of
financial instruments (“Circular 210”) which is effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2011.
The Circular 210 only provides for the presentation and disclosures of financial instruments; therefore, the
concepts of financial assets, financial liabilities and related concepts are applied solely for the supplemental
presentation. Assets, liabilities and equity of the Bank and its subsidiaries have been recognized and measured in
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions, the
official approvals of the State Bank of Vietnam for the Post-merger Restructuring Plan and the Bank’s proposals
for financial regimes and resolutions in the Restructuring Plan in relation to accrued interest receivables, special
bonds issued by VAMC, bad debts, doubtful assets and investment securities during the restructuring period and
with the statutory requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements.
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SUPPLEMENTAL NOTES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
ACCORDING TO CIRCULAR NO. 210/2009/TT-BTC (continued)
Financial assets

Financial assets of the Bank and its subsidiaries within the scope of Circular 210 comprise cash, gold, precious
stones; balances with central banks; due from and loans to other credit institutions; loans and finance leases to
customers; held-for-trading and investment securities; receivables and other assets under currency derivative
contracts.
According to Circular 210, financial assets are classified appropriately, for the purpose of disclosure in the
consolidated financial statements, into one of the following categories:
»»

A financial asset at fair value through profit or loss:
Is a financial asset that meets either of the following conditions:
a) It is classified as held for trading. A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:
•

It is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term;

•

There is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

•

It is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument).

b) Upon initial recognition, it is designated by the Bank and its subsidiaries as at fair value through profit
or loss.
»»

Held-to-maturity investments:
Are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Bank
and its subsidiaries have the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity other than:
a) Those that the Bank and its subsidiaries upon initial recognition designated as at fair value through
profit or loss;
b) Those that the Bank and its subsidiaries designate as available for sale;
c) Those that meet the definitions of loans and receivables.

»»

Loans and finance leases and receivables:
Are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market other than:
a) Those that the Bank and its subsidiaries intend to sell immediately or in the near term, which shall
be classified as held for trading, and those that the Bank and its subsidiaries upon initial recognition
designate as at fair value through profit or loss;
b) Those that the Bank and its subsidiaries upon initial recognition designated as available for sale; or
c) Those for which the holder may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than because
of credit deterioration, which shall be classified as available for sale.
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44.

SUPPLEMENTAL NOTES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
ACCORDING TO CIRCULAR NO. 210/2009/TT-BTC (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

»»

Available-for-sale assets:
Are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or are not classified as:
a)

Loans and receivables;

b)

Held-to-maturity investments;

c)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Bank and its subsidiaries within the scope of Circular 210 consist of borrowings from
the Government and the State Bank of Vietnam, due to and borrowings from other credit institutions, due
to customers, grants, entrusted funds and loans exposed to risks, valuable papers issued, payables and other
liabilities under currency derivative contracts.
According to Circular 210, financial liabilities are classified appropriately, for the purpose of disclosure in the
consolidated financial statements, into one of the following categories:
»»

A financial liability at fair value through profit or loss:
Is a financial liability that meets either of the following conditions:
a) It is classified as held for trading. A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
•

It is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term;

•

There is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

•

It is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument).

b) Upon initial recognition it is designated by the Bank and its subsidiaries as at fair value through profit or
loss.
»»

Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
Financial liabilities which are not categorised as at fair value through profit or loss will be classified as
financial liabilities at amortised cost.

Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and reported at the net amount in the consolidated balance
sheet if, and only if, the Bank and its subsidiaries have an enforceable legal right to offset financial assets against
financial liabilities and the Bank and its subsidiaries have intention to settle on a net basis, or the realization of
the assets and settlement of liabilities is made simultaneously.
Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of cash and short term deposits approximate to their carrying value due to their short term
maturity.

44.

-

95,334

14,762,208

95,334

-

-

Other financial liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

183,660,021

-

-

-

-

183,660,021

-

-

-

-

Loans and
receivables
VND million

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

25,510,390

-

594,542

-

24,915,848

-

-

-

-

-

Available-forsale
VND million

269,632,540

3,867,035

600

1,793,234

22,853

260,994,745

2,954,073

47,960,252

31,668,639

-

-

-

-

-

2,207,868

7,497,267

6,586,478

Other assets
and liabilities at
amortized cost
VND million

269,632,540

3,867,035

600

1,793,234

22,853

260,994,745

2,954,073

271,988,205

31,668,639

594,542

14,762,208

24,915,848

183,660,021

95,334

2,207,868

7,497,267

6,586,478

(*)

(*)

(*)

(*)

(*)

(*)

(*)

(*)

(*)

(*)

(*)

(*)

(*)

7,497,267

6,586,478

Total
Fair value
VND million VND million

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2015

(*) As Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions and related regulations of the SBV have no specific guidance
on the fair value determination, the fair value of these items cannot be determined.

-

-

Grants, entrusted funds and loans exposed to risks

Valuable papers issued

-

-

-

Due to customers

-

-

-

Derivatives and other financial liabilities

Due to and borrowings from other credit institutions

-

-

Other long-term investments

Other financial assets

14,762,208

-

Available-for-sale securities

-

Held-to-maturity securities

-

Loans and finance leases to customers

Held-for-trading securities

-

-

Due from and loans to other credit institutions

-

-

Cash, gold and precious stones

Held to
maturity
VND million

Balances with central banks

Held for
trading
VND million
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Carrying value

The carrying amount and fair value of the Bank and its subsidiaries’ financial instruments as at 31 December 2015 are presented as below:

Carrying amont and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

SUPPLEMENTAL NOTES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ACCORDING TO CIRCULAR NO. 210/2009/
TT-BTC (continued)
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45. 	HEDGING
For assets and liabilities management, the Bank and its subsidiaries have used hedging derivatives to mitigate
credit risk and market risk. Hedging is applied to a specific financial instrument, a portfolio of financial instruments
having fixed interest rate as well as total financial position.
The Bank and its subsidiaries have used fair value hedging to mitigate the risk from the fluctuation of assets
and liabilities’ fair value caused by the changes in interest rate and foreign exchange rate. For interest hedging,
hedged financial instruments include loans and finance leases to customers, available-for-sale debt securities
and valuable papers issued. For currency hedging, the Bank and its subsidiaries have used swap contracts.
46. 	EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
On 22 May 2017, the Post-merger Restructuring Plan of Saigon Thuong Tin Commercial Joint Stock Bank for
the period up to 2025 and the Bank’s proposals for financial regimes and resolutions in the Restructuring Plan
in relation to accrued interest receivables, VAMC’s special bonds, bad debts, doubtful assets and investment
securities during the restructuring period was approved by the State Bank of Vietnam according to Decision No.
34/QD-NHNN.Tym and Official Letter No. 426/NHNN-TTGSNH.Tym.
Except for the above event and other information disclosed in relevant notes to the separate financial
statements, there have been no other significant events occurring after the balance sheet date which would
require adjustments or disclosures to be made in the separate financial statements.
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as at and for the year ended 31 December 2015

47.	EXCHANGE RATES OF APPLICABLE FOREIGN CURRENCIES AGAINST VND
Ending balance
VND

Beginning balance
VND

SJC gold

3,270,000

3,515,000

SBJ gold

3,270,000

3,510,000

USD

21,890

21,246

EUR

24,574

26,026

GBP

33,311

33,351

CHF

22,522

21,496

JPY

186,52

178,15

SGD

15,819

16,115

CAD

16,095

18,390

AUD

16,311

17,558

LAK

2,773

2,643

THB

597

621

NZD

15,201

16,581
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